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Forward-Looking Statements

Statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this "Annual Report") include forward-looking statements within
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and involve substantial risks and uncertainties that may
cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements. All forward-looking
statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including statements about our strategies, expectations about new and
existing products, market demand, acceptance of new and existing products, technologies and opportunities, market size
and growth, and return on investments in products and market, are based on information available to us on the date of this
document, and we assume no obligation to update such forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify
forward-looking statements by terminology such as "may", "will", "should", "could", "expects", "plans", "intends",
"anticipates", "believes", "estimates", "predicts", "potential", or "continue" or the negative of such terms or other
comparable terminology. Readers of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are strongly encouraged to review the section
entitled "Risk Factors".
 

 
PART I

Item 1.  Business

Overview
 
Lifeloc Technologies, Inc., a Colorado corporation ("Lifeloc" or the "Company"), is a Colorado-based developer, manufacturer and
marketer of portable hand-held and fixed station breathalyzers and related accessories, supplies and education.  We design, produce
and sell fuel-cell based breath alcohol testing equipment.  We compete in all major segments of the portable breath alcohol testing
instrument market, including law enforcement, workplace, corrections, original equipment manufacturing ("OEM") and consumer
markets. In addition, we offer a line of supplies, accessories, services, and training to support customers' alcohol testing programs.
We sell globally through distributors as well as directly to users.

We define our business as providing "near and remote sensing" products and solutions. Today, the majority of our revenues are
derived from products and services for alcohol detection and measurement. We remain committed to growing our breath alcohol
testing business. In the future, we anticipate the commercialization of new sensing and measurement products that may allow Lifeloc
to successfully expand our business into new growth areas where we do not presently compete or where no satisfactory product
solutions exist today.

In addition, with the October 2014 purchase of our corporate headquarters and certain adjacent property, we added a new reporting
segment focused on the ownership and rental of real property through existing commercial leases.

Lifeloc incorporated in Colorado in December 1983.  We filed a registration statement on Form 10 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, which became effective on May 31, 2011.  Our fiscal year end is December 31.  Our principal executive offices are
located at 12441 West 49th Avenue, Unit 4, Wheat Ridge, Colorado 80033-3338.  Our telephone number is (303) 431-9500.  Our
websites are www.lifeloc.com, www.lifeguardbreathtester.com, stsfirst.com and www.lifeloc.fr.  Information contained on our websites
does not constitute part of this Form 10-K.
 
Principal Products and Services and Methods of Distribution
 
In 1989, we introduced our first breath alcohol tester, the PBA3000. Our Phoenix Classic was completed and released for sale in
1998, superseding the PBA3000. In turn, the Phoenix Classic has been superseded by our FC Series and Workplace Series of
portable breath alcohol testers, which are discussed below. Neither the PBA3000 nor the Phoenix Classic is actively sold today.
 
In 2001, we completed and released for sale an additional product line, our new FC Series, designed specifically for domestic and
international law enforcement and corrections markets. The portable breath alcohol testers comprising our FC Series are currently
being sold worldwide, having contributed to our growth since their introduction. The FC Series is designed to meet the needs of
domestic and international law enforcement for roadside drink/drive testing and alcohol offender monitoring. The FC Series is
approved by the U.S. Department of Transportation ("DOT") as an evidential breath tester, making it suitable for sale to state law
enforcement agencies for preliminary roadside breath alcohol testing.  The FC Series is routinely updated with firmware, software and
component improvements as they become available.  It is readily adaptable to the specific requirements and regulations of domestic
and international markets.
 
In 2005 and 2006, we introduced two new models, the EV30 and Phoenix 6.0 Evidential Breath Tester ("Phoenix 6.0"), which
constitute our Workplace Series of testing devices.  Like their predecessor, the Phoenix Classic, these instruments are also DOT
approved. The DOT's specifications support the DOT's workplace alcohol testing programs, including those applicable to workplace
alcohol testing for the federally regulated transportation industry. We also sell component parts used in alcohol testing devices, such
as mouthpieces used by our breathalyzers, as well as forms and labels used for record keeping, and calibration products for user re-
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calibration of our devices.  We offer optional service agreements on our equipment, re-calibration services, and spare parts, and we
sell supporting instrument training and user certification training to our workplace customers.
 
In 2006, we commenced selling breath alcohol equipment components that we manufacture to other original equipment
manufacturers ("OEMs") for inclusion as subassemblies or components in their breath alcohol testing devices.
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In late 2009, Lifeloc released the LifeGuard Personal Breathalyzer ("LifeGuard"), a personal alcohol breath tester that incorporates
the same fuel-cell technology used in our professional devices.  Intended for the global consumer breathalyzer market, LifeGuard is
primarily sold directly to consumers in the U.S. and marketed internationally through global distributors.  

In 2011 and 2012 Lifeloc introduced Bluetooth wireless keyboard and printer communication options for our popular Phoenix 6.0
along with a series of web based workplace training courses. We believe these two product innovations have been key to our success
and leadership in workplace breath testing.

In 2013 Lifeloc expanded our FC Series of professional breath alcohol testers targeted at domestic and international law enforcement
and corrections markets with the addition of the FC5 Hornet (the "FC5"). The FC5 is a passive (no mouthpieces required) portable
handheld alcohol screening device that competes directly with passive alcohol screeners from our competitors in the education, law
enforcement, workplace and corrections markets. In 2013 we also introduced the Sentinel zero tolerance alcohol screening station, a
fully automated wall mounted screening station for use in safety sensitive industries such as oil and gas and mining. Both devices
expand Lifeloc's products for passive alcohol screening.
 
In the third quarter of 2014 we received approval from DOT for our EASYCAL automatic calibration station for use with Lifeloc
Evidential Breath Testers, and we began shipments of the EASYCAL to our law enforcement, corrections, workplace and
international customers.   The EASYCAL is a first of its kind device that automatically performs breath tester instrument calibration,
calibration verification and gas management.  As compared to manual instrument calibration, the EASYCAL reduces the opportunity
for human error, saves time and reduces operating costs.

In October 2014 we were awarded a $250,000 grant from the Colorado Office of Economic Development to accelerate development
of a marijuana breathalyzer.  Terms of the grant require us to submit invoices as work is performed, with an anticipated completion
date of August 31, 2017.  There is no assurance that this effort to develop a marijuana breathalyzer will be successful or that
significant sales will result from such development if successful.

In December 2014, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Superior Training Solutions, Inc. ("STS"), a company that develops
and sells online drug and alcohol training and refresher courses. The assets we acquired from STS complement our existing drug and
alcohol training courses.

Additional Areas of Interest

Consistent with our business goal of providing "near and remote sensing" products and solutions, our acquisition strategy involves
purchasing companies, development resources and assets that are aligned with our areas of interest and that can further aid in our
entering additional markets.  We expect to actively research and engage in the acquisition of resources that can expedite our
entrance into new markets or strengthen our position in existing ones.

Competition and Markets
 
We sell our products in a highly competitive market and we compete for business with both foreign and domestic
manufacturers.  Most of our competitors are larger and have substantially greater resources than we do.  In addition, there is an
ongoing risk that other domestic or foreign companies who do not currently service or manufacture products for our target markets
may seek to produce products or services that compete directly with ours.
 
We believe that competition for sales of our alcohol monitoring products and services is based on regulatory approvals, product
performance, product delivery, quality, service, training, price, device reliability, ease of use and speed.  We sell certain of our
components to customers for incorporation into their own product lines and for resale under their own name.  We believe that, while
our resources are more limited than those of our competitors, we will continue to compete successfully on the basis of product
innovation, quality, reputation and continued customer service excellence.
 
One leading competitor is Intoximeters, Inc. of St. Louis, Missouri, a long-established company with strong name recognition in the
field of alcohol testing.  It has well established sales channels, a large customer base, and a broad product line.  CMI, Inc. of
Owensboro, Kentucky, another major competitor, also has a well established name, strong position in stationary units used in police
work, and international market coverage.  Drägerwerk AG & Co. KGaA ("Dräger"), based in Germany, manufactures safety and gas
testing equipment.  Its breath alcohol testers are respected for their quality and performance.  
 

3

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



In addition, other technologies for the measurement of breath alcohol exist and are employed in other market and application
segments where the technology may be more suitable or developed to specific requirements. These include:
 
• Infrared devices, which use infrared light absorption to detect breath alcohol. These devices generally lack portability, and are

usually found in fixed locations, such as police stations, where subjects are brought for testing. This technology has the
advantage of being mandated by law in most states for evidential use in breath testing.

 
• Semi-conductor breath testing technology, which is used primarily in consumer breathalyzers. Its primary advantage is low

cost, but the technology is not widely accepted by professional users as being as accurate as fuel cell technology.
  
•  Chemical tests, which are based on urine and saliva testing.  This approach to alcohol testing is more invasive, less

convenient than breath testing, and may require subsequent analysis for results.
 
•  Blood alcohol tests, which require blood samples.  These tests are widely believed to be the most accurate form of alcohol

testing because they measure blood alcohol content directly from a sample of the subject's blood.  However, the results are
not instantaneous and the tests are more invasive and expensive than breath alcohol testing.

 
Marketing
 
Marketing activities associated with our business include the communication of our value proposition through direct mail, direct and
indirect sales channels, trade shows and an information-rich online presence.  We sell our products to the workplace and international
markets primarily through distributors.  We sell our law enforcement, corrections and consumer products directly to the end user and
our OEM products directly to manufacturers. Leveraging our installed base is important, as is maintaining a well trained distributor
network.  In 2009, we revised our workplace distributor program to place additional emphasis on volume incentives for growth in the
form of a rebate program.  Under the program distributors receive a progressively greater percentage rebate based on the dollar
sales they generate. We believe this program helps incentivize our distributors to achieve a higher level of sales than would otherwise
be the case.

Domestic Distribution

The majority of our sales into the workplace market are made through distributors.  Sales are made by these distributors pursuant to
agreements that renew automatically each year unless terminated by either party with advance notice, and such agreements typically
grant protected lead generation areas.

 
International Distribution
 
Over 90% of our international sales for all product lines are made by local distributors, who are given territories pursuant to
agreements that renew automatically each year unless terminated by either party with advance notice.  Based on reports from our
international distributors, we believe that many countries around the world are instituting tougher alcohol abuse prevention laws,
strengthening the enforcement of current laws, or both. These laws set limits on the amount of alcohol an individual may have in the
blood at specific times (e.g., while driving or during safety-sensitive work activities), or at any time for certain parolees and
probationers.  Lifeloc has sold instruments to customers in over 60 countries on six continents worldwide.
 
Research and Development
 
Lifeloc defines its business broadly to include "near and remote sensing" applications in markets outside of our traditional alcohol
testing.  We believe that our future success depends to a large degree on our ability to conceive and develop improved alcohol
detection and measurement products, as well as to identify attractive opportunities for growth outside of breath alcohol testing. 
Accordingly, we expect to continue to invest in research and development.  We spent $1,000,266 and $929,517 during 2014 and
2013, respectively, on research and development. The amount spent in 2014 was higher than the amount spent in 2013 because we
initiated several new product development efforts in new markets.

Raw Materials and Principal Suppliers
 
A basic component of our instrument product line is the fuel cell, which we obtain from only a few suppliers.  We believe that our
demand for this component is small relative to the total supply, and that the materials and services required for the production of our
products are currently available in sufficient quantities and will be available for the foreseeable future.  However, there are relatively
few suppliers of the high-quality fuel cells which our breathalyzers require.  Any sudden disruption to the supply of our fuel cells would
pose a significant risk to our business. New sources of fuel cells are uncertain at this time and changes to our fuel cells require
approval by the DOT, which, if not received, could have a material effect on our revenues.  While we have traditionally used only one
supplier of fuel cells, we have recently developed fuel cells of our own manufacture, which we intend to submit to the Department of
Transportation for approval in our Evidential Breath Testers. If our own fuel cells are approved, Lifeloc will pursue a two-supplier
strategy as necessary to meet the needs of the Company.

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



4

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
Patents, Intellectual Property and Royalties
 
We rely, in part, upon patents, trade secrets and proprietary knowledge as well as personnel policies and employee confidentiality
agreements concerning inventions and other creative efforts (collectively, "Lifeloc IP") to develop and to maintain our competitive
position. We do not believe that our business is dependent upon any patent, patent pending or license, although we believe that trade
secrets and confidential know-how may be important to our commercial success.  

We file for patents, copyrights and trademarks to protect our intellectual property rights to the extent practicable.  We hold the rights
to five United States patents and have four patent applications pending.  These patents have expiration dates ranging from October
2020 to September 2031.  In 2014 we filed three utility patent applications related to our volatile substance testing equipment and
methods.  We are not aware of any infringements of our patents.  We act to protect our patents from infringement in each instance
where we determine that doing so would be economical in light of the expense involved and the level and availability of our financial
resources.  While we believe that each of our pending applications relate to a patentable device or concept, there is no guarantee that
the patents will be issued.

We also enter into royalty agreements from time to time. In 2012 we entered into a royalty agreement with an OEM customer which
provides for the monthly payment of royalties to us on all products containing certain of our software sold by our customer.  In 2013
we entered into a second royalty agreement with another customer which provides for the monthly payment of royalties to us on all
products containing certain of our software sold by our customer.

Employees
 
As of December 31, 2014, we had 41 employees (38 full -time employees and 3 part-time employees).  We are not a party to any
collective bargaining agreements. 
 
Customers
 
Revenues from our largest customers, as a percentage of total revenues, for 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

  2014   2013  
Customer A   8%  7%
Customer B   6%  7%
Customer C   5%  4%
All Others   81%  82%
   100%  100%

 
Environmental Matters
 
Our operations are subject to a variety of federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the discharge of materials into the
environment or otherwise related to the protection of the environment.  Lifeloc sells cylinders of ethanol in nitrogen (UN1956, Class
2.2) for use in calibrating breath alcohol testers. The gas mixture is a hazardous material as defined by the DOT (see 49 CFR 172).
We believe we are in substantial compliance with the appropriate DOT regulations for the handling and shipment of dry gas
containers, as well as all other state or local laws governing the transportation of hazardous materials. The DOT regulations include
strict labeling and packaging requirements, as well as requirements pertaining to shipping papers and declaration forms that must be
completed by the shipper.  In addition, we provide a Material Safety Data Sheet ("MSDS") with every tank, and all employees
involved in shipping hazardous materials are required to have appropriate certification.   Failure to comply with these regulations
could result in, among other things, revocation of required licenses, administrative enforcement actions, fines and civil and criminal
liability, which could have a material impact on our business. The cost of complying with these regulations is considered as an
ongoing cost of operations, and is not material.
 
Government Regulation of the Business
 
All breath testers sold in the United States explicitly for personal use are regulated as Class I medical devices by the Food and Drug
Administration ("FDA"). These regulations apply to the manufacture and sale of our LifeGuard product, and we are subject to
inspections by the FDA to determine our compliance with these regulations.  FDA inspections are conducted periodically at the
discretion of the FDA.  As of December 31, 2014, we had not been inspected by the FDA; however, we believe we were in substantial
compliance with applicable FDA regulations.

Lifeloc has trained on and is following the requirements of OSHA's Hazardous Communications Standard of 2012 (referred to as
"HazCom 2012"). Compliance with HazCom 2012 requires providing employee information and training, labeling of chemicals used
by Lifeloc and updating MSDS to the new harmonized Safety Data Sheets ("SDS") as they become available. It also requires us to
prepare and implement a hazard communication program to follow for workers potentially exposed to hazardous chemicals.
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See also Item 1A. Risk Factors – "We are subject to a high degree of regulatory oversight and, if we do not continue to receive the
necessary regulatory approvals, our revenues may decline."
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International Regulations
 
Many countries into which our products are sold recognize the United States DOT Conforming Product list in their selection criteria or
have no regulations applicable to the sale of our products.  In the case of sales into countries that do not recognize the United States
DOT Conforming Product list in their selection criteria, our products conform to in-country developed specifications or are not subject
to significant government regulation.

State and Local Regulations
 
Portable fuel-cell based technology has been used to show "probable cause" in many state jurisdictions, based on the individual
device's DOT approval.
 
In certain states, the results of portable fuel -cell breath testers are admissible as evidence of intoxication in DUI prosecution. In other
states, infra-red technology is considered the standard for evidence of intoxication, because of its ability to perform real-time analysis
of the entire breath exhalation thereby giving it the ability to detect interference from mouth alcohol. In those states, portable fuel -cell
based breath testers are not admissible as evidence of intoxication, although they may still be used to establish probable cause.
 
Insurance

We are covered under comprehensive general liability insurance policies, which have per occurrence and aggregate limits of $1
million and $2 million, respectively, and a $5 million umbrella policy.  We maintain customary property and casualty, workers'
compensation, employer liability and other commercial insurance policies.
 
Item 1A.  Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risk factors described below. If any of the following risk factors actually occur, our business,
prospects, financial condition or results of operations would likely suffer. In such case, the trading price of our common stock could
fall, resulting in the loss of all or part of your investment. You should look at all these risk factors in total. Some risk factors may stand
on their own. Some risk factors may affect (or be affected by) other risk factors. You should not assume we have identified these
connections. You should not assume that we will always update these and future risk factors in a timely manner. We are not
undertaking any obligation to update these risk factors to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this report or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Global economic conditions could have a negative impact on our business, operating results and financial condition.

Our business can be positively or negatively affected by fluctuations in exchange rates and country by country economic conditions.
 Our international customers may increase, reduce, delay or cancel their purchases of our products if exchange rates are unfavorable
to importation.  Unfavorable economic and currency situations may force us to adjust prices downward to remain competitive. We
could incur losses if a customer's business fails and the customer is unable to pay us, or pay us on a timely basis. Likewise, if our
suppliers have difficulty in obtaining credit or in operating their businesses, they may not be able to provide us with the materials we
use to manufacture our products. Our law enforcement  business is dependent on the availability of federal and state grants to fund
new equipment purchases. Should this funding not be available or delayed our volume may be negatively affected. Our workplace
business may be affected by the health of industries with safety sensitive jobs such as oil and gas and transportation. Should these
segments experience downturn, demand for our products may be reduced.  These actions could result in reduced revenues and
higher operating costs, and have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We rely on customers who may not consistently purchase our products in the future and if we lose any one of these
customers, our revenues may decline.
 
Fourteen percent of our total sales in 2014 were attributable to two customers, with whom we do not have a long-term contract.  If
orders from those customers are not renewed, our revenues will be adversely affected.  Furthermore, at December 31, 2014, our
accounts receivable balance included approximately $156,701 or 18% from one customer.
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In the future, a small number of customers may continue to represent a significant portion of our total revenues in any given period.
These customers may not consistently purchase our products at a particular rate over any subsequent period.  A loss of any of these
customers could adversely affect our revenues.
 
We rely heavily upon the talents of our Chief Executive Officer, the loss of whom could severely damage our business.
 
Our performance depends to a large extent on a small number of key managerial personnel. In particular, we believe our success is
highly dependent upon the services and reputation of our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Barry R. Knott.  Loss of Mr. Knott's services
could severely damage our business. 
 
We must continue to be able to attract employees with the scientific and technical skills that our business requires, and if
we are unable to attract and retain such individuals, our business could be severely damaged.
 
Our ability to attract employees with a high degree of scientific and technical talent is crucial to the success of our business. There is
intense competition for the services of such persons, and we cannot guarantee that we will continue to be able to attract and retain
individuals possessing the necessary qualifications.  If we cannot attract such individuals, we may not be able to keep our products
current, bring new innovation to market or produce our products. As a result, our business could be damaged.
 
We are subject to a high degree of regulatory oversight and, if we do not continue to receive the necessary regulatory
approvals, our revenues may decline.
 
We are subject to regulation by the United States Department of Transportation ("DOT") and by various state departments of
transportation.  The Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991 requires drug and alcohol testing of safety-sensitive
transportation employees in aviation, trucking, railroads, mass transit, pipelines, and other transportation industries. The DOT Office
of Drug & Alcohol Policy & Compliance ("ODAPC") publishes, implements, and provides authoritative interpretations of these
rules.  These regulations cover all transportation employers, safety-sensitive transportation employees, and service
agents.  Manufacturers submit devices to the DOT for testing and approval.  Instruments are tested according to their model
specifications and, if passed, included on the Conforming Products List of Evidential Devices published periodically in the Federal
Register.  Law enforcement applications also require that portable breath testing instruments be included on the DOT Conforming
Products List.  Lifeloc's FC10, FC20, EV30, Phoenix and Phoenix 6.0 are included on the conforming products list.  We believe that
we were in substantial compliance with the regulations described above as of December 31, 2014 for our products sold into these
markets and states.In addition, our LifeGuard product is regulated as a Class I medical device by the Food and Drug Administration
("FDA").

The FDA and the DOT have cleared us to market the alcohol monitoring products we currently sell in the United States.  However,
further FDA or DOT approval will be required before we can domestically market additional alcohol monitoring products that we may
develop in the future.  We may also seek to sell current or future medical or drug-related products that require us to obtain FDA or
DOT clearance to market such products.  We may also be required to obtain regulatory approvals or licenses from other federal, state
or local agencies or comparable agencies in other countries.
 
We may not continue to receive FDA or DOT clearance to market our current products or we may not obtain the necessary regulatory
clearance, approvals or licenses for the marketing of any of our future products.  Also, we cannot predict the impact on our business
of FDA or DOT regulations or determinations arising from future legislation or administrative action.  If we lose FDA or DOT
permission to market our current products or we do not obtain regulatory permission to market our future products, our revenues may
decline and our business may be harmed.
 
Our business in the domestic law enforcement area is susceptible to changes in state policies and DUI laws.
 
Portable breath testers ("PBTs") are not used to the same degree in each state. Usage is determined by a complex combination of
individual state DUI laws, historical practice, and individual state directions for alcohol testing. Some states do not accept breath
alcohol testing as evidence. Other states may prefer different breath alcohol testing technology, such as infrared. Lifeloc cannot
control the direction or timing of changes to individual state DUI laws, public and political sentiment toward the use of PBTs, or
individual state preferences for a specific breath alcohol testing technology. These factors may threaten current state contracts and
future state contracts and our revenues may decline, harming our business.

Our business relies on state contracts, governed by state contracting policies that are beyond our control.
 
Many state purchases of PBTs are governed by state contracts with competitive price bids, multiple year terms and without
guarantees of purchases. Other states prefer to share PBT usage across several vendors, also without guarantees of volume. These
state practices limit Lifeloc's ability to retain current business, forecast volumes and win new business. Furthermore, a significant
amount of our law enforcement business is concentrated in six states (Arizona, California, Colorado, Michigan, Idaho, and Texas).
Loss of this business, or delays or cancellations in purchasing by these states, could seriously impact our law enforcement business.
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Third parties may infringe on our patents, and as a result, we could incur significant expense in protecting our patents or
not have sufficient resources to protect them.
 
We hold several patents that are important to our business. Although we are not currently aware of any past or present infringements
of our patents, we plan to protect these patents from infringement and obtain additional patents whenever feasible. To this end, we
have obtained confidentiality agreements from our employees and consultants and others who have access to the design of our
products and other proprietary information.  Protecting and obtaining patents, however, is both time consuming and expensive. We
therefore may not have the resources necessary to assert all potential patent infringement claims or pursue all patents that might be
available to us.  If our competitors or other third parties infringe on our patents, our business may be harmed.
 
Third parties may claim that we have infringed on their patents and as a result, we could be prohibited from using all or part
of any technology used in our products.
 
Should third parties claim a proprietary right to all or part of any technology that we use in our products, such a claim, regardless of its
merit, could involve us in costly litigation.  If successful, such a claim could also result in us being unable to freely use the technology
that was the subject of the claim, or sell products embodying such technology.  If we engage in litigation, our expenses may increase
and our business may be harmed.  If we are prohibited from using a particular technology in our products, our revenues may decline
and our business may be harmed.
 
We depend on the availability of certain key supplies and services that are available from only a few sources, and if we
experience difficulty with a supplier, we may have difficulty finding alternative sources of supply.
 
We require certain key supplies for our products, particularly fuel cells, that are available from only a few sources.  Based upon our
ordering experience to date, we believe the materials and services required for the production of our products are currently available
in sufficient quantities. However, this does not mean that we will continue to have timely access to adequate supplies of essential
materials and services in the future or that supplies of these materials and services will be available on satisfactory terms when the
need arises. Our business could be severely damaged if we become unable to procure essential materials and services in adequate
quantities and at acceptable prices.
 
From time to time, subcontractors may produce certain of our products for us, and our business is subject to the risk that these
subcontractors may fail to make timely delivery and/or become unable to acquire essential supplies and services from third parties in
a timely fashion.  If this occurs, we may not be able to deliver our products on a timely basis and our revenues may decline. Our
products and services are also from time to time used as components in the products of other manufacturers. We are therefore
subject to the risk that manufacturers that integrate our products or services into their own products may change their source of
supply to other vendors, may change their product designs in a way that eliminates our components, and/or may choose to have their
components manufactured by other means.   If this occurs, our sales may decline and our business may be harmed.
 
We may be exposed to claims of liability.

Like any manufacturer, we are and always have been exposed to liability claims resulting from the use of our products.  We maintain
product liability insurance to cover us in the event of liability claims, and as of December 31, 2014, no such claims have been
asserted or threatened against us.  However, our insurance may not be sufficient to cover all possible future product liabilities.
 
We could be liable if our business operations harmed the environment, and a failure to maintain compliance with
environmental laws could severely damage our business.
 
Our operations are subject to a variety of federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. 
From time to time, we use hazardous materials in our operations.  Although we believe that we are in material compliance with all
applicable environmental laws and regulations, our business could be severely damaged by any failure to maintain such compliance.

Our quarterly financial results vary quarter to quarter, which may adversely affect our stock price. We cannot predict with
any certainty our operating results in any particular fiscal quarter.

Our quarterly operating results may vary significantly depending upon factors such as:
 

▪ the timing of completion of significant orders;
▪ the timing and amount of our research and development expenditures;
▪ the costs of initial production in connection with new products;
▪ the availability, quality and cost of key components that go into the assembly of our products;
▪ the timing of new product introductions — both by us and by our competitors;
▪ changes in the regulatory environment and regulations under which we operate;
▪ the loss of a major customer;
▪ the timing and level of market acceptance of new products or enhanced versions of our existing products;
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▪ our ability to retain existing employees, customers and our customers' continued demand for our products and
services; and

▪ our customers' inventory levels, and levels of demand for our customers' products and services; and competitive
pricing pressures.
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We may not be able to grow or sustain revenues or achieve or maintain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis, and levels of
revenue and/or profitability may vary from one such period to another.

Identification of material weakness in internal control may adversely affect our financial results.

We are subject to the ongoing internal control provisions of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Those provisions provide
for the identification of material weaknesses in internal control. If such a material weakness is identified, it could indicate a lack of
adequate controls to generate accurate financial statements. We routinely assess our internal controls, but we cannot assure you that
we will be able to timely remediate any material weaknesses that may be identified in future periods, or maintain all of the controls
necessary for continued compliance.

We may require additional capital in the future, which may not be available or may only be available on unfavorable terms.

We monitor our capital adequacy on an ongoing basis. To the extent that our funds are insufficient to fund future operating
requirements, we may need to raise additional funds through corporate finance transactions or curtail our growth and reduce our
liabilities. Any equity, hybrid or debt financing, if available at all, may be on terms that are not favorable to us. If we cannot obtain
adequate capital on favorable terms or at all, our business, financial condition and operating results could be adversely affected.

We have a number of large, well-financed competitors who have research and marketing capabilities that are superior to
ours.
 
The industry in which we operate is highly competitive. Many of our existing and potential competitors have greater financial
resources and manufacturing capabilities, more established and larger marketing and sales organizations and larger technical staffs
than we have.  Other companies, some with greater experience in the alcohol monitoring industry, produce products and services that
compete with our products and services. If any of our competitors are successful in developing products that are superior to our
products, or competing products that sell for lower prices, this may cause a reduction in the demand for our products and a reduction
in our revenue and our profits.
 
Our products rely on technology that may become outdated or out of favor.
 
All of Lifeloc's products use fuel cell technology for the measurement of breath alcohol results. This technology has been developed
and refined over many years by Lifeloc and our major competitors. While we expect it to remain as the dominant technology in breath
testing devices, other technologies for the measurement of breath alcohol exist and are employed in other market and application
segments where the technology is more suitable or developed to the specific requirements. It is possible that future development of
these technologies could pose a risk to Lifeloc's business. See "Item 1. Business – Competition and Markets" for more information
about these other technologies.

Risks Related to Our Stock
 
Shares of our common stock lack a significant trading market.
 
Shares of our common stock are not eligible for trading on any national securities exchange. Our common stock may be quoted in the
over-the-counter market on the OTC Bulletin Board or in what are commonly referred to as "pink sheets." However, these markets
are highly illiquid. There is no assurance that an active trading market in our common stock will develop, or if such a market
develops, that it will be sustained. In addition, there is a greater chance for market volatility for securities quoted on the OTC Bulletin
Board as compared with securities traded on a national exchange. This volatility may be caused by a variety of factors, including the
lack of readily available quotations, the absence of consistent administrative supervision of "bid" and "ask" quotations and generally
lower trading volume.

Under certain circumstances, shares of our common stock may be sold without registration pursuant to the safe harbor provided in
Exchange Act Rule 144 ("Rule 144"). Any sale under Rule 144 or under any other exemption from the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the "Securities Act"), if available, or pursuant to registration of shares of common stock of present stockholders, may have
a depressive effect upon the price of our common stock in any market that may develop.
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Additionally, the price of our securities may be volatile as a result of a number of factors, including, but not limited to, the following:
 
• our ability to successfully conceive and to develop new products and services to enhance the performance characteristics and

methods of manufacture of existing products;
• our ability to retain existing customers and customers' continued demand for our products and services;
• the timing of our research and development expenditures and of new product introductions;
• the timing and level of acceptance of new products or enhanced versions of our existing products;
• price and volume fluctuations in the stock market at large which do not relate to our operating performance; and
• outside news reports which may or may not accurately convey information about the Company, its products, its

prospects and opportunities.
 
Our principal stockholder has significant voting power and may take actions that may not be in the best interests of other
stockholders.
 
Vern D. Kornelsen, Chairman of our Board of Directors, secretary, and Chief Financial Officer, beneficially owned approximately 77%
of our outstanding common stock as of December 31, 2014.  Through this ownership, Mr. Kornelsen is able to control the composition
of our Board and direct our management and policies. Accordingly, Mr. Kornelsen has the direct or indirect power to:
 
• amend our bylaws and some provisions of our articles of incorporation; and
• prevent mergers, consolidations, sales of all or substantially all our assets or other extraordinary transactions.
 
Mr. Kornelsen's significant ownership interest could adversely affect investors' perceptions of our corporate governance. In addition,
Mr. Kornelsen may have an interest in pursuing acquisitions, divestitures and other transactions that involve risks to us and you. For
example, Mr. Kornelsen could cause us to make acquisitions that increase our indebtedness or to sell revenue generating assets.
Mr. Kornelsen may from time to time acquire and hold interests in businesses that compete directly or indirectly with us.
 
Blue Sky considerations may limit sales in certain states.
 
The holders of our securities and persons who desire to purchase them in any trading market that might develop in the future should
be aware that there may be significant state law restrictions upon the ability of investors to resell our securities. Investors should
consider any secondary market for our securities to be a limited one. The "manual exemption" permits a security to be distributed in a
particular state without being registered if the company issuing the security has a listing for that security in a securities manual
recognized by the state. However, it is not enough for the security to be listed in a recognized manual. The listing entry must contain
(1) the names of issuers, officers, and directors, (2) an issuer's balance sheet, and (3) a profit and loss statement for either the fiscal
year preceding the balance sheet or for the most recent fiscal year of operations. Since June 14, 2011, we have been listed in
Standard & Poor's. While many states expressly recognize this manual, a smaller number of states declare that they "recognize
securities manuals" but do not specify the recognized manuals, making applicability of the manual exemption uncertain in those
states. The following states do not have provisions expressly recognizing the manual exemption: Alabama, Illinois, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Montana, New York, Pennsylvania, Tennessee and Virginia. While we may, in our discretion, cause our securities to be
registered under the state securities laws of these or other states, there is no guarantee that we will do so.

Compliance with changing regulations of corporate governance and public disclosure may result in additional expenses.

We are subject to certain federal, state and other rules and regulations, including those required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
new regulations promulgated by the SEC and the rules of the OTC Market.  The expense of compliance with these and other laws
relating to corporate governance and public disclosure is included in our general and administrative expenses.  These laws,
regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations in many cases, and as a result, their application in practice may
evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies, which could result in higher costs necessitated by
ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices.  We are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
and public disclosure.  As a result, we invest resources to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards, and this investment
may result in increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenue-
generating activities to compliance activities.  If our efforts to comply with new or changed laws, regulations and standards result in
different outcomes from those intended by regulatory or governing bodies, our business may be harmed.

We may issue shares in the future, diluting your interest in us.
 
We expect to issue options to purchase shares of our common stock to compensate employees, consultants and directors under our
2013 Stock Option Plan, and we may issue additional shares to raise capital.  Any such issuances will have the effect of further
diluting the interest of the holders of our securities.
 
Stockholders should not anticipate receiving cash dividends on our stock.
 
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends or distributions on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain future earnings
to support operations and to finance expansion and therefore do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in
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Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

Not required for smaller reporting companies.

Item 2.  Properties

On October 31, 2014, we purchased the commercial property the Company uses as its corporate headquarters and certain adjacent
property in Wheat Ridge, Colorado.  The building consists of 22,325 square feet, of which 10,670 are currently leased to three
tenants under leases that expire at various times ranging from May 31, 2015 to December 31, 2017. We intend to continue to lease
the space we are not occupying, but in the future may elect to expand our own operations into space currently leased to other
tenants.

Our purchase of the property was partially financed through a term loan in an original principal amount of $1,581,106, secured by a
first-priority mortgage on the property. The loan matures in November 2025.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings

We may be involved from time to time in litigation, negotiation and settlement matters that may have a material effect on our
operations or finances. We are not aware of any material pending legal proceedings, other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to
our business, to which we are a party or of which any of our property is subject.

Item 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

PART II

Item 5.  Market for Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

As of March 10, 2015, we had 82 shareholders of record. Our common stock is not listed on an established public trading market.
Since January 17, 2012, our stock has been quoted by the OTC Markets Group, Inc., in the non-NASDAQ over the counter market.
The symbol for our shares is LCTC. Trading in our common stock is limited and sporadic. Subject to the foregoing qualification, the
following table sets forth the range of bid quotations, for the fiscal quarters indicated, as quoted by OTC Markets Group, Inc., and
reflects inter-dealer prices, without retail mark up, mark down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.
 

Fiscal 2014  Bid Price  Fiscal 2013  Bid Price 

1st Quarter   
$2.32–

15.00  1st Quarter   $1.00 – 2.32 
2nd Quarter   $4.00 – 9.00  2nd Quarter   $2.32 – 2.32 
3rd Quarter   $2.75 – 9.00  3rd Quarter   $2.32 – 2.32 

4th Quarter   
$7.25 –

15.00  4th Quarter   $2.32 – 2.32 

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividend on shares of our common stock. We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends
in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to finance our operations and expand our business. Any
future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of the board of directors and will be dependent upon our financial
condition, operating results, capital requirements, and other factors the board of directors deems relevant.
 
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On December 1, 2014, we issued 15,000 shares of our common stock, valued at $132,375, as part of the purchase price paid for the
assets of STS, a company that develops and sells online drug and alcohol training and refresher courses.  In accordance with the
purchase agreement between Lifeloc and STS, the value of the stock was based on the closing quote on our stock price for a
specified period prior to closing.  This issuance of common stock constituting a portion of the total consideration paid pursuant to the
purchase agreement was made in reliance upon the exemption from securities registration afforded by Section 4(a)(2) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or another applicable exemption.

Item 6.  Selected Financial Data

Not required for smaller reporting companies.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following is a discussion of our financial condition and results of operations, and should be read in conjunction with our financial
statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.  Certain statements contained in this section are not
historical facts, including statements about our strategies and expectations about new and existing products, market demand,
acceptance of new and existing products, technologies and opportunities, market and industry segment growth, and return on
investments in products and markets.  These statements are forward-looking statements and involve substantial risks and
uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements.  All forward-
looking statements in this section are based on information available to us on the date of this document, and we assume no
obligation to update such forward-looking statements.  Readers of this Form 10-K are strongly encouraged to review the section titled
"Risk Factors."
 
Overview
 
We have been a developer and manufacturer of advanced alcohol testing instruments since 1986.  We design and produce high-
quality, precise and rapid recovery alcohol testing instruments for use in the workplace, clinics, schools, law enforcement, corrections,
and other applications.  We offer our customers accessories, service support, training and supplies.  Our internet websites are
www.lifeloc.com, www.lifeguardbreathtester.com, stsfirst.com and www.lifeloc.fr.
 
In addition, with the October 2014 purchase of our corporate headquarters and certain adjacent property, we added a new reporting
segment focused on the ownership and rental of real property through existing commercial leases. Accordingly, we have concluded
that we have two operating segments, (i) our primary business focused on developing, manufacturing and marketing "near and
remote sensing" products and solutions, including portable hand-held breathalyzers and related accessories, supplies and education,
and (ii) a secondary business focused on the rental of portions of our building to existing tenants.  See "Note 13 – Business
Segments" to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II - Item 8.

The areas in which we conduct our primary business are highly competitive and include both foreign and domestic competitors.  Our
major competitors are larger and have substantially greater resources than we do.  Furthermore, other domestic or foreign
companies, some with greater financial resources than we have, may seek to produce products or services that compete with ours.
 
We believe that our future success depends to a large degree on our ability to develop new products and services to enhance the
performance characteristics and methods of manufacture of existing products and to expand our products outside of our traditional
alcohol testing business.  Accordingly, we expect to continue to invest in research and development, to the extent funds are
available.

Outlook
 
Installed Base of Breathalyzers.  We believe the installed base of our breathalyzers will increase as the inherent risks associated with
drinking while driving, and of working in safety sensitive jobs, become more widely acknowledged and as our network of distributors
and our direct sales force grows.  We believe that increased marketing efforts, the introduction of new products and the expansion of
our sales network may provide the basis for increased sales and continuing profitable operations.  However, these measures, or any
others that we may adopt, may not result in either increased sales or continuing profitable operations.
 
Possibility of Operating Losses.  Over the past several years we have operated profitably; however, prior to that we incurred losses. 
There is no assurance that we will not incur losses in any given quarter or year in the future.
 
Sales Growth.  We expect to increase sales in the U.S. and worldwide as our network of direct customers and distributors grows,
becomes more proficient and expands the number of new accounts.  Orders for all of our products, particularly ignition interlock
components, are on an intermittent purchase order basis and there is no assurance they will continue at any given rate, or that orders
will repeat.

Sales and Marketing Expenses.  We continue our efforts to expand our domestic and international distribution capability, and we
believe that sales and marketing expenses will need to be maintained at a healthy level in order to do so.  Sales and marketing
expenses are expected to increase as we increase our direct sales representatives and marketing efforts.
  
Research and Development Expenses.  We expect to increase our research and development expenses to support refinements to
our products, and the development of additional new products.

Recent Developments

As discussed above, in October 2014, we purchased the commercial property we use as our corporate headquarters, in addition to
certain adjacent property, in Wheat Ridge, Colorado.  The building consists of 22,325 square feet, of which 10,670 are currently
leased to three tenants under leases that expire at various times ranging from May 31, 2015 to December 31, 2017. We intend to
continue to lease the space we are not occupying, but in the future may elect to expand our own operations into space currently
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In addition, in December 2014, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Superior Training Solutions, Inc. ("STS"), a company that
develops and sells online drug and alcohol training and refresher courses. The assets we acquired from STS complement our existing
drug and alcohol training courses.
 
Results of Operations
 
Net sales. Our product sales for the year ended December 31, 2014 ("FY 14") were $9,023,804, an increase of 12% from $8,043,538
in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 ("FY 13").  Business increased from the sale of new products introduced in the past three
years, and, to a lesser degree, from additional revenue attributable to our acquisition of the STS assets.  Our OEM business was
lower in FY 14 as compared to FY 13 as a result of having completed a large order in FY 13 that did not repeat in FY 14, and a
decrease in royalties from OEM customers that license our patented breath alcohol testing algorithms.  Rental income from tenants
occupying a portion of the building we purchased on October 31, 2014 was $17,647.

Royalties.  In 2012 we entered into a royalty agreement with an OEM customer which provides for the monthly payment of royalties
to us on all products containing certain of our software sold by the customer.  In 2013 we entered into a second royalty agreement
with another customer which provides for the monthly payment of royalties to us on all products containing certain of our software sold
by the customer.   As a result of lower sales by our customer, royalties decreased from $382,128 in FY 13 to $300,533 in FY 14, a
decrease of 21%.
  
Gross profit.   Gross profit for FY 14 of $4,467,857 represented an increase of 10% from gross profit of $4,046,613 for FY 13 as a
result of increased sales volume and the addition of rental income in 2014, offset in part by lower royalties and lower OEM
sales.  Cost of sales increased from $4,379,053 in FY 13 to $4,874,127, or 11%, primarily as a result of additional labor and materials
required for the increased sales volume.  Gross profit as a percentage of sales of products (gross margin) stayed relatively constant
at 50% in 2014 and in 2013.

Research and development expenses.  Research and development expenses were $1,000,266 in FY 14, an increase of $70,749 or
8% from $929,517 in FY 13.  The increase was primarily a result of increases in compensation related to research personnel.
 
Sales and marketing expenses. Sales and marketing expenses were $1,433,839 in FY 14, an increase of $282,604, or 25% from
$1,151,235 in FY 13. The increase resulted from increased marketing expenditures, headcount increases and higher sales-based
compensation due to increased sales volume.
 
General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses were $1,239,238 in FY 14, a decrease of $44,680, or
4%, from $1,283,918 in FY 13. The decrease consisted mostly of decreased compensation related to administrative personnel.

Interest expense. In connection with the financing of our building purchase on October 31, 2014 we obtained a 10-year term loan in
an initial principal amount of $1,581,106 bearing interest at 4.45% per annum and secured by a first-priority mortgage in the acquired
property, as well as a one-year $250,000 line of credit bearing interest at a rate equal to the LIBOR daily floating rate plus 2.5%,
secured by all assets of the Company, from Bank of America. As a result our interest expense increased from $0 in FY 13 to $11,913
in FY 14. There were no borrowings under the line of credit as of December 31, 2014.

Other income.  Interest income increased from $19,069 in FY 13 to $24,132 in FY 14 primarily as the result of greater cash available
for investment.  We recovered $12,000 on the Tipping Point, Inc. loan in each of FY 14 and FY 13, which accounted for all of the bad
debt recovery in both years.

Our 2015 operating plan is focused on growing sales, increasing gross profits, increasing our commitment (including additional
resources, as appropriate) to research and development and sales force, while increasing profits and positive cash flows.  We cannot
predict with certainty the expected sales, gross profit, net income or loss and usage of cash and cash equivalents for
2015.  However, we believe that cash resources and borrowing capacity will be sufficient to fund our operations for the next twelve
months under our current operating plan.  If we are unable to manage the business operations in line with our budget expectations, it
could have a material adverse effect on business viability, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.  Further, if we are
not successful in sustaining profitability and remaining at least cash flow break-even, additional capital may be required to maintain
ongoing operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We compete in a highly technical, very competitive and, in most cases, price driven alcohol testing marketplace, where products can
take years to develop and introduce to distributors and end users.  Furthermore, manufacturing, marketing and distribution activities
are regulated by the FDA, the DOT, and other regulatory bodies that, while intended to enhance the ultimate quality and functionality
of products produced, can contribute to the cost and time needed to maintain existing products and develop and introduce new
products.
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In October 2014 we were awarded a $250,000 grant from the Colorado Office of Economic Development to accelerate development
of a marijuana breathalyzer.  On October 31, 2014, we purchased the commercial property we use as our corporate headquarters
and certain adjacent property in Wheat Ridge, Colorado for a total purchase price of $1,949,139, of which we paid $368,033 in cash
and financed the remaining $1,581,106 through a 10-year term loan from Bank of America bearing interest at 4.45% per annum,
secured by a first-priority security interest in the property we acquired with the loan. In connection with the term loan, we arranged for
a one-year $250,000 line of credit from Bank of America secured by all assets of the Company.  The line of credit bears interest at a
rate calculated at the LIBOR daily floating rate plus 2.5%. At December 31, 2014 this credit facility had not been used.

Aside from the commitments under our term loan and line of credit with Bank of America, we do not have any material contractual
commitments requiring settlement in the future. See "Note 6 – Commitments and Contingencies" to our Consolidated Financial
Statements in Part II - Item 8.

In December 2014, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Superior Training Solutions, Inc. ("STS"), a company that develops
and sells online drug and alcohol training and refresher courses, for a total purchase price of $432,375, of which we paid $300,000 in
cash and $132,375 in the form of 15,000 shares of our common stock.

We have traditionally funded working capital needs through product sales and close management of working capital components of
our business.  Historically, we have also received cash from private offerings of our common stock, warrants to purchase shares of
our common stock, and notes.  In 2013 we sold 10,000 shares of common stock in a private transaction for aggregate proceeds of
$15,200 versus none in the four years prior to 2013.  Although we did not sell any shares of common stock in 2014, we did issue
15,000 shares of our common stock on December 1, 2014 in connection with our purchase of the assets of STS, as described
above.  In our earlier years, we incurred quarter to quarter operating losses to develop current product applications, utilizing a number
of proprietary and patent-pending technologies.  Although we have been profitable in recent years, we can provide no assurances
that operating losses will not occur in the future.  Should that situation arise, we may not be able to obtain working capital funds
necessary in the time frame needed and at satisfactory terms, if at all.

As of December 31, 2014, cash and cash equivalents were $2,749,254, trade accounts receivable were $855,452 and current
liabilities were $872,573 resulting in net liquid assets of $2,732,133.  We believe that the introduction of several new products during
the last several years, along with new and on-going customer relationships, will continue to generate sufficient revenues, which are
required in order for us to maintain profitability.  If these revenues are not achieved on a timely basis, we may be required to seek
additional sources of capital and/or to implement cost reduction measures, as necessary.

We made a loan of $62,500 to Tipping Point, Inc. ("TPI"), an early stage company during the second quarter of fiscal 2011.  Although
the loan was paid down by $46,000 by the end of FY 14, we do not expect to realize any significant sales to TPI in the near term.  We
have provided a reserve against the loan of $16,500.  

As a result of expected continuing growth and increased staffing needs, equipment expenditures during FY 14 were $132,461,
compared to $176,439 for FY 13.  In order to provide for expansion, we purchased our building at a total cost of $1,949,139
(consisting of cash of $368,033 and 10-year term loan in an initial principal amount of $1,581,106) of which $317,932 was allocated to
land.  On December 1, 2014 we purchased the assets of STS, a company that develops and sells online drug and alcohol training and
refresher courses, for a total purchase price of $432,375 (consisting of cash of $300,000 and 15,000 shares of our common stock
valued at $132,375).  We filed patent applications at a cost to us of $43,205 in 2014 versus $31,632 in 2013.

We generally provide a standard one-year warranty on materials and workmanship to our customers.  In 2014 we began providing a
lifetime warranty on fuel cells.  We provide for estimated warranty costs at the time product revenue is recognized.  Warranty costs
are included as a component of cost of goods sold in the accompanying statements of operations.  For the year ended December 31,
2014 and for the year ended December 31, 2013, warranty costs were not deemed significant.
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
 
Our financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles applied on a consistent basis. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
 
We regularly evaluate the accounting policies and estimates that we use to prepare our financial statements.  In general,
management's estimates are based on historical experience, on information from third party professionals, and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the facts and circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates
made by management.
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Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  The preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, sales and expenses,
and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.  On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related
to bad debts, inventories, sales returns, warranty, contingencies and litigation.  We base our estimates on historical experience and
on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.  We believe the following critical accounting policies affect
the more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements.
 
We have concluded that we have two operating segments, including our primary business which is as a developer, manufacturer and
marketer of portable hand-held breathalyzers and related accessories, supplies and education, and a second segment consisting of
renting portions of our building to existing tenants.   

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required
payments.  If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances would be required, which would increase our expenses during the periods in which any such allowances were
made.  The amount recorded as a provision for bad debts in each period is based upon our assessment of the likelihood that we will
be paid on our outstanding receivables, based on customer-specific as well as general considerations.  To the extent that our
estimates prove to be too high, and we ultimately collect a receivable previously determined to be impaired, we may record a reversal
of the provision in the period of such determination.

We reduce inventory for estimated obsolete or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the
estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions.  If actual market conditions are less
favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.  Any write-downs of inventory
would reduce our reported net income during the period in which such write-downs were applied.

Property and equipment are stated at cost, with depreciation computed over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally five
years (three years for software and technology licenses).  We use the double declining method of depreciation for property and
equipment, and the straight line method for software and technology licenses. We purchased all of the assets of STS, an online
education company, in 2014, which consisted of training courses that are amortized over 15 years using the straight line method.  In
October 2014, we purchased our building. A majority of the cost of the building is depreciated over 39 years using the straight line
method. In addition, based on the results of a third party analysis, a portion of the cost was allocated to components integral to the
building.  Such components will be depreciated over 5 and 15 years, using the double declining method and the straight line method
respectively.  Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred and major additions, replacements and improvements are
capitalized.

Stock-based compensation is presented in accordance with the guidance of Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB")
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation ("ASC 718").  Under the provisions of
ASC 718, companies are required to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards made to employees and directors
including employee stock options based on estimated fair values on the date of grant using an option-pricing model.  The value of the
portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service periods in our statement of
operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
We currently have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future material effect on
our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or
capital resources.

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not required for smaller reporting companies.

15

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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 Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 17
  
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 18
  
Consolidated Statements of Income
for the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

19

  
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
for the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

20

  
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

21

  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 22

 
 

16

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Lifeloc Technologies, Inc.
Wheat Ridge, Colorado

 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related
statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2014.
Lifeloc Technologies, Inc.'s management is responsible for these financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. The company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal
control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Lifeloc
Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the
two-year period ended December 31, 2014 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
 
 
/s/ Eide Bailly LLP

 Eide Bailly LLP

Greenwood Village, Colorado
March 18, 2015
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LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.  
Consolidated Balance Sheets  
December 31, 2014 and 2013  

     
ASSETS  

CURRENT ASSETS:  2014   2013  
 Cash  $ 2,749,254  $ 3,357,260 
Accounts receivable, net   855,452   426,248 
Inventories, net   945,425   736,697 
Income taxes receivable   83,275   131,577 
Deferred taxes   120,392   87,940 
Prepaid expenses and other   48,101   67,700 
      Total current assets   4,801,899   4,807,422 

         
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, at cost:         

 Land   317,932   - 
Building   1,631,207   - 
Training courses   432,375   - 
Production equipment   401,030   363,370 
Office equipment and software   237,724   189,472 
Sales and marketing equipment   236,722   211,427 
Less accumulated depreciation   (650,576)   (473,538)
     Total property and equipment, net   2,606,414   290,731 

         
OTHER ASSETS:         

Patents, net   80,356   40,812 
Deposits and other   69,687   12,514 
Deferred taxes, long term   7,504   4,762 
Technology licenses, net   -   3,333 
     Total other assets   157,547   61,421 

         
     Total assets  $ 7,565,860  $ 5,159,574 

         
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  

CURRENT LIABILITIES:         
Accounts payable  $ 469,570  $ 149,949 
First mortgage payable, current portion   35,262     
Customer deposits   16,018   186,682 
Accrued expenses   232,130   321,692 
Deferred revenue, current portion   86,493   69,603 
Reserve for warranty expense   33,100   23,100 
      Total current liabilities   872,573   751,026 

         
FIRST MORTGAGE PAYABLE, net of current portion   1,540,154   - 
         
DEFERRED REVENUE, net of current portion   19,746   12,532 
         
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES         
         
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:         

Common stock, no par value; 50,000,000 shares         
  authorized, 2,447,416 shares outstanding         
  (2,432,416 at December 31, 2013)   4,517,468   4,385,093 
Retained earnings   615,919   10,923 
      Total stockholders' equity   5,133,387   4,396,016 

         
      Total liabilities and stockholders' equity  $ 7,565,860  $ 5,159,574 

         

See accompanying notes.
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LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.  

Consolidated Statements of Income  
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013  

     
     
     
  2014   2013  
REVENUES:     

Product sales  $ 9,023,804  $ 8,043,538 
Royalties   300,533   382,128 
Rental income   17,647   - 
Total   9,341,984   8,425,666 

         
COST OF SALES   4,874,127   4,379,053 
         
GROSS PROFIT   4,467,857   4,046,613 
         
OPERATING EXPENSES:         

Research and development   1,000,266   929,517 
Sales and marketing   1,433,839   1,151,235 
General and administrative   1,239,238   1,283,918 
Total   3,673,343   3,364,670 

         
OPERATING INCOME   794,514   681,943 
         
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):         

Interest income   24,132   19,069 
Bad debt recovery   12,000   12,000 
Interest expense   (11,913)   - 
Total   24,219   31,069 

         
NET INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR TAXES   818,733   713,012 
         
PROVISION FOR FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES   (213,737)   (138,257)
         
NET INCOME  $ 604,996  $ 574,755 

         
NET INCOME PER SHARE, BASIC  $ 0.25  $ 0.24 

         
NET INCOME PER SHARE, DILUTED  $ 0.24  $ 0.24 

         
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES, BASIC   2,433,690   2,431,484 

         
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES, DILUTED   2,497,502   2,431,484 

         

See accompanying notes.
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LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

      Retained    
  Common Stock   Earnings    
  Shares   Amount   (Deficit)   Total  
         
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2012   2,422,416  $ 4,309,697  $ (563,832)  $ 3,745,865 
                 
Net income   -   -   574,755   574,755 
Compensation expense related to stock options   -   60,196   -   60,196 
Sale of common stock   10,000   15,200   -   15,200 
                 
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2013   2,432,416   4,385,093   10,923   4,396,016 
                 
Net income   -   -   604,996   604,996 
Common stock issued in connection with business
combination   15,000   132,375   -   132,375 
                 
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 2013   2,447,416  $ 4,517,468  $ 615,919  $ 5,133,387 

 
 

See accompanying notes.
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LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
     
     
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:  2014   2013  

Net income  $ 604,996  $ 574,755 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash         
 provided by operating activities-         
   Depreciation and amortization   205,094   199,011 
   Provision for bad debt   49,796   - 
   Deferred taxes   (35,194)   39,582 
   Compensation expense related to stock options   -   60,196 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities-         
   Accounts receivable   (479,000)   (20,927)
   Inventories   (208,728)   95,973 
   Income taxes receivable   48,302   42,552 
   Prepaid expenses and other   19,599   (36,171)
   Deposits and other   (57,173)   42,190 
   Accounts payable   319,621   67,153 
   Customer deposits   (170,664)   186,388 
   Accrued expenses   (89,562)   43,368 
   Reserve for warranty expense   10,000   - 
   Deferred revenue   24,104   (81,951)

           Net cash provided from operating activities   241,191   1,212,119 
         
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:         

Cash paid for property acquired in business combination   (368,033)   - 
Cash paid for training courses acquired in business         
  combination   (300,000)   - 
Purchases of property and equipment   (132,461)   (176,439)
Purchase of patents   (43,205)   (31,632)

           Net cash (used in) investing activities   (843,699)   (208,071)
         
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         

Principal payments made on first mortgage   (5,498)   - 
Sale of common stock   -   15,200 

           Net cash provided from (used in)         
             financing activities   (5,498)   15,200 

         
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH   (608,006)   1,019,248 
         
CASH, BEGINNING OF PERIOD   3,357,260   2,338,012 
         
CASH, END OF PERIOD  $ 2,749,254  $ 3,357,260 

         
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:         

Cash paid for interest  $ 11,913  $ - 

         
Cash paid for income tax  $ 248,930  $ 83,455 

         
Non cash investing and financing activities:         
  Mortgage issued for property and equipment acquired         
    in business combinations  $ 1,581,106  $ - 
  Stock issued for property and equipment acquired in         
    business combinations   132,275   - 

           Total non cash investing and financing         
              activities  $ 1,713,381  $ - 

         

See accompanying notes.
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LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

 
1.   ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. ("Lifeloc" or the "Company") is a Colorado based developer, manufacturer and marketer of portable hand-
held and fixed station breathalyzers and related accessories, supplies and education.  We design, produce and sell fuel-cell based
breath alcohol testing equipment.  We compete in all major segments of the breath alcohol testing instrument market, including law
enforcement, workplace, corrections, original equipment manufacturing ("OEM") and consumer markets. In addition, we offer a line of
supplies, accessories, services, and training to support customers' alcohol testing programs. We sell globally through distributors  as
well as directly to users.
 
2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements.   The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Such estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as well as disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of sales and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Fair Value Measurement.

ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ("ASC 820"), provides a comprehensive framework for measuring fair
value and expands disclosures which are required about fair value measurements. Specifically, ASC 820 sets forth a definition of fair
value and establishes a hierarchy prioritizing the inputs to valuation techniques, giving the highest priority to quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable value inputs. ASC 820 defines the hierarchy as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reported date. The types of assets
and liabilities included in Level 1 are highly liquid and actively traded instruments with quoted prices, such as equity securities
listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, but are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reported date. The types of assets and liabilities in Level 2 are typically either comparable to actively traded securities or contracts
or priced with models using highly observable inputs.

Level 3 - Significant inputs to pricing that are unobservable as of the reporting date. The types of assets and liabilities included in
Level 3 are those with inputs requiring significant management judgment or estimation, such as complex and subjective models
and forecasts used to determine the fair value of financial transmission rights.

Cash and Cash Equivalents.   For purposes of reporting cash flows, we consider all cash and highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  There were no cash equivalents as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments.   Our financial instruments consist of cash, short-term trade receivables, payables and a first
mortgage.  The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, short-term receivables, and payables approximate their fair value due
to their short term maturities.  The carrying value of the first mortgage approximates its fair value based on interest rates currently
obtainable.
 
Concentration of Credit Risk.   Financial instruments with significant credit risk include cash and accounts receivable.  The amount of
cash on deposit with three financial institutions exceeded the $250,000 federally insured limit at December 31, 2014 by
$1,998,626.  However, we believe that the financial institutions are financially sound and the risk of loss is minimal.
 
We have no significant off-balance sheet concentrations of credit risk such as foreign exchange contracts, options contracts or other
foreign hedging arrangements.
 
Note Receivable.  We made a loan of $62,500 to Tipping Point, Inc. ("TPI"), an early stage company, during the second quarter of
2011.  Although the loan has been paid down by $46,000, including a repayment of $3,000 in the fourth quarter of 2014, we do not
expect to realize any significant sales to TPI in the near term.  We have provided a reserve against the loan for the full amount,
leaving a net amount of $0, which is not included in our balance sheet at December 31, 2014. TPI was considered a related party at
the time the loan was made, as certain of our board members were also TPI board members during a portion of 2011.
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Years Ended December 31  2014   2013  
Balance, beginning of year  $ 26,267  $ 40,000 
Provision for estimated losses   49,796   - 
Write-off of uncollectible accounts   (36,063)  (13,733)
Balance, end of year  $ 40,000  $ 26,267 

  2014   2013  
Raw materials & deposits  $ 476,941  $ 283,865 
Work-in process   132,029   87,374 
Finished goods   428,955   440,458 
Total gross inventories   1,037,925   811,697 
Less reserve for obsolescence   (92,500)  (75,000)
Total net inventories  $ 945,425  $ 736,697 

Years Ended December 31  2014   2013  
Balance, beginning of year  $ 75,000  $ 45,000 
Provision for estimated obsolescence   43,894   61,538 
Write-off of obsolete inventory   (26,394)  (31,538)
Balance, end of year  $ 92,500  $ 75,000 

Accounts Receivable.  Accounts receivable are typically unsecured and are derived from transactions with and from entities primarily
located in the United States or from international distributors with a proven payment history; we require pre-payment for most
international orders.  Accordingly, we may be exposed to credit risks generally associated with the alcohol monitoring industry.  Our
credit policy calls for payment in accordance with prevailing industry standards, generally 30 days with occasional exceptions of up to
60 days for large established international customers.  We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of our customers to make required payments.  A summary of the activity in our allowance for doubtful accounts is as
follows:

 
The net accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2014 of $855,452 included an account from one customer of $156,701 (18%)
and no more than 12% from any one other single customer. The net accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2013 of $426,248
included an account from one customer of $152,855 (36%) and no more than 7% from any one other customer.

Inventories.   Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market. We reduce inventory for estimated obsolete
or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon
assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by
management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.  At December 31, 2014 and 2013, inventory consisted of the
following:
 

 
A summary of the activity in our inventory reserve for obsolescence is as follows:
 

 
Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are stated at cost, with depreciation computed over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, generally five years; three years for software and technology licenses; 15 years for training courses; 39 years for the cost
of the building we purchased in October 2014.  We utilize the double-declining method of depreciation for property and equipment,
and the straight-line method of depreciation for software, training courses, and the building, due to the expected usage of these
assets over time. These methods are expected to continue throughout the life of the assets.  Maintenance and repairs are expensed
as incurred and major additions, replacements and improvements are capitalized.  Depreciation expense for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $198,100 and $144,432 respectively.
 
Long-Lived Assets.   Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. A long-lived asset is considered impaired when estimated future cash flows
related to the asset, undiscounted and without interest, are insufficient to recover the carrying amount of the asset. If deemed
impaired, the long-lived asset is reduced to its estimated fair value. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of
their carrying amount or estimated fair value less cost to sell.  Impairments of $1,796 and $0 were recorded for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 respectively.
 
Technology Licenses.  In 2010 we entered into a technology transfer agreement with an unrelated third-party manufacturer of fuel
cells, pursuant to which we acquired a perpetual-term license to technology for the manufacture of fuel cells.  We made three equal
lump-sum payments of $40,000 each, based on achievement of milestones related to our establishment of successful production
facilities.  The total, $120,000, is being amortized over three years commencing in 2011, using the straight line method, with
amortization expense of $3,333 for the year 2014 and $40,000 for the year 2013. 
 
In 2011 we acquired a software license relating to Kiosk software technology for $25,000, which we amortized over 2 years ending in
2013, using the straight line method. Amortization expense was $0 for the year 2014 and $11,806 for the year 2013.
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  2014   2013  
Patents issued  $ 22,775  $ 22,775 
Patent applications   74,634   31,632 
Accumulated amortization   (17,053)  (13,595)
Total net patents  $ 80,356  $ 40,812 

  2014   2013  
Compensation  $ 157,888  $ 230,032 
Rebates   21,280   68,325 
Property and other taxes   44,810   7,844 
401(k) plan and health insurance   8,152   8,078 
Lease normalization   -   7,413 
Total accrued expenses  $ 232,130  $ 321,692 

Patents.   The costs of applying for patents are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the patent's
economic or legal life (20 years for utility patents in the United States, and 14 years for design patents).  Amortization expense for the
year ended December 31, 2014 was $3,661 and for the year ended December 31, 2013 it was $2,773.  Capitalized costs are
expensed if patents are not granted.  We review the carrying value of our patents periodically to determine whether the patents have
continuing value and such reviews could result in the conclusion that the recorded amounts have been impaired.  A summary of our
patents at December 31, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
 

 
Accrued Expenses.  We have accrued various expenses in our December 31 balance sheets, as follows:
 

 
Product Warranty Reserve.  We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time sales are recognized. Our warranty
obligation is based upon historical experience and will be affected by product failure rates and material usage incurred in correcting a
product failure. Should actual product failure rates or material usage costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated
warranty liability would be required.  A summary of the activity in our product warranty reserve is as follows:
 
Years Ended December 31  2014   2013  
Balance, beginning of year  $ 23,100  $ 23,100 
Provision for estimated warranty claims   14,425   19,080 
Claims made   (4,425)  (19,080)
Balance, end of year  $ 33,100  $ 23,100 

 
Income Taxes.  We account for income taxes under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740, "Accounting for
Income Taxes" ("ASC 740"). ASC 740 requires recognition of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the expected future income
tax consequences, based on enacted tax laws, of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and
liabilities. ASC 740 also requires recognition of deferred tax assets for the expected future tax effects of all deductible temporary
differences, loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards.  Deferred tax assets are then reduced, if deemed necessary, by a
valuation allowance for the amount of any tax benefits which, more likely than not based on current circumstances, are not expected
to be realized.

ASC 740 prescribes a comprehensive model for how companies should recognize, measure, present, and disclose in their financial
statements, uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under ASC 740, tax positions must initially be
recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax
authorities. Such tax positions must initially and subsequently be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater
than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position and
relevant facts.  For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, we did not have any interest or penalties or any significant
uncertain tax positions.
 
Revenue Recognition.   Revenue from product sales is generally recorded when we ship the product and title has passed to the
customer, provided that we have evidence of a customer arrangement and can conclude that collection is probable.  The prices at
which we sell our products are fixed and determinable at the time we accept a customer's order. We recognize revenue from sales to
stocking distributors when there is no right of return, other than for normal warranty claims, and generally have no ongoing
obligations related to product sales, except for normal warranty.
 
Deferred revenues arising from service and extended warranty contracts are booked as sales over their life on a straight-line basis.
Supplies are recognized as sales when they are shipped.  Training revenues are recognized at the time the training occurs.  We have
discontinued arranging for customer financing and leasing through unrelated third parties and instead are providing for customer
financing and leasing ourselves which we recognize as revenue over the applicable lease term.  Occasionally, we rent used
equipment to customers, and in those cases, we recognize the revenues as they are earned over the life of the contract. 
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Royalty income is recognized in accordance with agreed upon terms, when performance obligations are satisfied, the amount is fixed
or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.
 
The sales of licenses to our training courses are recognized as revenue at the time of sale.

Rental income from space leased to our tenants is recognized in the month in which it is due.

On occasion we receive customer deposits for future product orders.  Customer deposits are initially recorded as a liability and
recognized as revenue when the product is shipped and title has passed to the customer.
 
Deferred Revenue.  Deferred revenues arise from service contracts and from development contracts.  Revenues from service
contracts are recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the contract, generally one year.  However, there are occasions when
they are written for longer terms up to four years.  The revenues from that portion of the contract that extend beyond one year are
shown in our balance sheet as long term.  Deferred revenues also result from progress payments received on development
contracts; those revenues are recognized when the contract is complete.  All development contracts are for less than one year and all
deferred revenues from this source are shown in our balance sheet as short term.

Grants.  We apply for and receive job training and other grants.  In September 2014 we were notified that we had been awarded a
$250,000 grant from the Colorado Office of Economic Development to accelerate development of a marijuana breathalyzer that is
currently under development.  Grants are recognized as reductions of expense when received.  In 2014 and 2013, we received
expense reimbursement grants of $45,868 and $24,981 respectively.

Rebates.  Our rebate program is available to certain of our North American workplace distributors in good standing who are
responsible for sales equaling at least $30,000 in one calendar year.  Distributors who meet the required sales threshold automatically
earn a rebate equal to between 1 and 10 percent of that distributor's total sales of the Company's products.  We accrue for these
rebates monthly; they are shown in the our balance sheets as accrued expenses and are included in sales and marketing expense in
our statements of income.

Rent Expense.  We recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis over the reasonably assured lease term as defined in ASC Topic
840, Leases ("ASC 840"). As a result of purchasing our building, we did not incur rent expense after October 31, 2014.
 
Research and Development Expenses.  We expense research and development costs for products and processes as incurred.
 
Medical Device Tax.  In March 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act was enacted in the United States. This
legislation includes a provision that imposes a 2.3% excise tax on the sale of certain medical devices by a manufacturer, producer or
importer of such devices in the United States after December 31, 2012.  We expense the medical device tax in General and
Administrative Expense.

Stock-Based Compensation.  Stock-based compensation is presented in accordance with the guidance of ASC Topic 718,
Compensation – Stock Compensation ("ASC 718").  Under the provisions of ASC 718, companies are required to estimate the fair
value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model.  The value of the portion of the award that
is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service periods in our statement of income.

ASC 718 requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing
model.  The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service
periods in the accompanying statement of income.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of share-based payment
awards that is ultimately expected to vest during the period.  We used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model ("Black-Scholes
model") to determine fair value. Our determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-
pricing model is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective variables.
These variables include, but are not limited to our expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, and actual and projected
employee stock option exercise behaviors. Although the fair value of employee stock options is determined in accordance with ASC
718 using an option-pricing model, that value may not be indicative of the fair value observed in a willing buyer/willing seller market
transaction.
 
Stock-based compensation expense recognized under ASC 718 for fiscal years 2014 and 2013 was $0 and $60,196, respectively,
which consisted of stock-based compensation expense related to employee stock options.  Stock-based compensation expense
related to employee stock options under ASC 718 for 2013 was allocated to General and Administrative Expense.
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Segment Reporting.   We have concluded that we have two operating segments, including our primary business which is as a
developer, manufacturer and marketer of portable hand-held breathalyzers and related accessories, supplies and education.  As a
result of purchasing our building on October 31, 2014, we have a second segment consisting of renting portions of our building to
existing tenants, whose leases expire at various times until December 31, 2017.  

Basic and Diluted Income and Loss per Common Share.  Net income or loss per share is calculated in accordance with ASC Topic
260, Earnings Per Share ("ASC 260").  Under the provisions of ASC 260, basic net income or loss per common share is computed by
dividing net income or loss for the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period.  Diluted net
income or loss per share is computed by dividing the net income or loss for the period by the weighted average number of common
and potential common shares outstanding during the period if the effect of the potential common shares is dilutive.  Dilution from
potential common shares outstanding at December 31, 2014 was $0.01 per share.  There was no dilution from potential common
shares outstanding at December 31, 2013 because the market price of our shares was less than the exercise price of the stock
options outstanding.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements.  We have reviewed all recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting pronouncements.  The
Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09 (Revenue from Contracts with Customers),
which is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016.  We have not yet assessed the impact, if any, of
adopting this standard.

3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Building and land.  On October 31, 2014 we purchased the building formerly leased by us for a total price of $1,949,139, of which
$317,932 was allocated to land.  The allocation between building and land was based on Level 3 inputs and was determined by
management based on estimates of rent and return on investment analyses.  Based on a third party analysis, we allocated a portion
of the building cost to its components.  The components are depreciated over 5 and 15 years, using double declining depreciation
methods, and the building is depreciated over 39 years using the straight line method.

Approximately 48% of the building is leased to third party tenants pursuant to lease agreements expiring on various dates ranging to
December 31, 2017.  Rental revenue and operating income included in our statement of income for the year ended December 31,
2014 were $17,647 and $9,873 respectively.

We estimate that net earnings from rental units as though the combination took place at the beginning of the years ended December
31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows.

 
 

2014
(Unaudited)  

2013
(Unaudited) 

Rental income  $ 105,880  $ 105,880 
Expenses:         
  Depreciation   59,150   59,150 
  Maintenance   20,000   20,000 
  Property taxes   18,000   18,000 
  Insurance   4,800   4,800 
  Total expenses   101,950   101,950 
  Net profit  $ 3,930  $ 3,930 

Future rental income and related expenses will depend on whether existing leases are renewed.

The purpose of this acquisition was to provide for potential growth and the need for additional space.

Training Courses.  On December 1, 2014 we acquired all of the assets of Superior Training Solutions, Inc. ("STS") for $300,000 cash
plus 15,000 shares of our common stock valued at $132,375, reflecting a total purchase price of $432,375.  In accordance with the
purchase agreement between Lifeloc and STS, the value of the stock was based on the closing quote on our stock price for a
specified period prior to closing.  Based on Level 3 inputs which consisted of estimates of future cash flows, the entire purchase price
was allocated to training courses, which will be depreciated over 15 years using the straight line method.   Revenues are generated
by selling licenses to direct customers as well as resellers, and are recognized as earned revenue at the time of sale.

Data that would enable us to present the amounts of revenue and earnings of STS as though the combination took place at the
beginning of the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are unavailable to us.

The purpose of this acquisition is to expand our offering of online substance abuse training courses and of online reasonable
suspicion training courses.
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Estimated future annual amortization relating to the training courses is $28,825.
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STOCK OPTIONS
OUTSTANDING  

  
Number

Outstanding   

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price
per Share  

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2012   23,000  $ 3.69 
Granted   69,000  $ 2.32 
Exercised   -   - 
Forfeited/expired   -   - 
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2013   92,000  $ 2.66 
Granted   -   - 
Exercised   -   - 
Forfeited/expired   -   - 
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2014   92,000  $ 2.66 

4.  STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
 
Stock Option Plan.   We adopted our now-expired 2002 Stock Option Plan (the "2002 Plan") to promote the Company's and its
stockholders' interests by helping us to attract, retain and motivate our key employees and associates. Under the terms of the 2002
Plan, our Board of Directors (the "Board") may grant either "nonqualified" or "incentive" stock options, as defined by the Internal
Revenue Code and related regulations. The purchase price of the shares subject to a stock option will be the fair market value of our
common stock on the date the stock option is granted.  Generally, vesting of stock options occurs immediately at the time of the grant
of such option and all stock options must be exercised within five years from the date granted. The number of common shares
reserved for issuance under the Plan is 375,000 shares of common stock, subject to adjustment for dividend, stock split or other
relevant changes in our capitalization.  The Plan expired March 4, 2012.  In January 2013 our board of directors adopted a new Plan
(the "2013 Plan"), which was approved by our shareholders at their regular annual meeting on April 1, 2013. The 2013 Plan provides
for 150,000 shares to be reserved for issuance under the new Plan on terms similar to those of the expired Plan.

Under ASC 718, the value of each employee stock option was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model for the
purpose of financial information in accordance with ASC 718. The use of a Black-Scholes model requires the use of actual employee
exercise behavior data and the use of a number of assumptions including expected volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected
dividends. Employee stock options for 0  and 69,000 shares of stock were granted during fiscal years 2014 and 2013,
respectively.  The assumptions for employee stock options granted in 2013 are summarized as follows:

Risk-free interest rate  1.4%  
Expected life (in years)  5.0  
Expected volatility  41%  
Expected dividend  0%  
 
Cumulative compensation cost recognized in net income or loss with respect to options that are forfeited prior to vesting is adjusted
as a reduction of compensation expense in the period of forfeiture. The volatility of the stock is based on a comparable public
company's historical volatility since our stock is rarely traded.  Fair value computations are highly sensitive to the volatility factor; the
greater the volatility, the higher the computed fair value of options granted.
 
The total fair value of options granted was computed to be approximately $0 and $60,196 for the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively.  Effects of stock-based compensation, net of the effect of forfeitures, totaled $0 and $60,196 for the years
2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Black-Scholes model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions and
are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the use of assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility.
Because our employee stock options have characteristics significantly different than those of traded options, and because changes in
the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's opinion, the existing models do not
necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of our employee stock options. A summary of our stock option activity
and related information for equity compensation plans approved by security holders for each of the fiscal years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013 is as follows:

A summary of our stock option activity and related information for each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 is as
follows:
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The following table summarizes information about employee stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2014:
 

  STOCK OPTIONS OUTSTANDING   STOCK OPTIONS EXERCISABLE  

Range of Exercise
Prices   

Number
Outstanding   

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life (in Years)  

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price
per Share   

Number
Exercisable   

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

per Share  
 $3.69    23,000    1.9   $3.69    23,000    $3.69  
 $2.32    69,000    3.75   $2.32    69,000    $2.32  
     92,000           92,000      

Of the 92,000 options exercisable as of December 31, 2014, all are incentive stock options. The exercise price of all options granted
through December 31, 2014 has been equal to or greater than the fair market value, as determined by the Board.  As of December
31, 2014, 81,000 options exercisable for our common stock remain available for grant under the 2013 Plan.
 
5.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we paid a consulting fee of $15,000 to a director.  No consulting fee was paid during the
year ended December 31, 2014.

6.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 
Mortgage Expense. We purchased our facilities in Wheat Ridge, Colorado on October 31, 2014 for $1,949,139 and executed a first
mortgage on all assets in the amount of $1,581,106 with Bank of America for a portion of the purchase price.  The note bears interest
at 4.45% per annum, and is payable in 120 equal monthly installments of $8,801 including interest.  Our minimum future principal
payments on this first mortgage, by year, are as follows:

Year   Amount  
2015   $ 35,262 
2016    36,689 
2017    35,576 
2018    40,353 
2019    42,211 
2020 - 2024    1,385,325 
Total    1,575,416 
Less current portion    (35,262)
Long term portion   $ 1,540,154 

Rent Expense. Rent expense for our facilities for the 10 months ended December 31, 2014 was $88,131 and for the year ended
December 31, 2013 it was $106,653.  As a result of purchasing our building, we did not incur rent expense after October 31, 2014.
 
Employee Severance Benefits. Our obligation with respect to employee severance benefits is minimized by the "at will" nature of the
employee relationships.  As of December 31, 2014 we had no obligation with respect to contingent severance benefit obligations.

Purchase Orders. Outstanding purchase orders issued to vendors in the ordinary course of business totaled $937,932 at December
31, 2014.
 
Other Material Contractual Commitments. Aside from the credit facility commitments, we do not have any material contractual
commitments requiring settlement in the future.

Regulatory Commitments. With respect to our LifeGuard product, we are subject to regulation by the United States Food and Drug
Administration ("FDA").  The FDA provides regulations governing the manufacture and sale of our LifeGuard product, and we are
subject to inspections by the FDA to determine our compliance with these regulations.  FDA inspections are conducted periodically at
the discretion of the FDA.  As of December 31, 2014, we had not been inspected by the FDA; however, we believe we are in
substantial compliance with all known regulations. We are also subject to regulation by the DOT and by various state departments of
transportation so far as our other products are concerned.  We believe that we are in substantial compliance with all known applicable
regulations.
 
7.  LINE OF CREDIT

As part of the long-term financing of our property purchased on October 31, 2014, we obtained a one-year $250,000 revolving line of
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credit facility with Bank of America, which matures on October 31, 2015 and bears interest at a rate equal to the LIBOR daily floating
rate plus 2.5%.  The revolving line of credit facility is secured by all personal property and assets, whether now owned or hereafter
acquired, wherever located.  There was no balance due on the line of credit as of December 31, 2014.
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8.  INCOME TAXES
 
We account for income taxes under ASC 740, which requires the use of the liability method.  ASC 740 provides that deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recorded based on the differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes, referred to as temporary differences.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of each period are
determined using the currently enacted tax rates applied to taxable income in the periods in which the deferred tax assets and
liabilities are expected to be settled or realized.

Our income tax provision is summarized below:
 

Years Ended  

December
31,

2014   

December
31,

2013  
Current:     
  Federal  $ 208,081  $ 158,101 
  State   40,849   32,972 
  Total current   248,930   191,073 
Deferred:         
  Federal   (30,905)  34,759 
  State   (4,288)  4,823 
  Total deferred   (35,193)  39,582 
Refunds from amending prior years:         
  Federal   -   (80,852)
  State   -   (11,546)
  Total refunds   -   (92,398)
Total  $ 213,737  $ 138,257 

 
The refunds from amending prior years arose as a result of an additional deduction for domestic production activities.

The items accounting for the difference between income taxes computed at the federal statutory rate and the provision for income
taxes consists of the following:
 

Years Ended  

December
31,

2014   

December
31,

2013  
Federal statutory rate  $ 286,086  $ 242,424 
Effect of:         
  State taxes, net of federal tax benefit   36,561   37,795 
  Research & development credit   (78,005)  (72,814)
  Other   (30,905)  (69,148)
Total  $ 213,737  $ 138,257 

 
The components of the deferred tax asset are as follows:
 

Years Ended  

December
31,

2014   

December
31,

2013  
Current Deferred Tax Assets:     
  Deferred income  $ 32,867  $ 26,449 
  Bad debt reserve   21,470   20,811 
  Accrued vacation   18,327   16,702 
  Inventory reserve   35,150   15,200 
  Warranty reserve   12,578   8,778 
  Total current deferred tax assets   120,392   87,940 
Long Term Deferred Tax Assets:         
  Deferred income   7,504   4,762 
  $ 127,896  $ 92,702 

9.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 
We were not involved or party to any legal proceedings at December 31, 2013 or December 31, 2014, and therefore made no
accruals for legal proceedings in either 2013 or 2014.
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10.  MAJOR CUSTOMERS/SUPPLIERS
 
We depend on sales that are generated from our customers' ongoing usage of alcohol testing instruments.  One customer contributed
8% ($736,458 to our total sales in 2014, a second customer contributed 6% ($549,867), a third customer contributed 5% ($471,432),
and no other customer contributed more than 5%.  Two customers each contributed 7% ($599,712) to our total sales in 2013, with no
other customer contributing more than 4% ($325,236).  In making this determination, we considered the federal government, state
governments, local governments, and foreign governments each as a single customer.  In 2014, we depended upon three vendors
for approximately 24% of our purchases (three vendors and 28% respectively in 2013).
 
11.  DEFINED CONTRIBUTION EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN
 
We have adopted a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan ("401(k) Plan") which covers all full-time employees who have completed 3 months of
full-time continuous service and are age eighteen or older. Participants may defer up to 100% of their gross pay up to 401(k) Plan
limits.  Participants are immediately vested in their contributions.  We may make discretionary matching contributions based on
corporate financial results for the year, which was determined to be 3% of the total payroll of the participating employees in 2014 and
2013.  In 2014 and 2013 we contributed $46,766 and $38,966 respectively.  The participants vest in Company contributions based on
years of service, with a participant fully vested after six years of credited service.
 
12.  LICENSE OF SOFTWARE
 
In 2012 we granted a non-exclusive license to Smart Start Inc. for the use of our patented breath alcohol testing algorithms.  The
agreement provides for termination with 6 months notice, and further provides for royalties based on the number of units sold which
incorporate our software.  The transaction is being accounted for under the guidance of ASC 605-10, Revenue Recognition, which
states, in part, revenue can be recognized when collection of the fee agreement can be reasonably assured.

13.  BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We currently have two business segments:  (i) the sale of physical products ("Products", including portable hand-held breathalyzers
and related accessories, supplies, education, training, and royalties from development contracts with OEM manufacturers), and (ii)
rental of a portion of our building ("Rentals").  There was only one business segment, Products, in the year ended December 31,
2013.  The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.

Operating profits for these segments excludes unallocated corporate items.  Administrative and staff costs were commonly used by
all business segments and were indistinguishable.

The following sets forth information about the operations of the business segments:

 

 

Year Ended
December 31,

2014  
Revenue:   
  Products  $ 9,324,337 
  Rentals   17,647 
  Total  $ 9,341,984 

     
Gross profit:     
  Products  $ 4,457,984 
  Rentals   9,873 
  Total  $ 4,467,857 

     
Interest expense:     
  Products  $ 6,195 
  Rentals   5,718 
  Total  $ 11,913 

There were no intersegment revenues.

As of December 31, 2014, $935,587 of our assets were used in the Rentals segment, with the remainder, $6,630,273, used in the
Products and unallocated segments.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

We evaluated subsequent events through the date the financial statements were issued and determined that none have occurred that
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would require recognition in the financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements except that we revised a
development agreement which will, in the ordinary course of business, require additional payments by us of $99,615 during the year
ending December 31, 2015.  In addition, 6,700 stock options were exercised at $2.32 apiece in the first quarter of 2015.
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Item 9.  Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
 
None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our management has evaluated, under the supervision and
with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) (the "Exchange Act").
 Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission's ("SEC") rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  Based on this
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of December 31, 2014.
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 
(a)  Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2014 based on the criteria in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO") in 2014.  Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the COSO in 2014, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2014.

(b)  Attestation report of the registered public accounting firm.

This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal
control over financial reporting. Management's report was not subject to attestation by our independent registered public accounting
firm pursuant to rules of the SEC that permit us to provide only management's report in this Annual Report.
 
(c)   Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 
There were no significant changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2014
that have materially affected, or that are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
 
Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control
system's objectives will be met.  Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, do not
expect that the Company's disclosure controls will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud.  Further, the design of a control system
must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their
costs.  Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected.  These inherent limitations include the realities
that judgments in decision making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake.  Controls can
also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the
controls.  The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and
there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.  Over time,
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with associated
policies or procedures.  Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected.

 
Item 9B.  Other Information

None.
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PART III

Item 10.   Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
 

Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference from the registrant's definitive proxy statement for its 2015
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed within 120 days after December 31, 2014.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation
 

Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference from the registrant's definitive proxy statement for its 2015
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed within 120 days after December 31, 2014.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters
 

Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference from the registrant's definitive proxy statement for its 2015
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed within 120 days after December 31, 2014.

 
The following table summarizes certain information regarding our equity compensation plan as of December 31, 2014:

 
 
 
Plan Category  

Number of
securities to be

issued upon
exercise of
outstanding

options   

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding
options   

Number of
securities
remaining

available for future
issuance under

equity
compensation

plans  
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders   92,000  $ 2.66   81,000 
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders   -     -      - 

Total   92,000  $ 2.66   81,000 

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
 

Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference from the registrant's definitive proxy statement for its 2015
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed within 120 days after December 31, 2014.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services
 

Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference from the registrant's definitive proxy statement for its 2015
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed within 120 days after December 31, 2014.
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents filed as part of this Annual Report or incorporated by reference:

 (1) Our consolidated financial statements are provided under Item 8 of this Annual Report.

(b) The following exhibits are filed with this Annual Report or incorporated by reference, as indicated:
 
Exhibit No.  Description of Exhibit
3.1  Articles of Incorporation, dated as of December 29, 1983 (1)
3.2  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of July 10, 1986 (1)
3.3  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of August 18, 1986 (1)
3.4  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of April 18, 1988 (1)
3.5  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of April 1, 1991 (1)
3.6  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of May 10, 1993 (1)
3.7  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of May 11, 1992 (1)
3.8  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of November 17, 1997 (1)
3.9  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of July 15, 1998 (1)
3.10  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of April 1, 1994 (1)
3.11  Bylaws (3)
4.1  Form of Certificate representing Common Stock (1)
10.1  2002 Stock Option Plan (1)
10.2  Lease by and between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. and Ward West Properties LLC, dated December 12, 2006 (1)
10.3  First Lease Amendment and Extension, dated May 1, 2010, to the Lease by and between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc.

and Ward West Properties LLC, dated December 12, 2006 (1)
10.4  Contract No. 071B0200005 between the State of Michigan and Lifeloc Technologies, Inc., dated October 5, 2009 (1)
10.5  Technology Transfer Agreement between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. and Fuel Cell Sensors, dated June 1, 2010 (1)
10.6  Form of Standard Distribution Agreement(1)
10.7  Business Loan Agreement between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. and Citywide Banks, dated May 11, 2010, as amended

(1)
10.8  Representation Agreement between Crossco Manufacturers Representatives, Inc. and Lifeloc Technologies, Inc.,

dated February 2, 2009(2)
10.9  Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. and Superior Training Solutions, Inc., dated

December 1, 2014
10.10  Purchase Agreement by and between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. and Ward West Properties LLC, dated August 13,

2014
10.11  Loan Agreement with Bank of America (Term Loan), dated October 29, 2014
10.12  Deed of Trust with Bank of America, dated October 29, 2014
10.13  Security Agreement with Bank of America, dated October 29, 2014
10.14  Loan Agreement with Bank of America (Line of Credit), dated October 29, 2014
23.1  Consent of Eide Bailly LLP (contained in Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - REPORT OF

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM, in this Annual Report)
31.1  Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant To Section 302 Of The Sarbanes—Oxley Act Of 2002
31.2  Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant To Section 302 Of The Sarbanes—Oxley Act Of 2002
32.1  Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2  Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101  Interactive Data Files Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T.
 

(1) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form 10-12G, filed on March 31, 2011.
(2) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form 10-12G (Amendment 1), filed on May 11, 2011.
(3) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 4, 2012.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: March 20, 2015
 
 LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.  
    
 By: /s/  Barry R. Knott  
  Barry R. Knott  
  Chief Executive Officer  
    

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

     
/s/ Barry R. Knott   March 20, 2015  
Barry R. Knott     
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
Director

    

 
     
/s/ Vern D. Kornelsen   March 20, 2015  
Vern D. Kornelsen     
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
Director

    

 
     
/s/ Kristie L. LaRose   March 20, 2015  
Kristie L. LaRose
Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

    

     
/s/ Robert Greenlee   March 20, 2015  
Robert Greenlee
Director

    

 
     
/s/ Wayne Willkomm   March 20, 2015  
Wayne Willkomm     
Director     
 
     
/s/ Gurumurthi Ravishankar   March 20, 2015  
Gurumurthi Ravishankar     
President
Director
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

 
Exhibit No.  Description of Exhibit
3.1  Articles of Incorporation, dated as of December 29, 1983 (1)
3.2  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of July 10, 1986 (1)
3.3  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of August 18, 1986 (1)
3.4  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of April 18, 1988 (1)
3.5  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of April 1, 1991 (1)
3.6  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of May 10, 1993 (1)
3.7  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of May 11, 1992 (1)
3.8  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of November 17, 1997 (1)
3.9  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of July 15, 1998 (1)
3.10  Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated as of April 1, 1994 (1)
3.11  Bylaws (3)
4.1  Form of Certificate representing Common Stock (1)
10.1  2002 Stock Option Plan (1)
10.2  Lease by and between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. and Ward West Properties LLC, dated December 12, 2006 (1)
10.3  First Lease Amendment and Extension, dated May 1, 2010, to the Lease by and between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc.

and Ward West Properties LLC, dated December 12, 2006 (1)
10.4  Contract No. 071B0200005 between the State of Michigan and Lifeloc Technologies, Inc., dated October 5, 2009 (1)
10.5  Technology Transfer Agreement between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. and Fuel Cell Sensors, dated June 1, 2010 (1)
10.6  Form of Standard Distribution Agreement(1)
10.7  Business Loan Agreement between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. and Citywide Banks, dated May 11, 2010, as amended

(1)
10.8  Representation Agreement between Crossco Manufacturers Representatives, Inc. and Lifeloc Technologies, Inc.,

dated February 2, 2009(2)
10.9  Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. and Superior Training Solutions, Inc., dated

December 1, 2014
10.10  Purchase Agreement by and between Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. and Ward West Properties LLC, dated August 13,

2014
10.11  Loan Agreement with Bank of America (Term Loan), dated October 29, 2014
10.12  Deed of Trust with Bank of America, dated October 29, 2014
10.13  Security Agreement with Bank of America, dated October 29, 2014
10.14  Loan Agreement with Bank of America (Line of Credit), dated October 29, 2014
23.1  Consent of Eide Bailly LLP (contained in Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - REPORT OF

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM, in this Annual Report)
31.1  Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant To Section 302 Of The Sarbanes—Oxley Act Of 2002
31.2  Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant To Section 302 Of The Sarbanes—Oxley Act Of 2002
32.1  Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2  Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101  Interactive Data Files Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T.
 

(1) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form 10-12G, filed on March 31, 2011.
(2) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form 10-12G (Amendment 1), filed on May 11, 2011.
(3) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 4, 2012.
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Exhibit 10.9
 
 
 

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Asset Purchase Agreement is made and entered into as of December 1, 2014, by and among Lifeloc Technologies, Inc., a
Colorado corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Buyer"), Superior Training Solutions, Inc., a Texas corporation (hereinafter referred
to as "Seller"), and Gary Glisan and J. Mac Allen (each a "Selling Stockholder" and together the "Selling Stockholders").

WHEREAS, Seller is engaged in the business of writing, designing, and offering education and training courses for sale (the
"Business"),

WHEREAS, the Selling Stockholders hold 100% of the equity interest in Seller, and as such will indirectly receive substantially all of
the consideration to be paid in connection with the sale of the Business, and

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement set forth below, Seller agrees to sell, and Buyer agrees to
purchase, all of the assets related to the Business and to assume no liabilities related to the Business other than the Assumed
Liabilities (as defined below).

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon the mutual covenants and premises set forth in the Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
PURCHASE AND SALE OF ASSETS

1.1            Purchase and Sale of Assets. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Buyer agrees to
purchase, and Seller agrees to sell, all of the Seller's right, title and interest in the assets of the Seller set forth on Schedule 1.1 hereto
(the "Purchased Assets"), free and clear of any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, security interest, claim or other encumbrance
("Encumbrance").

 
1.2            No Liabilities. Buyer shall not assume any liabilities or obligations of Seller of any kind, whether known or unknown,

contingent, matured or otherwise, whether currently existing or hereinafter created, other than those liabilities described on Schedule
1.2 hereto (the "Assumed Liabilities").

 
1.3            Purchase Price.
 

(a)            The aggregate purchase price for the Purchased Assets shall be as follows (the "Purchase Price"):
 

(i) A cash payment of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) payable in
cash by Buyer to Seller, by wire transfer, certified funds or in such other manner reasonably acceptable to
Seller; and

(ii) 15,000 duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable shares of
Buyer's common stock, no par value (the "Shares"), which will be valued for tax and accounting purposes
at the average closing price quoted on Yahoo! Finance (http://finance.yahoo.com) for the ten trading days
preceding the Closing, to be issued to the persons and in the proportions set forth on Schedule 1.3(a)(ii)
hereto.
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(b)            The Buyer shall pay the Purchase Price to Seller at the Closing (as defined herein) in cash, by wire transfer of

immediately available funds in accordance with the wire transfer instructions set forth in Schedule 1.3 hereto.
 

1.4            Allocation of Purchase Price. Seller and Buyer agree to allocate the Purchase Price among the Purchased Assets
for all purposes (including tax and financial accounting) in accordance with Schedule 1.4 hereto. Buyer and Seller shall file all tax
returns (including amended returns and claims for refund) and information reports in a manner consistent with such allocation.

ARTICLE II
CLOSING

 
2.1            Closing. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the "Closing") shall take place

simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement on the date of this Agreement (the "Closing Date") at the offices of Davis
Graham & Stubbs LLP, 1550 17th Street, Suite 500, Denver, Colorado 80202. The consummation of the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement shall be deemed to occur at 12:01 a.m. on the Closing Date.

 
2.2            Closing Deliverables.
 
(a)            At the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer the following:
 

(i)            a bill of sale in form and substance satisfactory to Buyer (the "Bill of Sale") and duly executed by Seller,
transferring the Purchased Assets to Buyer;

 
(ii)          an assignment in form and substance satisfactory to Buyer (the "Intellectual Property Assignments") and duly

executed by Seller, transferring all of Seller's right, title and interest in and to the Purchased IP (as defined herein) to Buyer;
 
(iii)         tax clearance certificates from the taxing authorities in the jurisdictions that impose taxes on Seller or where

Seller has a duty to file tax returns in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and evidence of the payment
in full or other satisfaction of any taxes owed by Seller in those jurisdictions;

 
(iv)        a certificate of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary (or equivalent officer) of Seller certifying as to (A) the

resolutions of the board of directors of Seller, duly adopted and in effect, which authorize the execution, delivery and performance of
this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, and (B) the names and signatures of the officers of Seller authorized to
sign this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder;

 
(v)         such other customary instruments of transfer, assumption, filings or documents, in form and substance

reasonably satisfactory to Buyer, as may be required to give effect to this Agreement;
 
(vi)        a consulting agreement duly executed by J. Mac Allen, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Buyer;

and
 
(vii)       a representation letter executed by Ken Will, AdMed Consulting Inc., in form and substance reasonably

satisfactory to Buyer.
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(b)            At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Seller the following:
 

(i)            the Purchase Price; and
 
(ii)          a certificate of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary (or equivalent officer) of Buyer certifying as to (A) the

resolutions of the board of directors of Buyer, duly adopted and in effect, which authorize the execution, delivery and performance of
this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, and (B) the names and signatures of the officers of Buyer authorized to
sign this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder.

ARTICLE III
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE SELLER AND SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

The Seller and the Selling Stockholders represent and warrant to the Buyer that the statements contained in this ARTICLE III are true
and correct as of the date hereof. For purposes of this ARTICLE III, "Seller's knowledge," "knowledge of Seller" and any similar
phrases shall mean the actual or constructive knowledge of the Selling Stockholders, after due inquiry.

3.1            Organization and Authority of Seller; Enforceability. The Seller is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and
in good standing under the laws of the State of Texas.  The Seller is not required by the nature of its assets or business to qualify as a
foreign corporation in any other jurisdiction, except as noted on Schedule 3.1 attached hereto.  The Seller has full power to enter into
this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder, to carry out its obligations hereunder and to consummate the
transactions contemplated hereby, and to own all of its properties and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted.  The
Seller has no subsidiaries and no direct or indirect ownership interest in any corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability
company, limited liability partnership, associations or other entity.  The Selling Stockholders are the sole shareholders of the Seller,
and there are no securities of the Seller outstanding, including any outstanding subscriptions, options, warrants, convertible securities
or other agreements or commitments obligating the Seller to issue or to transfer from treasury any additional shares of the Seller
other than the shares owned by the Selling Stockholders. The execution, delivery and performance by the Seller of this Agreement
and the documents to be delivered hereunder and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly
authorized by all requisite corporate action on the part of the Seller. This Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder
have been duly executed and delivered by the Seller, and (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by Buyer) this
Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Seller, enforceable
against the Seller in accordance with their respective terms.

 
3.2            No Conflicts; Consents. The execution, delivery and performance by the Seller of this Agreement and the

documents to be delivered hereunder, and the consummation of the transactions provided for herein, do not and will not: (a) violate or
conflict with the certificate of incorporation, by-laws or other organizational documents of the Seller; (b) violate any agreement or
commitment made by Seller, or any requirement binding on Seller, including, without limitation, any lease, contract, loan agreement,
promissory note, franchise agreement, court order, judgment, regulatory ruling, or arbitration award; or (c) result in the creation or
imposition of any Encumbrance on the Purchased Assets. No consent, approval, waiver or authorization is required to be obtained by
the Seller from any person or entity (including any governmental authority) in connection with the execution, delivery and
performance by the Seller of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.
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3.3            Tax Matters.
 

(a)          Form 1120S, U.S. Income Tax Return for an S corporation, for the years 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 attached
hereto as Schedule 3.3 (the "Tax Returns") accurately present the sales and operating expenses of the Seller as of the respective
dates thereof.  All of the Tax Returns have been prepared in a manner consistent with that of preceding years.  The Tax Returns have
been prepared by the Seller's accountants, and to the best knowledge and belief of the Seller, are not misleading in any material
respect.

 
(b)         Since the date of the most recent Tax Return, there has not been and there will not be through the date of

Closing any change in the business, results of operations, assets, financial condition or manner of conducting the business of Seller,
which has or may be reasonably expected to have a material adverse effect on such business, results of operations, assets, or
financial condition; any damage, destruction, or loss (whether or not covered by insurance) which has or may reasonably be
expected to have a material adverse effect upon any of the Assets or the business or operations of Seller; and advance collection of
accounts receivable or any other collection of accounts receivable other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with
past practices; any loss by Seller of any customers, clients or suppliers; any transaction or action by Seller outside of the ordinary
course of business or any other action that would materially adversely affect the Assets or the Business; any entering into,
amendment, or termination by Seller of any material contract, franchise, permit, license or other agreement; or any indebtedness
incurred by Seller to borrow money, any commitment to borrow money, or any guarantee by Seller of any third party obligations, or
the imposition of any lien on Seller's assets or the grant of any encumbrances by Seller.

 
(c)           Seller has timely and correctly prepared and filed all required tax returns, including federal and state income tax

returns and sales tax returns, and has paid all taxes due pursuant to such tax returns as well as all other taxes including real and
personal property taxes for which Seller is liable.  Seller has not filed for and is not now subject to any extension of time with respect
to the filing of any tax return.  Seller is not aware of any actual or threatened tax audit against Seller.  Seller has paid all payroll taxes
as and when due, maintains all required payroll trust accounts, and has timely paid all employee and employer withholding taxes into
such trust accounts.

 
3.4            Title to Purchased Assets. The Seller owns and has good and marketable title to all of the Purchased Assets, free

and clear of Encumbrances.  All of the Purchased Assets are in good and working condition and are adequate for the uses to which
they are being put, and none of such Purchased Assets is in need of maintenance or repairs except for ordinary, routine maintenance
and repairs that are not material in nature or cost.  The Seller owns all assets, including intangible assets, which are necessary for the
continued operation of the Seller's business as presently conducted.

 
3.5            Intellectual Property.
 
(a)            "Intellectual Property" means any and all of the following in any jurisdiction throughout the world: (i) trademarks and

service marks, including all applications and registrations and the goodwill connected with the use of and symbolized by the
foregoing; (ii) copyrights, including all applications and registrations related to the foregoing; (iii) trade secrets and confidential know-
how; (iv) patents and patent applications; (v) websites and internet domain name registrations; and (vi) other intellectual property and
related proprietary rights, interests and protections (including all rights to sue and recover and retain damages, costs and attorneys'
fees for past, present and future infringement and any other rights relating to any of the foregoing).
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(b)            Schedule 3.5(b) lists all software (the "Purchased Software") and other Intellectual Property included in the Purchased

Assets (together with the Purchased Software, the "Purchased IP"). Seller owns or has adequate, valid and enforceable rights to use
all the Purchased IP, free and clear of all Encumbrances. Seller is not bound by any outstanding judgment, injunction, order or decree
restricting the use of the Purchased IP, or restricting the licensing thereof to any person or entity. With respect to the registered
Intellectual Property listed on Schedule 3.5(b), (i) all such Intellectual Property is valid, subsisting and in full force and effect and (ii)
Seller has paid all maintenance fees and made all filings required to maintain Seller's ownership thereof. For all such registered
Intellectual Property, Schedule 3.5(b) lists (A) the jurisdiction where the application or registration is located, (B) the application or
registration number, and (C) the application or registration date.

 
(c)            To the best of its knowledge and belief, Seller's prior and current use of the Purchased IP has not and does not

infringe, violate, dilute or misappropriate the Intellectual Property of any person or entity and there are no claims pending or
threatened by any person or entity with respect to the ownership, validity, enforceability, effectiveness or use of the Purchased IP. No
person or entity is infringing, misappropriating, diluting or otherwise violating any of the Purchased IP, and neither Seller nor any
affiliate of Seller has made or asserted any claim, demand or notice against any person or entity alleging any such infringement,
misappropriation, dilution or other violation.

 
3.6            Compliance With Laws. Seller has complied, and is now complying, with all applicable federal, state and local laws

and regulations applicable to ownership and use of the Purchased Assets.
 
3.7            Investment Purpose.   Seller is acquiring the Shares solely for its own account for investment purposes and not with

a view to, or for offer or sale in connection with, any distribution thereof. Buyer and the Selling Stockholders acknowledge that the
Shares are not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any state securities laws, and that the Shares may not be
transferred or sold except pursuant to the registration provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended or pursuant to an
applicable exemption therefrom and subject to state securities laws and regulations, as applicable.

 
3.8            Legal Proceedings. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.7, there are no private or governmental proceedings pending,

or to the best knowledge of Seller threatened, against Seller, including without limitation any investigation, audit, lawsuit, threatened
lawsuit, arbitration, workers' compensation claims, civil rights claims, or other legal proceedings of any nature whatsoever. No event
has occurred or circumstances exist that may give rise to, or serve as a basis for, any such action.
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3.9            Environmental Matters. Seller does not lease, own, or operate a facility on, and has not leased, owned, or operated

a facility on, any land or real property subject to any environmental contamination, violation or requirement for clean up or any other
environmental remediation.

 
3.10             Customers.  Seller does not have any information or reason to believe that any of its customers or suppliers will

cease to do business with Buyer after the Closing, or will alter their present volume of business.  There are no disagreements or
controversies pending, or to the best knowledge of Seller, threatened with any customer or supplier of Seller, nor has any such
customer or supplier made any claims or complaints regarding the services, courses, or products provided by Seller.  All suppliers
have been timely paid by Seller.  There are no special relationships (personal or otherwise, such as payment in kind arrangements)
between Seller and any customer or supplier of Seller that would affect or interfere with the ability of Buyer to continue the customer
or supplier relationship on an ongoing basis.  Seller has no ownership or other pecuniary interest in any competitor, customer or
supplier of Seller.  There are no sole-source suppliers of significant products or services to Seller, with respect to which practical
alternative sources of supply are not readily available on comparable terms and conditions.  Except for certain distributors set forth on
Schedule 3.10, Seller does not use any manufacturer's, sales, or independent representatives.  As used herein, customer shall
include all clients of Seller, including all dealers, distributors, and other Buyers of Seller's products.  It is expressly understood that
notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement, there is no guaranty by the Seller that any of its customers or suppliers will
continue in a relationship with the Buyer.

 
3.11            Brokers. Seller has not incurred any obligation for the payment of any brokerage commission, finder's fee, or any

other obligation relating to this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions provide for herein, except as set forth on
Schedule 3.11.

 
3.12            Full Disclosure. This Agreement and the agreements and instruments attached hereto and to be delivered at the

time of Closing do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact by Seller.  This Agreement and such related agreements and
instruments do not omit to state any material fact necessary in order to made the statements made herein or therein by Seller, in light
of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading.

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER

4.1            Organization and Authority of Buyer. Buyer is a "C" corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Colorado. Buyer has the authority, pursuant to its articles of incorporation and bylaws, and
pursuant to such additional action as is necessary by its officers, directors and shareholders, to execute this Agreement and to
consummate the transactions provided for herein. The execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the consummation of the
transactions provided for herein, will not violate any agreement or commitment made by Buyer, or any requirement binding on Buyer,
including, without limitation, any lease, contract, loan agreement, promissory note, franchise agreement, court order, judgment,
regulatory ruling, or any arbitration award.

 
4.2            Legal Proceedings. There is no Action of any nature pending or, to Buyer's knowledge, threatened against or by

Buyer that challenges or seeks to prevent, enjoin or otherwise delay the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. No event has
occurred or circumstances exist that may give rise to, or serve as a basis for, any such Action.
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4.3            Brokers. Buyer has not incurred any obligation for the payment of any brokerage commission, finder's fee, or any

other similar obligation relating to this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions provided for herein.
 

ARTICLE V
COVENANTS

5.1            Non-competition; Non-solicitation. Seller and each Selling Stockholder (each a "Restricted Party") each hereby
agree, severally and not jointly, as follows:

 
(a)            For a period of five (5) years commencing on the Closing Date (the "Restricted Period"), such Restricted Party shall

not and shall not permit any of its Affiliates (as defined below) to, directly or indirectly, (i) engage in or assist others in engaging in the
Business in the United States (the "Territory"); (ii) have an interest in any person that engages directly or indirectly in the Business in
the Territory in any capacity, including as a partner, shareholder, member, employee, principal, agent, trustee or consultant; or (iii)
intentionally interfere in any material respect with the business relationships (whether formed prior to or after the date of this
Agreement) between the Buyer and customers or suppliers of the Buyer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such Restricted Party may
own, directly or indirectly, solely as an investment, securities of any business entity traded on any national securities exchange if such
party is not a controlling person of, or a member of a group which controls, such business entity and does not, directly or indirectly,
own 5% or more of any class of securities of such business entity.  Further notwithstanding the foregoing, the consulting agreement
with the Seller shall not be deemed to be a violation of this covenant, whether or not the services are performed for the Buyer or any
legal successor to Buyer.

 
(b)            During the Restricted Period, such Restricted Party shall not, and shall not permit any of its Affiliates (as defined

below) to, directly or indirectly, solicit or entice, or attempt to solicit or entice, any clients or customers of the Buyer or potential clients
or customers of the Buyer for purposes of diverting their business or services from the Buyer.

 
(c)            Such Restricted Party acknowledges that a breach or threatened breach of this Section 5.1 would give rise to

irreparable harm to Buyer, for which monetary damages would not be an adequate remedy, and hereby agrees that in the event of a
breach or a threatened breach by such Restricted Party of any such obligations, Buyer shall, in addition to any and all other rights
and remedies that may be available to it in respect of such breach, be entitled to equitable relief, including a temporary restraining
order, an injunction, specific performance and any other relief that may be available from a court of competent jurisdiction (without
any requirement to post bond).

 
(d)            Such Restricted Party acknowledges that the restrictions contained in this Section 5.1 are reasonable and necessary to

protect the legitimate interests of Buyer and constitute a material inducement to Buyer to enter into this Agreement and consummate
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. In the event that any covenant contained in this Section 5.1 should ever be
adjudicated to exceed the time, geographic, product or service, or other limitations permitted by applicable law in any jurisdiction, then
any court is expressly empowered to reform such covenant, and such covenant shall be deemed reformed, in such jurisdiction to the
maximum time, geographic, product or service, or other limitations permitted by applicable law. The covenants contained in this
Section 5.1 and each provision hereof are severable and distinct covenants and provisions. The invalidity or unenforceability of any
such covenant or provision as written shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the remaining covenants or provisions hereof, and
any such invalidity or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such covenant or provision in
any other jurisdiction.

 
(e)            For purposes of this Section 5.1, "Affiliate," as it pertains to a Restricted Person, shall mean any other person

that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Restricted Person. The term "control" (including the terms "controlled by" and "under common control with") means the possession,
directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, whether through the
ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise. For the avoidance of doubt, the term "Affiliate" shall not include customers or
distributors of the Business that are not controlled by Seller or the Selling Stockholders.

 
5.2            Seller's Post-Closing Covenants. From and after the time of Closing, Seller and each Selling Stockholder, severally

and not jointly, agree as follows:
 

(a)            Seller shall pay, and the Selling Stockholders shall cause Seller to pay, all of Seller's liabilities (other than the
Assumed Liabilities) as and when due, including without limitation any liabilities to trade creditors not assumed by Buyer.

 
(b)            Seller shall pay, and the Selling Stockholders shall cause Seller to pay, all sales, use and income taxes which

result of consummating the transaction set forth in this Agreement, if any, as and when due.  Neither Seller nor the Selling
Stockholders shall permit any governmental lien to attach to the Purchased Assets, and Seller shall satisfy, and the Selling
Stockholders shall cause Seller to satisfy, or otherwise discharge any lien which does attach to the Purchased Assets, as a result of
consummating the transaction set forth in this Agreement.
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(c)            Within ten (10) days after Closing, Seller and the Selling Stockholders will calculate the aggregate amount of

financial credits owed by Seller to its distributors in connection with shopping cart orders received directly by Seller, and will make a
cash payment to Buyer in the aggregate amount of such financial credits.

 
(d)            Seller shall use its best efforts to cause all Reseller and Affiliate Contracts provided to Buyer at Closing to be

assigned to Buyer promptly after Closing.
 
(e)            Within thirty (30) days after Closing, Seller shall dissolve or change its legal name to a name that does not

include the words "Superior Training Solutions," "STS" or any derivation thereof, and shall discontinue any use of the trade names
"Superior Training Solutions" or "STS."

 
5.3            Buyer's Post-Closing Covenants. Buyer agrees that at such time as the Shares are held by non-affiliates of Buyer

and are eligible for sale under Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, it will, promptly following the delivery by Seller
to Buyer or Buyer's transfer agent of the certificate representing the Shares, use its reasonable best efforts to deliver or cause to be
delivered to Seller a certificate representing such shares that is free from all restrictive and other legends.
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5.4            Public Announcements. Unless otherwise required by applicable law, no party shall make any public

announcements regarding this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby without the prior written consent of the other
parties (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

 
5.5            Transfer Taxes. All transfer, documentary, sales, use, stamp, registration, value added and other such taxes and fees

(including any penalties and interest) incurred in connection with this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder shall
be borne and paid by Seller when due. Seller shall, at its own expense, timely file any tax return or other document with respect to
such taxes or fees (and Buyer shall cooperate with respect thereto as necessary).

 
5.6            Further Assurances. Following the Closing, each of the parties hereto shall execute and deliver such additional

documents, instruments, conveyances and assurances and take such further actions as may be reasonably required to carry out the
provisions hereof and give effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder.

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNIFICATION

6.1            Survival. All representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained herein and all related rights to
indemnification shall survive the Closing.

 
6.2            Indemnification By Seller and Selling Stockholders and Buyer and Buyer's assigns. Seller and the Selling

Stockholders and Buyer and Buyer's assigns, severally and not jointly, shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless  the other party, its
affiliates and their respective stockholders, directors, officers and employees from and against all claims, judgments, damages,
liabilities, settlements, losses, costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees and disbursements, arising from or relating to:

 
(a)            any inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations or warranties of Seller or the Selling Stockholders and/or

Buyer and Buyer's assigns contained in this Agreement or any document to be delivered hereunder; or
 
(b)            any breach or non-fulfillment of any covenant, agreement or obligation to be performed by Seller or the Selling

Stockholders or Buyer and Buyer's assigns pursuant to this Agreement or any document to be delivered hereunder.
 
6.3            Tax Treatment of Indemnification Payments. All indemnification payments made by  the parties under this

Agreement shall be treated by the parties as an adjustment to the Purchase Price for tax purposes, unless otherwise required by law.
 
6.4            Effect of Investigation. The respective rights of the parties  to indemnification or other remedy based on the

representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of  the parties contained herein will not be affected by any investigation
conducted by Seller or Buyer with respect to, or any knowledge acquired by Seller or Buyer at any time, with respect to the accuracy
or inaccuracy of or compliance with, any such representation, warranty, covenant or agreement.
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6.5            Cumulative Remedies. The rights and remedies provided in this ARTICLE VI are cumulative and are in addition to

and not in substitution for any other rights and remedies available at law or in equity or otherwise.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no
claim for indemnification may be made more than twenty-four (24) months after the date of signing of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VII
GENERAL PROVISIONS

The following general provisions shall apply to this Agreement.
 

7.1            Expenses. All costs and expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated
hereby shall be paid by the party incurring such costs and expenses.

 
7.2            Notice. All notices required or permitted hereunder or under any related agreement or instrument (unless such related

agreement or instrument otherwise provides) will be deemed delivered when delivered personally, mailed, by certified mail, return
receipt requested, or registered mail, or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier to the respective party at the following
addresses or to such other address as each respective party may in writing hereafter designate, and it is the responsibility of the party
changing its designation to give written notice to be effective not earlier than 30 days from the date of such notice.  The parties may
also designate additional persons who may receive copies of notices, with the express understanding that actual notice must be upon
the parties.

 
If to Seller or the Selling Stockholders:

Superior Training Solutions, Inc.
13501 Ranch Road 12, Ste 103
Wimberley, TX 78676

Gary Glisan
222 Winn Valley Dr
Wimberley, TX 78676

If to Buyer:
Lifeloc Technologies, Inc.
12441 West 49th Ave., Ste 4
Wheat Ridge, CO 80033
 

7.1            Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation of this
Agreement.

 
7.2            Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement and the exhibits and other documents, agreements, and

instruments related hereto set forth the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, supersede all prior
and contemporaneous understandings and agreements, both written and oral, with respect to such subject matter, and may not be
amended or modified except in writing subscribed to by all such parties. In the event of any inconsistency between the statements in
the body of this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder, the exhibits and schedules, the statements in the body of
this Agreement will control.
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7.3            No Third-party Beneficiaries. Except as provided in ARTICLE VI, this Agreement is for the sole benefit of the parties

hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer
upon any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this
Agreement.

 
7.4            Governing Law. This Agreement is entered into in the State of Colorado.  It will be performed within such state, and

all issues arising hereunder shall be governed in all respects by the laws of such state, without giving effect to any choice or conflict
of law provision or rule (whether of the State of Colorado or any other jurisdiction).

 
7.5            Submission to Jurisdiction. Any legal suit, action or proceeding arising out of or based upon this Agreement or the

transactions contemplated hereby may be instituted in the federal courts of the United States of America or the courts of the State of
Colorado in each case located in the city and county of Denver, and each party irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of
such courts in any such suit, action or proceeding.

 
7.6            Waiver of Jury Trial. Each party acknowledges and agrees that any controversy which may arise under this

Agreement is likely to involve complicated and difficult issues and, therefore, each such party irrevocably and unconditionally waives
any right it may have to a trial by jury in respect of any legal action arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated hereby.

 
7.7            Waiver. No waiver by any party of any of the provisions hereof shall be effective unless explicitly set forth in writing

and signed by the party so waiving. No waiver by any party shall operate or be construed as a waiver in respect of any failure, breach
or default not expressly identified by such written waiver, whether of a similar or different character, and whether occurring before or
after that waiver. No failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right, remedy, power or privilege arising from this Agreement shall
operate or be construed as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege
hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege.

 
7.8            Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is found by any court or other authority of competent

jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, such provision shall be severed or modified to the extent necessary to render it
enforceable and as so severed or modified, this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

 
7.9            Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all

of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-
mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of
this Agreement.

 
[Signatures on Following Page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have read and entered into this Agreement as of the date above written.

LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By/s/ Barry R. Knott
Barry R. Knott, President

SUPERIOR TRAINING SOLUTIONS, INC.

By/s/ Gary Glisan
Gary Glisan, President

SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

/s/ Gary Glisan
Gary Glisan

/s/ J. Mac Allen
J. Mac Allen
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Exhibit 10.11
 

 

Loan Agreement

  
 Date of Agreement: October 29, 2014
 

Principal Amount: $1,612,981.00 Account Number: 25-0001103705

Introducti❑n. This Agreement dated and effective as of October 29, 2014, is entered into between LIFELOC
TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (the "Borrower") and Bank of America, N.A. (the "Bank"). The Borrower agrees to the following terms
and conditions:

1.    LOAN

1.1   Loan Am❑unt. The Bank agrees to provide a term loan to the Borrower in the amount of One Million Six Hundred Twelve
Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-One and 00/100 Dollars ($1,612,981.00) (the "Commitment").

1.2   Availability Period. The loan is available in one disbursement from the Bank on the date of this Agreement.

1.3   Interest Rate. The interest rate is 4.45% per year.

1.4   Repayment Terms. The Borrower will repay principal and interest in equal combined installments of Eight Thousand
Nine Hundred Seventy-Eight and 06/100 Dollars ($8,978.06) beginning on November 29, 2014, and on the Last day of each
month thereafter, and ending on October 29, 2024 (the "Repayment Period"). In any event, on the last day of the Repayment
Period, the Borrower will repay the remaining principal balance plus any interest then due. Each installment, when paid, will be
applied first to the payment of interest accrued. The balance of each installment will be applied to the repayment of principal.

1.5   Prepayments.

(a) The Borrower may prepay the credit in full or in part at any time. The prepayment will be applied to the most remote
payment of principal due under this Agreement.

(b) Each prepayment, whether voluntary, by reason of acceleration or otherwise, will be accompanied by the amount of
accrued interest on the amount prepaid, and, if the prepayment is made during a Fixed Interest Rate Period, the
prepayment fee described below.

(c) The prepayment fee is intended to compensate the Bank for the funding costs of the prepaid credit, if any. The prepayment
fee will be determined by calculating the funding costs incurred by the Bank, based on the cost of funds at the time the
interest rate was fixed, and subtracting the interest income which can be earned by the Bank by reinvesting the prepaid
funds at the Reinvestment Rate. The calculation is defined more fully below.

(d) The "Fixed Interest Rate Period" is the period during which the interest rate in effect at the time of the prepayment does
not change. If the Fixed Interest Rate Period does not extend for the entire remaining life of the credit, then the following
rules will apply:

(i) For any portion of the prepaid principal for which the scheduled payment date is after the end of the Fixed Interest
Rate Period, the prepayment fee for that portion shall be calculated based only on the period through the end of
the Fixed Interest Rate Period, as described below.

(ii) If a prepayment is made on a date on which the interest rate resets, then there will be no prepayment fee.
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(e) The prepayment fee calculation is made separately for each Prepaid Installment. A "Prepaid Installment" is the amount of
the prepaid principal that would have been due on a particular scheduled payment date (the "Scheduled Payment Date").
However, as explained in the preceding paragraph, all amounts of the credit which would have been paid after the end of
the Fixed Interest Rate Period shall be considered a single Prepaid Installment with a Scheduled Payment Date (for the
purposes of this calculation) equal to the last day of the Fixed Interest Rate Period.

 

1

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

(f) The prepayment fee for a particular Prepaid Installment will be calculated as follows:

(i) Calculate the monthly interest payments that would have accrued on the Prepaid Installment through the applicable
Scheduled Payment Date, if the prepayment had not been made. The interest payments will be calculated using the
Original Cost of Funds Rate.

(ii) Next, calculate the monthly interest income which could be earned on the Prepaid Installment if it were reinvested
by the Bank at the Reinvestment Rate through the Scheduled Payment Date.

(iii) Calculate the monthly differences of the amounts calculated in (i) minus the amounts calculated in (ii). (iv)If the
remaining term of the Fixed Interest Rate Period is greater than one year, calculate the present value of the
amounts calculated in (iii), using the Reinvestment Rate. The result of the present value calculation is the
prepayment fee for the Prepaid Installment.

 
(g) Finally, the prepayment fees for all of the Prepaid Installments are added together. The sum, if greater than zero, is the total

prepayment fee due to the Bank.
 
(h) The following definitions will apply to the calculation of the prepayment fee:

 
(i) "Original Cost of Funds Rate" means the fixed interest rate per annum, determined solely by the Bank, at which the

Bank would be able to borrow funds in the Bank Funding Markets for the duration of the Fixed Interest Rate Period
in the amount of the prepaid principal and with a term, interest payment frequency, and principal repayment
schedule matching the prepaid principal.

(ii) "Bank Funding Markets" means one or more wholesale funding markets available to the Bank, including the LIBOR,
Eurodollar, and SWAP markets as applicable and available, or such other appropriate money market as determined
by the Bank in its sole discretion.

(iii) "Reinvestment Rate" means the fixed rate per annum, determined solely by the Bank, as the rate at which the Bank
would be able to reinvest funds in the amount of the Prepaid Installment in the Bank Funding Markets on the date of
prepayment for a period of time approximating the period starting on the date of prepayment and ending on the
Scheduled Payment Date.

(i) The Original Cost of Funds Rate and the Reinvestment Rate are the Bank's estimates only and the Bank is under no
obligation to actually purchase or match funds for any transaction or reinvest any prepayment. The Bank may adjust the
Original Cost of Funds Rate and the Reinvestment Rate to reflect the compounding, accrual basis, or other costs of the
prepaid amount. The rates shall include adjustments for reserve requirements, federal deposit insurance and any other
similar adjustment which the Bank deems appropriate. These rates are not fixed by or related in any way to any rate the
Bank quotes or pays for deposits accepted through its branch system.

2.    COLLATERAL

2.1   Real Property –  Parcel #1.

(a) The Borrower's obligations to the Bank under this Agreement will be secured by a lien covering the following real property
owned by the Borrower:

12441 West 49th Ave Units 11-18
Wheat Ridge, CO 80033

3.    LOAN ADMINISTRATION AND FEES

3.1   Fees.
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(a)     The Borrower will pay to the Bank the fees set forth on Schedule A.

3.2     Collection of Payments.

(a) Payments will be made by debit to a deposit account, if direct debit is provided for in this Agreement or is otherwise
authorized by the Borrower. For payments not made by direct debit, payments will be made by mail to the address shown on
the Borrower's statement, or by such other method as may be permitted by the Bank.

(b) Each disbursement by the Bank and each payment by the Borrower will be evidenced by records kept by the Bank which
will, absent manifest error, be conclusively presumed to be correct and accurate and constitute an account stated between
the Borrower and the Bank.

3.3     Borrower's Instructions.

(a) Subject to the terms, conditions and procedures stated elsewhere in this Agreement, the Bank may honor instructions for
advances or repayments and any other instructions under this Agreement given by the Borrower (if an individual), or by any
one of the individuals the Bank reasonably believes is authorized to sign loan agreements on behalf of the Borrower, or any
other individual(s) designated by any one of such authorized signers (each an "Authorized Individual"). The Bank may honor
any such instructions made by any one of the Authorized Individuals, whether such instructions are given in writing or by
telephone, telefax or Internet and intranet websites designated by the Bank with respect to separate products or services
offered by the Bank.

3.4     Direct Debit.

(a) The Borrower agrees that on the due date of any amount due under this Agreement, the Bank will debit the amount due from
deposit account number CO 457023873333 owned by the Borrower, or such other of the Borrower's accounts with the Bank
as designated in writing by the Borrower (the "Designated Account"). Should there be insufficient funds in the Designated
Account to pay all such sums when due, the full amount of such deficiency shall be immediately due and payable by the
Borrower.

(b) The Borrower may terminate this direct debit arrangement at any time by sending written notice to the Bank. If the Borrower
terminates this arrangement, then the principal amount outstanding under this Agreement will at the option of the Bank bear
interest at a rate per annum which is one (1.0) percentage point higher than the rate of interest otherwise provided under
this Agreement and the amount of each payment will be increased accordingly.

3.5     Banking Days. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, a banking day is a day other than a Saturday, Sunday
or other day on which commercial banks are authorized to close, or are in fact closed, in the state where the Bank's lending
office is located. All payments and disbursements which would be due or which are received on a day which is not a banking
day will be due or applied, as applicable, to the credit on the next banking day.

3.6     Interest Calculati❑n. Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, all interest and fees, if any, will be computed on
the basis of a 360-day year and the actual number of days elapsed. This results in more interest or a higher fee than if a 365-day
year is used. Installments of principal which are not paid when due under this Agreement shall continue to bear interest
until paid.

3.7     Default Rate. Upon the occurrence of any default or after maturity or after judgment has been rendered on any
obligation under this Agreement, all amounts outstanding under this Agreement, including any unpaid interest, fees, or costs, will at
the option of the Bank bear interest at a rate which is 6.0 percentage point(s) higher than the rate of interest otherwise provided
under this Agreement. This may result in compounding of interest. This will not constitute a waiver of any default.

4.    CONDITIONS

Before the Bank is required to extend any credit to the Borrower under this Agreement, it must receive any documents and other
items it may reasonably require, in form and content acceptable to the Bank, including any items specifically listed below.
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4.1     Authorizati❑ns. If the Borrower or any guarantor is anything other than a natural person, evidence that the
execution, delivery and performance by the Borrower and/or such guarantor of this Agreement and any instrument or
agreement required under this Agreement have been duly authorized.

4.2     G❑verning Documents. If required by the Bank, a copy of the Borrower's organizational documents.

4.3     Perfecti❑n and Evidence of Priority. Evidence that the security interests and liens in favor of the Bank are valid,
enforceable, properly perfected in a manner acceptable to the Bank and prior to all others' rights and interests, except those the
Bank consents to in writing. All title documents for motor vehicles which are part of the collateral must show the Bank's interest.

4.4     Payment of Fees. Payment of all fees, expenses and other amounts due and owing to the Bank. If any fee is not paid
in cash, the Bank may, in its discretion, treat the fee as a principal advance under this Agreement or deduct the fee from the loan
proceeds.

4.5     Deed of Trust. Signed and acknowledged original deed of trust, as required by the Bank, encumbering the real
property collateral.

4.6     Title Insurance. An ALTA lender's title insurance policy (on a form acceptable to the Bank and from a title company
acceptable to the Bank), for at least One Million Six Hundred Twelve Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-One and 00/100 Dollars
($1,612,981.00), insuring the Bank's interest in the real property collateral , with only such exceptions as may be
approved by the Bank and together with such endorsements as the Bank may require.

4.7     Environmental Inf❑rmati❑n. A completed Bank form Environmental Questionnaire.

5.      REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

When the Borrower signs this Agreement, and until the Bank is repaid in full, the Borrower makes the following representations
and warranties. Each request for an extension of credit constitutes a renewal of these representations and warranties as of the
date of the request:

5.1     Formation. If the Borrower is anything other than a natural person, it is duly formed and existing under the laws of the
state or other jurisdiction where organized.

5.2     Authorizati❑n. This Agreement, and any instrument or agreement required under this Agreement, are within the
Borrower's powers, have been duly authorized , and do not conflict with any of its organizational papers .

5.3     Good Standing. In each state in which the Borrower does business, it is properly licensed, in good standing, and,
where required, in compliance with fictitious name statutes.

5.4     Financial Inf❑rmation. All financial and other information that has been or will be supplied to the Bank is sufficiently
complete to give the Bank accurate knowledge of the Borrower's (and any guarantor's) financial condition, including all material
contingent liabilities. Since the date of the most recent financial statement provided to the Bank, there has been no material
adverse change in the business condition (financial or otherwise), operations, properties or prospects of the Borrower (or any
guarantor). If the Borrower is comprised of the trustees of a trust, the above representations shall also pertain to the trustor(s) of
the trust.

5.5     Lawsuits. There is no lawsuit, tax claim or other dispute pending or threatened against the Borrower which, if lost, would
impair the Borrower's financial condition or ability to repay the loan, except as have been disclosed in writing to the Bank .

5.6     Other Obligations. The Borrower is not in default on any obligation for borrowed money, any purchase money
obligation or any other material lease, commitment, contract, instrument or obligation, except as have been disclosed in writing to
the Bank.

5.7     Tax Matters. The Borrower has no knowledge of any pending assessments or adjustments of its income tax for any
year and all taxes due have been paid, except as have been disclosed in writing to the Bank.

5.8     No Event of Default. There is no event which is, or with notice or lapse of time or both would be, a default under this
Agreement.
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5.9     C❑llateral. All collateral required in this Agreement is owned by the grantor of the security interest free of any title
defects or any liens or interests of others, except those which have been approved by the Bank in writing.

5.10     ERISA Plans.

(a) Each Plan (other than a multiemployer plan) is in compliance in all material respects with ERISA, the Code and other federal
or state law, including all applicable minimum funding standards and there have been no prohibited transactions with
respect to any Plan (other than a multiemployer plan), which has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a
material adverse effect.

(b)       With respect to any Plan subject to Title IV of ERISA:

(i) No reportable event has occurred under Section 4043(c) of ERISA which requires notice.
 

(ii) No action by the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate to terminate or withdraw from any Plan has been taken and no
notice of intent to terminate a Plan has been filed under Section 4041 or 4042 of ERISA.

 (c) The following terms have the meanings indicated for purposes of this Agreement:
 

(i) "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
 

(ii) No"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.
 

(iii) "ERISA Affiliate" means any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) under common control with the
Borrower within the meaning of Section 414(b) or (c) of the Code.

 
(iv) "Plan" means a plan within the meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA maintained or contributed to by the Borrower or

any ERISA Affiliate, including any multiemployer plan within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA.
 
6.    COVENANTS

The Borrower agrees, so long as credit is available under this Agreement and until the Bank is repaid in full:

6.1     Use of Proceeds. To use the proceeds of the credit only for business purposes.

6.2     Financial Inf❑rmation. To provide the following financial information and statements in form and content acceptable to
the Bank, and such additional information as requested by the Bank from time to time. The Bank reserves the right, upon written
notice to the Borrower, to require the Borrower to deliver financial information and statements to the Bank more frequently than
otherwise provided below, and to use such additional information and statements to measure any applicable financial covenants in
this Agreement.

(a)     Within 120 days of Borrower's fiscal year end:

(i)        The annual financial statements of the Borrower, certified and dated by an authorized financial officer. These
financial statements must be audited (with an opinion satisfactory to the Bank) by a Certified Public Accountant acceptable to
the Bank. The statements shall be prepared on a consolidated basis.

(ii)        Each financial statement of the Borrower required above must be accompanied by a certificate substantially in the
form of the Compliance Certificate required by the Bank, signed by the party submitting the information or, if such party is a
business entity, an authorized financial officer of the party. The Compliance Certificate shall state whether there existed as of the
date of such financial statements, and whether there exists as of the date of the certificate, any event of default under this
Agreement and, if any such default exists, specifying the nature thereof and the action the party is taking and proposes to take with
respect thereto.

6.3   Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Rati❑. To maintain on a consolidated basis a Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of at
least 1.25:1.0.

"Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio" means the ratio of (a) the sum of EBITDA plus lease expense and rent expense, minus
income tax, minus dividends, withdrawals, and other distributions, to (b) the sum of interest expense, lease expense, rent expense,
the current portion of long term debt and the current portion of capitalized lease obligations.
 
 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



5

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



"EBITDA" means net income, less income or plus loss from discontinued operations and extraordinary items, plus income taxes,
plus interest expense, plus depreciation, depletion, and amortization.

This ratio will be calculated at the end of each reporting period for which the Bank requires financial statements, using the results of
the twelve-month period ending with that reporting period. The current portion of long-term liabilities will be measured as of the last
day of the calculation period.

6.4     Other Debts. Not to have outstanding or incur any direct or contingent liabilities or lease obligations (other than those
to the Bank or to any affiliate of the Bank), or become liable for the liabilities of others, without the Bank's written consent. This
does not prohibit:

(a)     Acquiring goods, supplies, or merchandise on normal trade credit.

(b)     Liabilities, lines of credit and leases in existence on the date of this Agreement disclosed in writing to the Bank. (c)If
the Borrower is a natural person, additional debts of the Borrower as an individual for consumer purposes.
 
6.5     Other Liens. Not to create, assume, or allow any security interest or lien (including judicial liens) on property the
Borrower now or later owns , except:

(a)     Liens and security interests in favor of the Bank or any affiliate of the Bank.

(b)     Liens outstanding on the date of this Agreement disclosed in writing to the Bank.

6.6     Maintenance of Assets.

(a) Not to sell, assign, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of any part of the Borrower's business or the Borrower's assets
except inventory sold in the ordinary course of the Borrower's business.

(b) Not to sell, assign, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of any assets for less than fair market value, or enter into any
agreement to do so.

(c) Not to enter into any sale and leaseback agreement covering any of its fixed assets.
 
(d) To maintain and preserve all rights, privileges, and franchises the Borrower now has.

 
(e) To make any repairs, renewals, or replacements to keep the Borrower's properties in good working condition.

 
6.7     Loans. Not to make any loans, advances or other extensions of credit to any individual or entity except for
extensions of credit in the nature of accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from the sale or lease of goods or services
in the ordinary course of business to non-affiliated entities.

6.8     Change of Management. Not to make any substantial change in the present executive or management
personnel of the Borrower.

6.9     Change of Ownership. If the Borrower is anything other than a natural person, not to cause, permit, or suffer any
change in capital ownership such that there is a material change, as determined by the Bank in its sole discretion, in the direct or
indirect capital ownership of the Borrower.

6.10    Additional Negative Covenants. Not to, without the Bank's written consent:

(a) Enter into any consolidation, merger, or other combination, or become a partner in a partnership, a member of a joint
venture, or a member of a limited liability company.

(b) Acquire or purchase a business or its assets, if the purchase price is over One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), in aggregate,
from the date of this agreement until the "Repayment Period".
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(c) Engage in any business activities substantially different from the Borrower's present business. (d)Liquidate or dissolve the

Borrower's business.
 
6.11    Notices to Bank. To promptly notify the Bank in writing of:

(a) Any event of default under this Agreement, or any event which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute an
event of default.

(b) Any change in the Borrower's name, legal structure, principal residence, or name on any driver's license or special
identification card issued by any state (for an individual), state of registration (for a registered entity), place of business, or
chief executive office if the Borrower has more than one place of business.

 
6.12     Insurance

 
(a) General Business Insurance. To maintain insurance as is usual for the business it is in..

 
(b) Insurance Covering Collateral. To maintain all risk property damage insurance policies (including without limitation

windstorm coverage, and hurricane coverage as applicable) covering the tangible property comprising the collateral. Each
insurance policy must be for the full replacement cost of the collateral and include a replacement cost endorsement. The
insurance must be issued by an insurance company acceptable to the Bank and must include a lender's loss payable
endorsement in favor of the Bank in a form acceptable to the Bank.

(c) Evidence of Insurance. Upon the request of the Bank, to deliver to the Bank a copy of each insurance policy, or, if permitted
by the Bank, a certificate of insurance listing all insurance in force.

6.13     C❑mpliance with Laws. To comply with the laws (including any fictitious or trade name statute), regulations, and orders
of any government body with authority over the Borrower's business. The Bank shall have no obligation to make any advance to
the Borrower except in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and the Borrower shall fully cooperate with the Bank in
complying with all such applicable laws and regulations.

6.14     B❑oks and Rec❑rds. To maintain adequate books and records.

6.15    Audits. To allow the Bank and its agents to inspect the Borrower's properties and examine, audit, and make copies of
books and records at any reasonable time. If any of the Borrower's properties, books or records are in the possession of a third
party, the Borrower authorizes that third party to permit the Bank or its agents to have access to perform inspections or audits
and to respond to the Bank's requests for information concerning such properties, books and records.

6.16     Perfecti❑n of Liens. To help the Bank perfect and protect its security interests and liens, and reimburse it for related
costs it incurs to protect its security interests and liens.

6.17     C❑operati❑n. To take any action reasonably requested by the Bank to carry out the intent of this Agreement.

6.18     Bank as Principal Dep❑sit❑ry. To maintain the Bank or one of its affiliates as its principal depository bank,
including for the maintenance of business, cash management, operating and administrative deposit accounts.

6.19     Flo❑d and Other Insurance. If any improved real property collateral is located in a designated flood hazard area, or
becomes located in a designated flood hazard area after the date of this Agreement as a result of any re-mapping of flood
insurance maps by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the Borrower will be required to maintain flood
insurance on the real property and on any tangible personal property collateral located on the real property. In addition, the
Borrower shall maintain such other insurance as the Bank may require to comply with the Bank's regular requirements and
practices in similar transactions, which may include earthquake insurance and insurance covering acts of terrorism .

6.20    Inspections and Appraisals of Real Property. To allow the Bank and its agents to visit the real property collateral at
any reasonable time for the purpose of inspecting the real property and conducting appraisals, and deliver to the Bank any
financial or other information concerning the real property as the Bank may request.
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6.21    Use or Leasing of the Real Property Collateral.

(a) To occupy the real property collateral for the conduct of its regular business. The Borrower will not change its intended use
of the real property without the Bank's prior written approval.

6.22   Indemnity Regarding Use of Real Property. To indemnify, defend with counsel acceptable to the Bank, and hold the
Bank harmless from and against all liabilities, claims, actions, damages, costs and expenses (including all legal fees and expenses
of Bank's counsel) arising out of or resulting from the construction of any improvements on the real property collateral, or the
ownership, operation, or use of the real property collateral, whether such claims are based on theories of derivative liability,
comparative negligence or otherwise. The Borrower's obligations to the Bank under this Paragraph shall survive termination of this
Agreement and repayment of the Borrower's obligations to the Bank under this Agreement, and shall also survive as unsecured
obligations after any acquisition by the Bank of the real property collateral or any part of it by foreclosure or any other means.

7.    HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

7.1      Indemnity Regarding Hazardous Substances. The Borrower agrees to indemnify and hold the Bank harmless from and
against all liabilities, claims, actions, foreseeable and unforeseeable consequential damages, costs and expenses (including sums
paid in settlement of claims and all consultant, expert and legal fees and expenses of the Bank's counsel) or loss directly or
indirectly arising out of or resulting from any of the following:

(a) Any hazardous substance being present at any time, whether before, during or after any construction, in or around any part
of the real property collateral securing this Agreement (the "Real Property"), or in the soil, groundwater or soil vapor on or
under the Real Property, including those incurred in connection with any investigation of site conditions or any clean-up,
remedial, removal or restoration work, or any resulting damages or injuries to the person or property of any third parties or to
any natural resources.

(b) Any use, generation, manufacture, production, storage, release, threatened release, discharge, disposal or presence of a
hazardous substance. This indemnity will apply whether the hazardous substance is on, under or about any of the
Borrower's property or operations or property leased to the Borrower, whether or not the property has been taken by the
Bank as collateral.

Upon demand by the Bank, the Borrower will defend any investigation, action or proceeding alleging the presence of any
hazardous substance in any such location, which affects the Real Property or which is brought or commenced against the Bank,
whether alone or together with the Borrower or any other person, all at the Borrower's own cost and by counsel to be approved by
the Bank in the exercise of its reasonable judgment. In the alternative, the Bank may elect to conduct its own defense at the
expense of the Borrower. The Borrower's obligations to the Bank under this Article, except the obligation to give notices to the Bank,
shall survive termination of this Agreement, repayment of the Borrower's obligations to the Bank under this Agreement, and
foreclosure of the deed of trust or mortgage encumbering the Real Property or similar proceedings.

7.2     Representati❑n and Warranty Regarding Hazardous Substances. Before signing this Agreement, the Borrower
researched and inquired into the previous uses and ownership of the Real Property. Based on that due diligence, the Borrower
represents and warrants that to the best of its knowledge, no hazardous substance has been disposed of or released or otherwise
exists in, on, under or onto the Real Property, except as the Borrower has disclosed to the Bank in writing.

7.3     C❑mpliance Regarding Hazardous Substances. The Borrower has complied, and will comply and cause all
occupants of the Real Property to comply, with all current and future laws, regulations and ordinances or other requirements of any
governmental authority relating to or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning protection of health or the environment or
hazardous substances ("Environmental Laws"). The Borrower shall promptly, at the Borrower's sole cost and expense, take all
reasonable actions with respect to any hazardous substances or other environmental condition at, on, or under the Real Property
necessary to (i) comply with all applicable Environmental Laws; (ii) allow continued use, occupation or operation of the Real
Property; or (iii) maintain the fair market value of the Real Property. The Borrower acknowledges that hazardous substances may
permanently and materially impair the value and use of the Real Property.

7.4     Notices Regarding Hazardous Substances. Until full repayment of the loan, the Borrower will promptly notify the
Bank in writing if it knows, suspects or believes there may be any hazardous substance in or around the Real Property, or in the
soil, groundwater or soil vapor on or under the Real Property , or that the Borrower or the Real Property may be subject
to any threatened or pending investigation by any governmental agency under any current or future law, regulation or
ordinance pertaining to any hazardous substance.

 

8

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
7.5     Site Visits, Observati❑ns and Testing. The Bank and its agents and representatives will have the right at any
reasonable time, after giving reasonable notice to the Borrower, to enter and visit the Real Property and any other locations where
any personal property collateral securing this Agreement is located, for the purposes of observing the Real Property and the
personal property collateral, taking and removing environmental samples, and conducting tests on any part of the Real Property .
The Borrower shall reimburse the Bank on demand for the costs of any such environmental investigation and testing.
The Bank will make reasonable efforts during any site visit, observation or testing conducted pursuant to this paragraph
to avoid interfering with the Borrower's use of the Real Property and the personal property collateral. The Bank is under
no duty, however, to visit or observe the Real Property or the personal property collateral or to conduct tests , and any
such acts by the Bank will be solely for the purposes of protecting the Bank's security and preserving the Bank's rights
under this Agreement. No site visit, observation or testing or any report or findings made as a result thereof
("Environmental Report") (i) will result in a waiver of any default of the Borrower; (ii) impose any liability on the Bank; or
(iii) be a representation or warranty of any kind regarding the Real Property or the personal property collateral (including
its condition or value or compliance with any laws) or the Environmental Report (including its accuracy or
completeness). In the event the Bank has a duty or obligation under applicable laws , regulations or other requirements to
disclose an Environmental Report to the Borrower or any other party, the Borrower authorizes the Bank to make such a
disclosure. The Bank may also disclose an Environmental Report to any regulatory authority, and to any other parties as
necessary or appropriate in the Bank's judgment. The Borrower further understands and agrees that any Environmental
Report or other information regarding a site visit, observation or testing that is disclosed to the Borrower by the Bank or
its agents and representatives is to be evaluated (including any reporting or other disclosure obligations of the Borrower)
by the Borrower without advice or assistance from the Bank.

7.6     Definition of Hazardous Substance. "Hazardous substance" means any substance, material or waste that is or
becomes designated or regulated as "toxic," "hazardous," "pollutant," or "contaminant" or a similar designation or regulation under
any current or future federal, state or local law (whether under common law, statute, regulation or otherwise) or judicial or
administrative interpretation of such, including without limitation petroleum or natural gas.

8.    DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

If an event of default under Section 8 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure period, without limiting any of the
Bank's rights and remedies in this Agreement, if any of the following events of default occurs, the Bank may do one or more of the
following without prior notice: declare the Borrower in default, stop making any additional credit available to the Borrower, and
require the Borrower to repay its entire debt immediately. If an event which, with notice or the passage of time, will constitute an
event of default has occurred and is continuing, the Bank has no obligation to make advances or extend additional credit under this
Agreement. In addition, if any event of default occurs, the Bank shall have all rights, powers and remedies available under any
instruments and agreements required by or executed in connection with this Agreement, as well as all rights and remedies available
at law or in equity. If an event of default occurs under the paragraph entitled "Bankruptcy/Receivers," below, with respect to the
Borrower, then the entire debt outstanding under
this Agreement will automatically be due immediately. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it shall not be an event of default, and Bank
shall have no additional remedies unless and until Borrower has been provided a thirty (30) day opportunity to cure any of 8.2,
8.3, 8.4, 8.9, 8.11 and 8.13 below.

8.1     Failure to Pay. If an event of default under Section 8 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure period,
the Borrower fails to make a payment under the Agreement within ten (10) days of when due.

8.2     C❑venants. If an event of default under Section 8 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure period,
any default in the performance of or compliance with any obligation, agreement or other provision contained in this Agreement
(other than those specifically described as an event of default in this Article).

8.3     Other Bank Agreements.  If an event of default under Section 8 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable
cure period, any default occurs under any guaranty, subordination agreement, security agreement, deed of trust, mortgage, or other
document required by or delivered in connection with this Agreement or any such document is no longer in effect, or any guarantor
purports to revoke or disavow the guaranty; or any representation or warranty made by any guarantor is false when made or
deemed to be made; or any default occurs under any other agreement the Borrower (or any Obligor) has with the Bank or any
affiliate of the Bank. For purposes of this Agreement, "Obligor" shall mean any guarantor, any party pledging collateral to the Bank,
or, if the Borrower is comprised of the trustees of a trust, any trustor.
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8.4     Cross-default. If an event of default under Section 8 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure period,
any default occurs under any agreement in connection with any credit the Borrower (or any Obligor) has obtained from anyone
else or which the Borrower (or any Obligor) or any of the Borrower's related entities or affiliates has guaranteed.

8.5     False Inf❑rmati❑n. The Borrower or any Obligor has given the Bank false or misleading information or
representations.

8.6     Bankruptcy/Receivers. The Borrower, any Obligor, or any general partner of the Borrower or of any Obligor files a
bankruptcy petition, a bankruptcy petition is filed against any of the foregoing parties and such petition is not dismissed within a
period of forty-five (45) days after the filing, or the Borrower, any Obligor, or any general partner of the Borrower
or of any Obligor makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or a receiver or similar official is appointed for a
substantial portion of Borrower's or any Obligor's business; or the business is terminated, or such Obligor is liquidated or dissolved.

8.7     Revocation or Terminati❑n. If the Borrower is comprised of the trustee(s) of a trust, the trust is revoked or
otherwise terminated or all or a substantial part of the Borrower's assets are distributed or otherwise disposed of.

8.8     Lien Priority. The Bank fails to have an enforceable first lien (except for any prior liens to which the Bank has
consented in writing) on or security interest in any property given as security for this Agreement (or any guaranty).

8.9     Judgments. If an event of default under Section 8 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure period,
any judgments or arbitration awards are entered against the Borrower or any Obligor.

8.10     Death. If the Borrower or any Obligor is a natural person, the Borrower or such Obligor dies or becomes legally
incompetent; if the Borrower or any Obligor is a trust, a trustor dies or becomes legally incompetent; if the Borrower or any Obligor is
a partnership, any general partner dies or becomes legally incompetent.

8 . 1 1       Material Adverse Change. If an event of default under Section 8 has occurred and is continuing beyond any
applicable cure period, any material adverse change occurs, or is reasonably likely to occur, in the Borrower's (or any Obligor's)
business condition (financial or otherwise), operations, or properties, or ability to repay the credit.

8.12     G❑vernment Acti❑n. Any government authority takes action that the Bank believes materially adversely affects the
Borrower's or any Obligor's financial condition or ability to repay.

8.13     ERISA Plans. If an event of default under Section 8 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure period, a
reportable event occurs under Section 4043(c) of ERISA, or any Plan termination (or commencement of proceedings to terminate a
Plan) or the full or partial withdrawal from a Plan under Section 4041 or 4042 of ERISA occurs; provided such event or events could
reasonably be expected, in the judgment of the Bank, to have a material adverse effect.

9.       ENFORCING THIS AGREEMENT; MISCELLANEOUS

9.1     GAAP. Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, all financial information provided to the Bank and all financial
covenants will be made under generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied or another basis acceptable to the
Bank.

9.2     G❑verning Law. Except to the extent that any law of the United States may apply, this Agreement shall be governed
and interpreted according to the laws of Colorado (the "Governing Law State"), without regard to any choice of law, rules or
principles to the contrary. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to limit or otherwise affect any rights or remedies of the
Bank under federal law.

9.3     Venue and Jurisdiction. The Borrower agrees that any action or suit against the Bank arising out of or relating to this
Agreement shall be filed in federal court or state court located in the Governing Law State. The Borrower agrees that the Bank
shall not be deemed to have waived its rights to enforce this section by filing an action or suit against the Borrower in a venue
outside of the Governing Law State. If the Bank does commence an action or suit arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the
Borrower agrees that the case may be filed in federal court or state court in the Governing Law State. The Bank reserves the right
to commence an action or suit in any other jurisdiction where the Borrower, any Guarantor, or any collateral has any presence or
is located. The Borrower consents to personal jurisdiction and venue in such forum selected by the Bank and waives any right to
contest jurisdiction and venue and the convenience of any such forum. The provisions of this section are material
inducements to the Bank's acceptance of this Agreement.
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9.4     Success❑rs and Assigns. This Agreement is binding on the Borrower's and the Bank's successors and
assignees. The Borrower agrees that it may not assign this Agreement without the Bank's prior consent.

9.5     Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT
EXECUTED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY (WHETHER
BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR ANY OTHER THEORY). EACH PARTY HERETO (a) CERTIFIES THAT NO
REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PERSON HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE,
THAT SUCH OTHER PERSON WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING
WAIVER, (b) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS
AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER DOCUMENTS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL
WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION AND (c) CERTIFIES THAT THIS WAIVER IS KNOWINGLY, WILLINGLY
AND VOLUNTARILY MADE.

9.6     Severability; Waivers. If any part of this Agreement is not enforceable, the rest of the Agreement may be enforced.
The Bank retains all rights, even if it makes a loan after default. If the Bank waives a default, it may enforce a later default. Any
consent or waiver under this Agreement must be in writing.

9.7     Expenses.

(a) The Borrower shall pay to the Bank immediately upon demand the full amount of all payments, advances, charges, costs
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, expended or incurred by the Bank in connection with (i) the negotiation
and preparation of this Agreement and any related agreements, the Bank's continued administration of this Agreement and
such related agreements, and the preparation of any amendments and waivers related to this Agreement or such related
agreements, (ii) filing, recording and search
fees, appraisal fees, field examination fees, title report fees, and documentation fees with respect to any collateral and
books and records of the Borrower or any Obligor, (iii) the Bank's costs or losses arising from any changes in law which are
allocated to this Agreement or any credit outstanding under this Agreement, and (iv) costs or expenses required to be paid
by the Borrower or any Obligor that are paid, incurred or advanced by the Bank.

(b) The Borrower will indemnify and hold the Bank harmless from any loss, liability, damages, judgments, and costs of any kind
relating to or arising directly or indirectly out of (i) this Agreement or any document required hereunder, (ii) any credit
extended or committed by the Bank to the Borrower hereunder, and (iii) any litigation or proceeding related to or arising out
of this Agreement, any such document, or any such credit, including, without limitation, any act resulting from the Bank
complying with instructions the Bank reasonably believes are made by
any Authorized Individual. This paragraph will survive this Agreement's termination, and will benefit the Bank and its
officers, employees, and agents.

(c) The Borrower shall reimburse the Bank for any reasonable costs and attorneys' fees incurred by the Bank in connection
with (i) the enforcement or preservation of the Bank's rights and remedies and/or the collection of any obligations of the
Borrower which become due to the Bank and in connection with any "workout" or restructuring, and (ii) the prosecution or
defense of any action in any way related to this Agreement, the credit provided hereunder or any related agreements,
including without limitation, any action for declaratory relief, whether incurred at the trial or appellate level, in an arbitration
proceeding or otherwise, and including any of the foregoing incurred in connection with any bankruptcy proceeding
(including without limitation, any adversary proceeding, contested matter or motion brought by the Bank or any other person)
relating to the Borrower or any other person or entity.

9.8     Individual Liability. If the Borrower is a natural person, the Bank may proceed against the Borrower's business and
non-business property in enforcing this and other agreements relating to this loan. If the Borrower is a partnership, the Bank may
proceed against the business and non-business property of each general partner of the Borrower in enforcing this and other
agreements relating to this loan.

9.9     Joint and Several Liability. If two or more Borrowers sign this Agreement, each Borrower agrees that it is jointly and
severally liable to the Bank for the payment of all obligations arising under this Agreement, and that such liability is independent of
the obligations of the other Borrowers.
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9.10  Set-Off. Upon and after the occurrence of an event of default under this Agreement, (a) the Borrower hereby authorizes
the Bank, at any time and from time to time, without notice, which is hereby expressly waived by the Borrower, and whether or not
the Bank shall have declared any credit subject hereto to be due and payable in accordance with the terms hereof, to set off
against, and to appropriate and apply to the payment of, the Borrower's Obligations (whether matured or unmatured, fixed or
contingent, liquidated or unliquidated), any and all amounts owing by the Bank to the Borrower (whether payable in U.S. dollars or
any other currency, whether matured or unmatured, and in the case of deposits, whether general or special (except trust and
escrow accounts), time or demand and however evidenced), and (b) pending any such action, to the extent necessary , to hold
such amounts as collateral to secure such Obligations and to return as unpaid for insufficient funds any and all checks
and other items drawn against any deposits so held as the Bank, in its sole discretion, may elect. The Borrower hereby
grants to the Bank a security interest in all deposits and accounts maintained with the Bank to secure the payment of all
Obligations of the Borrower to the Bank under this Agreement and all agreements, instruments and documents related to
this Agreement. "Obligations" means all obligations, now or hereafter existing , of the Borrower to the Bank under this
Agreement and under any other agreement or instrument executed in connection with this Agreement.

9.11  One Agreement. This Agreement and any related security or other agreements required by this Agreement constitute the
entire agreement between the Borrower and the Bank with respect to each credit subject hereto and supersede all prior
negotiations, communications, discussions and correspondence concerning the subject matter hereof.

In the event of any conflict between this Agreement and any other agreements required by this Agreement, this Agreement will
prevail.

9.12  Notices. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement or in another agreement between the Bank and the Borrower, all
notices required under this Agreement shall be personally delivered or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, or by overnight
courier to the addresses on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses as the Bank and the Borrower may
specify from time to time in writing. Notices and other communications shall be effective (i) if mailed, upon the earlier of receipt or
five (5) days after deposit in the U.S. mail, first class, postage prepaid, or (ii) if hand-delivered, by courier or otherwise (including
telegram, lettergram or mailgram), when delivered.

9.13  Headings. Article and paragraph headings are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation or meaning
of any provisions of this Agreement.

9.14  C❑unterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so executed, shall
be deemed to be an original, and all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. Delivery of an
executed counterpart of this Agreement (or of any agreement or document required by this Agreement and any amendment to this
Agreement) by telecopy or other electronic imaging means shall be as effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of
this Agreement; provided, however, that the telecopy or other electronic image shall be promptly followed by an original if required
by the Bank.

9.15  B❑rr❑wer Inf❑rmation; Reporting to Credit Bureaus. The Borrower authorizes the Bank at any time to verify or check
any information given by the Borrower to the Bank, check the Borrower's credit references, verify employment, and obtain credit
reports. The Borrower agrees that the Bank shall have the right at all times to disclose and report to credit reporting agencies and
credit rating agencies such information pertaining to the Borrower and/or all guarantors as is consistent with the Bank's policies and
practices from time to time in effect.

9.16  Cust❑mary Advertising Material. The Borrower and each Obligor consent to the publication by the Bank of
customary advertising material relating to the transactions contemplated hereby using the name, product photographs, logo or
trademark of the Borrower or such Obligor.

9.17  Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or modified only in writing signed by each party hereto.
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This Agreement is executed as of the date stated at the top of the first page. Bank:

 
Bank of America, N.A.
 
By: /s/ Kirk R. Fronckiewicz
Kirk R. Fronckiewicz, Senior Vice President

Borrower:

LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
 
By: /s/ Barry Knott
Barry Knott, President/CEO

Address where notices to LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC. are to
be sent:

Address where notices to the Bank are to be sent:

  
12441 West 49th Ave Unit 4
Wheat Ridge, CO 80033
US
 
Telephone:303-431-9500

Bank of America, N.A.
Doc Retention Center
CT2-515-BB-03
70 Batterson Park Road
Farmingt❑n, CT 06032
 
Facsimile: 
866-255-9922

 

Federal law requires Bank of America, N.A. (the "Bank") to provide the following notice. The notice is not part of the
foregoing agreement or instrument and may not be altered. Please read the notice carefully.

(1)   USA PATRIOT ACT NOTICE

Federal law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify and record information that identifies each person who opens an
account or obtains a loan. The Bank will ask for the Borrower's legal name, address, tax ID number or social security number and
other identifying information. The Bank may also ask for additional information or documentation or take other actions reasonably
necessary to verify the identity of the Borrower, guarantors or other related persons.
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SCHEDULE A FEES
 

(a) L❑an Fee. The Borrower agrees to pay a loan fee in the amount of Seven Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars
($7,500.00). This fee is due on the date of this Agreement.

 
(b) Waiver Fee. If the Bank, at its discretion, agrees to waive or amend any terms of this Agreement, the Borrower will, at the

Bank's option, pay the Bank a fee for each waiver or amendment in an amount advised by the Bank at the time the
Borrower requests the waiver or amendment. Nothing in this paragraph shall imply that the Bank is obligated to agree to any
waiver or amendment requested by the Borrower. The Bank may impose additional requirements as a condition to any
waiver or amendment.

(c) Late Fee. To the extent permitted by law, the Borrower agrees to pay a late fee in an amount not to exceed four percent
(4%) of any payment that is more than fifteen (15) days late. The imposition and payment of a late fee shall not constitute a
waiver of the Bank's rights with respect to the default.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



Exhibit 10.12
 
 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND WHEN RECORDED
MAIL TO:

Bank of America, N.A. Doc Retention Center
CT2-515-BB-03
70 Batterson Park Road
Farmingt❑n, CT 06032

Space above this line for Recorder's Use

DEED OF TRUST, ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS, SECURITY AGREEMENT
AND FIXTURE FILING

This Deed of Trust is made as of October 29, 2014, by LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC., as trustor ("Trustor"), with
an address at 12441 West 49th Ave Unit 4, Wheat Ridge, CO 80033, to the Public Trustee of Jeffers❑n County, Colorad❑, as
trustee ("Trustee"), for the benefit of Bank of America, N.A., a national banking association, as beneficiary ("Beneficiary") with an
address at Doc Retention Center, CT2-515-BB-03, 70 Batterson Park Road, Farmington, CT 06032.

1.    GRANT IN TRUST.

1.1    The Property. For the purpose of securing payment and performance of the Secured Obligations defined in
Section 2 below, Trustor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally grants, bargains, sells, conveys, transfers and assigns to Trustee, in
trust for the benefit of Beneficiary, with power of sale and right of entry and possession, all estate, right, title and interest which
Trustor now has or may later acquire in the following property (all or any part of such property, or any interest in all or any part of it,
together with the Personalty (as hereinafter defined) being hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Property"):

(a)    The real property located at 12441 West 49th Street, Units 11 - 18, Wheat Ridge, CO 80234 in the
County of Jefferson, as described in Exhibit A hereto (the "Land");

(b)    All buildings, structures, improvements, fixtures and appurtenances now or hereafter placed on the
Land, and all apparatus and equipment now or hereafter attached in any manner to the Land or any building on the Land,
including all pumping plants, engines, pipes, ditches and flumes, and also all gas, electric, cooking, heating, cooling, air
conditioning, lighting, refrigeration and plumbing fixtures and equipment (collectively, the "Improvements");

(c)    All easements and rights of way appurtenant to the Land; all crops growing or to be grown on the Land
(including all such crops following severance from the Land); all standing timber upon the Land (including all such timber
following severance from the Land); all development rights or credits and air rights; all roads, streets, alleys and other rights
of way (open or proposed) to the centerline, minerals, oil, gas, and other hydrocarbon substances and rights thereto in, on,
under, or upon the Land;

(d)    All water and water rights, whether tributary, nontributary, not nontributary, or other groundwater that
is subject to the provisions of Colorado Revised Statutes Section 37-90- 137(4) or the corresponding provisions of any
successor statute, whether adjudicated or unadjudicated, absolute or conditional, and all ditches and ditch rights, water
wells and well rights, State Engineer filings, well registration statements and well permits, water taps, reservoirs and
reservoir rights, springs, all decrees and pending water court applications, and all water company and mutual ditch or
reservoir company stock, and all right, title and interest under any decreed or pending plan of augmentation or water
exchange plan, which are, have been, or may be used on or in connection with, or appurtenant to, or located on or
underlying, or in any way associated with, the Land, with all appurtenances;
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(e)  All existing and future leases, subleases, subtenancies, licenses, occupancy agreements and
concessions relating to the use and enjoyment of all or any part of the Land or the Improvements, and any and all
guaranties and other agreements relating to or made in connection with any of the foregoing;

(f)  All proceeds, including all claims to and demands for them, of the voluntary or involuntary conversion of
any of the Land, Improvements, or the other property described above into cash or liquidated claims, including proceeds of
all present and future fire, hazard or casualty insurance policies, whether or not such policies are required by Beneficiary,
and all condemnation awards or payments now or later to be made by any public body or decree by any court of competent
jurisdiction for any taking or in connection with any condemnation or eminent domain proceeding, and all causes of action
and their proceeds for any breach of warranty, misrepresentation, damage or injury to, or defect in, the Land,
Improvements, or the other
property described above or any part of them; and

(g)  All proceeds of, additions and accretions to, substitutions and replacements for, and changes in any
of the property described above.

1.2   Fixture Filing. This Deed of Trust constitutes a financing statement filed as a fixture filing under the Colorado
Uniform Commercial Code, as amended or recodified from time to time, covering any Property which now is or later may become
a fixture attached to the Land or any building located thereon, as extracted collateral or timber to be cut. This Deed of Trust is to
be recorded in the real estate records of the county or city and county in which the fixtures are located. The address of Trustor, as
the debtor, and of Beneficiary, as the secured party, are as set forth in Section 7.13.

2.    THE SECURED OBLIGATIONS.

2.1    Purpose of Securing. Trustor makes the grant, conveyance, transfer and assignment set forth in Section 1,
makes the irrevocable and absolute assignment set forth in Section 3, and grants the security interest set forth in Section 4, all for
the purpose of securing the following obligations (the "Secured Obligations") in any order of priority that Beneficiary may choose:

(a)  Payment of all obligations of LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC. ("Obligor") to Beneficiary arising under
the following instrument(s) or agreement(s) (collectively, the "Debt Instrument"):

(i)  A certain Loan Agreement dated as of October 29, 2014, between Obligor and Beneficiary
which provides for extensions of credit in a principal amount not exceeding One Million Six Hundred Twelve
Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-One Dollars and No Cents ($1,612,981.00).

This Deed of Trust also secures payment of all obligations of Obligor under the Debt Instrument which arise after the Debt
Instrument is extended, renewed, modified or amended pursuant to any written agreement between Obligor and
Beneficiary, and all obligations of Obligor under any successor agreement or instrument which restates and supersedes
the Debt Instrument in its entirety;
 

(b)  Payment and performance of all obligations of Trustor under this Deed of Trust;
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(c) Payment and performance of all obligations of Obligor under any Swap Contract with respect to which
there is a writing evidencing the parties' agreement that said Swap Contract shall be secured by this Deed of Trust. "Swap
Contract" means any document, instrument or agreement with Beneficiary, now existing or entered into in the future,
relating to an interest rate swap transaction, forward rate transaction, interest rate cap, floor or collar transaction, any
similar transaction, any option to enter into any of the foregoing, and any combination of the foregoing, which agreement
may be oral or in writing, including, without limitation, any master agreement relating to or governing any or all of the
foregoing and any related schedule or confirmation, each as amended from time to time;

(d) Payment and performance of all future advances and other obligations that Trustor (or any successor
in interest to Trustor) or Obligor (if different from Trustor) may agree to pay and/or perform (whether as principal, surety or
guarantor) to or for the benefit of Beneficiary, when a writing signed by Trustor (or any successor in interest to Trustor)
evidences said parties' agreement that such advance or obligation be secured by this Deed of Trust; and

(e) If this Deed of Trust is foreclosed, either through the Trustee or the courts, payment of an amount
equal to any prepayment fee or premium that would be payable under the Debt Instrument if the Debt Instrument were
prepaid in full on the date of the foreclosure sale.

This Deed of Trust does not secure any obligation which expressly states that it is unsecured, whether contained in the
foregoing Debt Instrument or in any other document, agreement or instrument.

The date on which the final payment or performance of the obligation(s) under the Debt Instrument is due is as follows: October 29,
2039.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, "Secured Obligations" secured hereby shall not include obligations arising under any
Swap Contract to the extent that the grant of a lien hereunder to secure such Swap Contract would violate the Commodity
Exchange Act by virtue of the Trustor's failure to constitute an "eligible contract participant" as defined in the Commodity Exchange
Act at the time such grant of such lien becomes effective with respect to such Swap Contract. "Commodity Exchange Act" means 7
U.S.C. Section 1 et seq., as amended from time to time, any successor statute, and any rules, regulations and orders applicable
thereto.

2.2 Terms of Secured Obligations. All persons who may have or acquire an interest in all or any part of the
Property will be considered to have notice of, and will be bound by, the terms of the Debt Instrument described in Paragraph 2.1(a)
and each other agreement or instrument made or entered into in connection with each of the Secured Obligations. These terms
include any provisions in the Debt Instrument which permit borrowing, repayment and reborrowing, or which provide that the
interest rate on one or more of the Secured Obligations may vary from time to time.

2.3 Maximum Amount Secured. This Deed of Trust secures up to a total maximum principal amount of
$1,612,981.00, and shall be effective to secure payment of all advances, both obligatory and optional, up to such maximum
principal amount to the same extent and with the same effect and priority as if such total maximum principal amount had been
fully disbursed on or before the date this Deed of Trust was recorded.

3. ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS.

3.1 Assignment. Trustor hereby irrevocably, absolutely, presently and unconditionally assigns to Beneficiary all
rents, royalties, issues, profits, revenue, income and proceeds of the Property, whether now due, past due or to become due,
including all prepaid rents and security deposits (collectively, the "Rents"), and confers upon Beneficiary the right to collect such
Rents with or without taking possession of the Property. In the event that anyone establishes and exercises any right to develop,
bore for or mine for any water, gas, oil or mineral on or under the surface of the Property, any
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sums that may become due and payable to Trustor as bonus or royalty payments, and any damages or other compensation payable
to Trustor in connection with the exercise of any such rights, shall also be considered Rents assigned under this Paragraph. THIS IS
AN ABSOLUTE ASSIGNMENT, NOT AN ASSIGNMENT FOR SECURITY ONLY.

3.2 Grant of License. Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 3.1, Beneficiary hereby confers upon Trustor a
license ("License") to collect and retain the Rents as they become due and payable, so long as no Event of Default, as defined in
Paragraph 6.2, shall exist and be continuing. If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, Beneficiary shall have the right,
which it may choose to exercise in its sole discretion, to terminate this License without notice to or demand upon Trustor, and
without regard to the adequacy of the security for the Secured Obligations.

4. SECURITY INTEREST IN RELATED PERSONALTY.

4.1 Grant of Security Interest. Trustor grants to Beneficiary a security interest in, and pledges and assigns to
Beneficiary, all of Trustor's right, title and interest, whether presently existing or hereafter acquired in and to all of the following
property (collectively, the "Personalty"):

(a) All materials, supplies, goods, tools, furniture, fixtures, equipment, and machinery which in all cases is
affixed or attached, or to be affixed or attached, in any manner on the Land or the Improvements;

(b) All crops growing or to be grown on the Land (and after severance from the Land); all standing timber
upon the Land (and after severance from the Land); all sewer, water and water rights, whether tributary, nontributary, not
nontributary, or other groundwater that is subject to the provisions of Colorado Revised Statutes Section 37-90-137(4) or
the corresponding provisions of any successor statute, whether adjudicated or unadjudicated, absolute or conditional, and
all ditches and ditch rights, water wells and well rights, State Engineer filings, well registration statements and well
permits, water taps, reservoirs and reservoir rights, springs, all decrees and pending water court applications, and all
water company and mutual ditch or reservoir company stock, and all right, title and interest under any decreed or pending
plan of augmentation or water exchange plan, which are, have been, or may be used on or in connection with, or
appurtenant to, or located on or underlying, or in any way associated with, the Land, with all appurtenances; and all
architectural and engineering plans, specifications and drawings which arise from or relate to the Land or the
Improvements;

(c) All permits, licenses and claims to or demands for the voluntary or involuntary conversion of any of the
Land, Improvements, or other Property into cash or liquidated claims, proceeds of all present and future fire,
hazard or casualty insurance policies relating to

the Land and the Improvements, whether or not such policies are required by Beneficiary, and all condemnation awards or
payments now or later to be made by any public body or decree by any court of competent jurisdiction for any taking or in
connection with any condemnation or eminent domain proceeding, and all causes of action and their proceeds for any
breach of warranty, misrepresentation, damage or injury to, or defect in, the Land, Improvements, or other Property or
any part of them;

(d) All substitutions, replacements, additions, and accessions to any of the above property, and all books,
records and files relating to any of the above property, including, without limitation, all general intangibles related to any of the
above property and all proceeds of the above property.

5. RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF THE PARTIES.

5.1 Representations and Warranties. Trustor represents and warrants that Trustor lawfully possesses and
holds fee simple title to all of the Land and the Improvements, unless Trustor's present interest in the Land and the
Improvements is described in Exhibit A as a leasehold interest, in which case Trustor lawfully possesses and holds a leasehold
interest in the Land and the Improvements as stated in Exhibit A.
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5.2 Taxes, Assessments, Liens and Encumbrances. Trustor shall pay prior to delinquency all taxes, levies, charges
and assessments, including assessments on appurtenant water stock, imposed by any public or quasi-public authority or utility
company which are (or if not paid, may become) a lien on all or part of the Property or any interest in it, or which may cause any
decrease in the value of the Property or any part of it. Trustor shall immediately discharge any lien on the Property which
Beneficiary has not consented to in writing, and shall also pay when due each obligation secured by or reducible to a lien, charge or
encumbrance which now or hereafter encumbers or appears to encumber all or part of the Property, whether the lien, charge or
encumbrance is or would be senior or subordinate to this Deed of Trust.

5.3 Damages and Insurance and Condemnation Proceeds.

(a) Trustor hereby absolutely and irrevocably assigns to Beneficiary, and authorizes the payor to
pay to Beneficiary, the following claims, causes of action, awards, payments and rights to payment (collectively, the
"Claims"):

(i) all awards of damages and all other compensation payable directly or indirectly because of a
condemnation, proposed condemnation or taking for public or private use which affects all or part of the Property or
any interest in it;

(ii) all other awards, claims and causes of action, arising out of any breach of warranty or
misrepresentation affecting all or any part of the Property, or for damage or injury to, or defect in, or decrease in
value of all or part of the Property or any interest in it;

(iii) all proceeds of any insurance policies payable because of loss sustained to all or part of
the Property, whether or not such insurance policies are required by Beneficiary; and

(iv) all interest which may accrue on any of the foregoing.
 

(b) Trustor shall immediately notify Beneficiary in writing if:
 
(i) any damage occurs or any injury or loss is sustained to all or part of the Property, or any

action or proceeding relating to any such damage, injury or loss is commenced; or

(ii) any offer is made, or any action or proceeding is commenced, which relates to any actual or
proposed condemnation or taking of all or part of the Property.

If Beneficiary chooses to do so, it may in its own name appear in or prosecute any action or proceeding to enforce any
cause of action based on breach of warranty or misrepresentation, or for damage or injury to, defect in, or decrease in
value of all or part of the Property, and it may make any compromise or settlement of the action or proceeding. Beneficiary,
if it so chooses, may participate in any action or proceeding relating to condemnation or taking of all or part of the Property,
and may join Trustor in adjusting any loss covered by insurance.

(c) All proceeds of the Claims assigned to Beneficiary under this Paragraph shall be paid to Beneficiary. In
each instance, Beneficiary shall apply those proceeds first toward reimbursement of all of Beneficiary's costs and expenses
of recovering the proceeds, including attorneys' fees. Trustor further authorizes Beneficiary, at Beneficiary's option and in
Beneficiary's sole discretion, and regardless of whether there is any impairment of the Property, (i) to apply the balance of
such proceeds, or any portion of them, to pay or prepay some or all of the Secured
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Obligations in such order or proportion as Beneficiary may determine, or (ii) to hold the balance of such proceeds, or any
portion of them, in an interest-bearing account to be used for the cost of reconstruction, repair or alteration of the Property,
or (iii) to release the balance of such proceeds, or any portion of them, to Trustor. If any proceeds are released to Trustor,
neither Beneficiary nor Trustee shall be obligated to see to, approve or supervise the proper application of such proceeds.
If the proceeds are held by Beneficiary to be used to reimburse Trustor for the costs of restoration and repair of the
Property, the Property shall be restored to the equivalent of its original condition, or such other condition as Beneficiary may
approve in writing. Beneficiary may, at Beneficiary's option, condition disbursement of the proceeds on Beneficiary's
approval of such plans and specifications prepared by an architect satisfactory to Beneficiary, contractor's cost estimates,
architect's certificates, waivers of liens, sworn statements of mechanics and materialmen, and such other evidence of costs,
percentage of completion of construction, application of payments, and satisfaction of liens as Beneficiary may reasonably
require.

5.4 Insurance. Trustor shall provide and maintain in force at all times all risk property damage insurance (including
without limitation windstorm coverage, and hurricane coverage as applicable) on the Property and such other type of insurance on
the Property as may be required by Beneficiary in its reasonable judgment. At Beneficiary's request, Trustor shall provide
Beneficiary with a counterpart original of any policy, together with a certificate of insurance setting forth the coverage, the limits of
liability, the carrier, the policy number and the expiration date. Each such policy of insurance shall be in an amount, for a term, and
in form and content satisfactory to Beneficiary, and shall be written only by companies approved by Beneficiary. In addition, each
policy of hazard insurance shall include a Form 438BFU or equivalent loss payable endorsement in favor of Beneficiary.

5.5 Maintenance and Preservation of Property.

(a) Trustor shall keep the Property in good condition and repair and shall not commit or allow waste of the
Property. Trustor shall not remove or demolish the Property or any part of it, or alter, restore or add to the Property, or
initiate or allow any change in any zoning or other land use classification which affects the Property or any part of it,
except with Beneficiary's express prior written consent in each instance.

(b) If all or part of the Property becomes damaged or destroyed, Trustor shall promptly and completely
repair and/or restore the Property in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with sound building practices,
regardless of whether or not Beneficiary agrees to disburse insurance proceeds or other sums to pay costs of the work of
repair or reconstruction under Paragraph 5.3.

(c) Trustor shall not commit or allow any act upon or use of the Property which would violate any
applicable law or order of any governmental authority, whether now existing or later to be enacted and whether foreseen or
unforeseen, or any public or private covenant, condition, restriction or equitable servitude affecting the Property. Trustor
shall not bring or keep any article on the Property or cause or allow any condition to exist on it, if that could invalidate or
would be prohibited by any insurance coverage required to be maintained by Trustor on the Property or any part of it under
this Deed of Trust.

(d) If Trustor's interest in the Property is a leasehold interest, Trustor shall observe and perform all
obligations of Trustor under any lease or leases and shall refrain from taking any actions prohibited by any lease or
leases. Trustor shall preserve and protect the leasehold estate and its value.

(e) If the Property is agricultural, Trustor shall farm the Property in a good and husbandlike manner.
Trustor shall keep all trees, vines and crops on the Property properly cultivated, irrigated, fertilized, sprayed and fumigated,
and shall replace all dead or unproductive trees or vines with new ones. Trustor shall prepare for harvest, harvest, remove
and sell any
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crops growing on the Property. Trustor shall keep all buildings, fences, ditches, canals, wells and other farming
improvements on the Property in first class condition, order and repair.

(f) Trustor shall perform all other acts which from the character or use of the Property may be reasonably
necessary to maintain and preserve its value.

5.6 Releases, Extensions, Modifications and Additional Security. Without affecting the personal liability of any
person, including Trustor (or Obligor, if different from Trustor), for the payment of the Secured Obligations or the lien of this Deed
of Trust on the remainder of the Property for the unpaid amount of the Secured Obligations, Beneficiary and Trustee are
respectively empowered as follows:

(a) Beneficiary may from time to time and without notice:

(i) release any person liable for payment of any Secured Obligation;

(ii) extend the time for payment, or otherwise alter the terms of payment, of any Secured
Obligation;

(iii) accept additional real or personal property of any kind as security for any Secured Obligation,
whether evidenced by deeds of trust, mortgages, security agreements or any other instruments of security; or

 
(iv) alter, substitute or release any property securing the Secured Obligati❑ns.

(b) Trustee may perform any of the following acts when requested to do so by Beneficiary in writing:

(i) consent to the making of any plat or map of the Property or any part of it;
 
(ii) join in granting any easement or creating any restriction affecting the Pr❑perty;

(iii) join in any subordination or other agreement affecting this Deed of Trust or the lien of it; or

(iv) reconvey the Property or any part of it without any warranty.

5.7 Reconveyance. When all of the Secured Obligations have been paid in full and no further commitment to
extend credit continues, Trustee shall reconvey the Property, or so much of it as is then held under this Deed of Trust, without
warranty to the person or persons legally entitled to it. In the reconveyance, the grantee may be described as "the person or
persons legally entitled thereto," and the recitals of any matters or facts shall be conclusive proof of their truthfulness. Neither
Beneficiary nor Trustee shall have any duty to determine the rights of persons claiming to be rightful grantees of any reconveyance.

5.8 Compensation and Reimbursement of Costs and Expenses.

(a) Trustor agrees to pay fees in the maximum amounts legally permitted, or reasonable fees as may
be charged by Beneficiary and Trustee when the law provides no maximum limit, for any services that Beneficiary or
Trustee may render in connection with this Deed of Trust, including Beneficiary's providing a statement of the Secured
Obligations or Trustee's rendering of services in connection with a reconveyance. Trustor shall also pay or reimburse all
of Beneficiary's and Trustee's costs and expenses which may be incurred in rendering any such services.
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(b) Trustor further agrees to pay or reimburse Beneficiary for all costs, expenses and other advances
which may be incurred or made by Beneficiary or Trustee to protect or preserve the Property or to enforce any terms of this
Deed of Trust, including the exercise of any rights or remedies afforded to Beneficiary or Trustee or both of them under
Paragraph 6.3, whether any lawsuit is filed or not, or in defending any action or proceeding arising under or relating to this
Deed of Trust, including attorneys' fees and other legal costs, costs of any sale of the Property and any cost of evidence of
title.

(c) Trustor shall pay all obligations arising under this Paragraph immediately upon demand by Trustee or
Beneficiary. Each such obligation shall be added to, and considered to be part of, the principal of the Secured Obligations,
and shall bear interest from the date the obligation arises at the rate provided in any instrument or agreement evidencing
the Secured Obligations. If more than one rate of interest is applicable to the Secured Obligations, the highest rate shall be
used for purposes hereof.

5.9 Exculpation and Indemnification.

(a) Beneficiary shall not be directly or indirectly liable to Trustor or any other person as a consequence
of any of the following:

(i) Beneficiary's exercise of or failure to exercise any rights, remedies or powers granted to it in
this Deed of Trust;

(ii) Beneficiary's failure or refusal to perform or discharge any obligation or liability of Trustor under
any agreement related to the Property or under this Deed of Trust;

(iii) Beneficiary's failure to produce Rents from the Property or to perform any of the
obligations of the lessor under any lease covering the Property;

(iv) any waste committed by lessees of the Property or any other parties, or any dangerous or
defective condition of the Property; or

(v) any loss sustained by Trustor or any third party resulting from any act or omission of Beneficiary
in operating or managing the Property upon exercise of the rights or remedies afforded Beneficiary under
Paragraph 6.3, unless the loss is caused
by the willful misconduct and bad faith of Beneficiary.

Trustor hereby expressly waives and releases all liability of the types described above, and agrees that no such
liability shall be asserted against or imposed upon Beneficiary.

(b) Trustor agrees to indemnify Trustee and Beneficiary against and hold them harmless from all losses,
damages, liabilities, claims, causes of action, judgments, court costs, attorneys' fees and other legal expenses, cost of
evidence of title, cost of evidence of value, and other costs and expenses which either may suffer or incur in performing any
act required or permitted by this Deed of Trust or by law or because of any failure of Trustor to perform any of its
obligations. This agreement by Trustor to indemnify Trustee and Beneficiary shall survive the release and cancellation of
any or all of the Secured Obligations and the full or partial release and/or reconveyance of this Deed of Trust.

5.10 Defense and Notice of Claims and Actions. At Trustor's sole expense, Trustor shall protect, preserve and
defend the Property and title to and right of possession of the Property, and the security of this Deed of Trust and the rights and
powers of Beneficiary and Trustee created under it, against all adverse claims. Trustor shall give Beneficiary and Trustee prompt
notice in writing if any claim is asserted which does or could affect any of these matters, or if any action or proceeding is
commenced which alleges or relates to any such claim.
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5.11 Substitution of Trustee. From time to time, Beneficiary may substitute a successor to any Trustee named in or
acting under this Deed of Trust in any manner now or later to be provided at law, or by a written instrument executed and
acknowledged by Beneficiary and recorded in the office of the recorder of the county where the Property is situated. Any such
instrument shall be conclusive proof of the proper substitution of the successor Trustee, who shall automatically upon recordation
of the instrument succeed to all estate, title, rights, powers and duties of the predecessor Trustee, without conveyance from it.

5.12 Representation and Warranty Regarding Hazardous Substances. Before signing this Deed of Trust, Trustor
researched and inquired into the previous uses and ownership of the Property. Based on that due diligence, Trustor represents and
warrants that to the best of its knowledge, no hazardous substance has been disposed of or released or otherwise exists in, on,
under or onto the Property, except as Trustor has disclosed to Beneficiary in writing. Trustor further represents and warrants that
Trustor has complied, and will comply and cause all occupants of the Property to comply, with all current and future laws,
regulations and ordinances or other requirements of any governmental authority relating to or imposing liability or standards of
conduct concerning protection of health or the environment or hazardous substances ("Environmental Laws"). Trustor shall
promptly, at Trustor's sole cost and expense, take all reasonable actions with respect to any hazardous substances or other
environmental condition at, on, or under the Property necessary to (i) comply with all applicable Environmental Laws; (ii) allow
continued use, occupation or operation of the Property; or (iii) maintain the fair market value of the Property. Trustor acknowledges
that hazardous substances may permanently
and materially impair the value and use of the Property. "Hazardous substance" means any substance, material or waste that is or
becomes designated or regulated as "toxic," "hazardous," "pollutant," or "contaminant" or a similar designation or regulation under
any current or future federal, state or local law (whether under common law, statute, regulation or otherwise) or judicial or
administrative interpretation of such, including without limitation petroleum or natural gas.

5.13 Site Visits, Observation and Testing. Beneficiary and its agents and representatives shall have the right at any
reasonable time, after giving reasonable notice to Trustor, to enter and visit the Property for the purposes of performing appraisals,
observing the Property, taking and removing environmental samples, and conducting tests on any part of the Property. Trustor
shall reimburse Beneficiary on demand for the costs of any such environmental investigation and testing. Beneficiary will make
reasonable efforts during any site visit, observation or testing conducted pursuant this Paragraph to avoid interfering with Trustor's
use of the Property. Beneficiary is under no duty, however, to visit or observe the Property or to conduct tests, and any such acts
by Beneficiary will be solely for the purposes of protecting Beneficiary's security and preserving Beneficiary's rights under this
Deed of Trust. No site visit, observation or testing or any report or findings made as a result thereof ("Environmental Report") (i)
will result in a waiver of any default of Trustor; (ii) impose any liability on Beneficiary; or (iii) be a representation or warranty of any
kind regarding the Property (including its condition or value or compliance with any laws) or the Environmental Report (including its
accuracy or completeness). In the event Beneficiary has a duty or obligation under applicable laws, regulations or other
requirements to disclose an Environmental Report to Trustor or any other party, Trustor authorizes Beneficiary to make such a
disclosure. Beneficiary may also disclose an Environmental Report to any regulatory authority, and to any other parties as
necessary or appropriate in Beneficiary's judgment. Trustor further understands and agrees that any Environmental Report or other
information regarding a site visit, observation or testing that is disclosed to Trustor by Beneficiary or its agents and representatives
is to be evaluated (including any reporting or other disclosure obligations of Trustor) by Trustor without advice or assistance from
Beneficiary.

5.14 Additional Provisions Relating to Condominiums. If the Property is subject to a condominium declaration of
conditions, covenants and restrictions recorded in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of the county in which the Property is
located (the "Declaration"), the following provisions shall apply.
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(a) The provisions contained in this Deed of Trust are obligations of Trustor in addition to Trustor's
obligations under the Declaration with respect to similar matters, and shall not restrict or limit Trustor's duties and
obligations to keep and perform promptly all of its obligations as unit owner under the Declaration.

(b) Trustor shall at all times fully perform and comply with all the agreements, covenants, terms and
conditions imposed upon unit owners under the Declaration, and if Trustor fails to do so, Beneficiary may (but shall not be
obligated to) take any action Beneficiary deems necessary or desirable to prevent or cure any default thereunder.
Beneficiary may also take such action as it deems necessary or desirable to cure a default under the Declaration by Trustor
or any other party occupying the unit(s) (a "Unit Occupant") encumbered by this Deed of Trust, upon receipt by Beneficiary
from the condominium association under the Declaration (the "Association") of written notice of such default, even though
the existence of such default or the nature thereof may be questioned or denied by Trustor or by any party on behalf of
Trustor. Beneficiary may pay and expend such sums of money as Beneficiary in its sole discretion deems necessary to
prevent or cure any default by Trustor or a Unit Occupant, and Trustor hereby agrees to pay to Beneficiary, immediately
and without demand, all such sums so paid and expended by Beneficiary, together with interest thereon from the date of
each such payment at the rate (the "Demand Rate") of two percent (2%) in excess of the then current rate of interest under
the Debt Instrument. All sums so paid and expended by Beneficiary, and the interest thereon, shall be added to and be
secured by the lien of this Deed of Trust. At Beneficiary's request, Trustor will submit satisfactory evidence of payment of all
of its monetary obligations
under the Declaration (including but not limited to rents, taxes, assessments, insurance premiums and operating expenses).

(c) At Beneficiary's request, Trustor will submit satisfactory evidence of payment of all of its monetary
obligations under the Declaration (including but not limited to rents, taxes, assessments, insurance premiums and operating
expenses).

(d) Trustor shall advise Beneficiary in writing of the giving of any notice to Trustor by the Association under
the Declaration of any default by Trustor as unit owner or by a Unit Occupant thereunder in the performance or observance
of any of the terms, conditions and covenants to be performed or observed by Trustor or such Unit Occupant thereunder,
and Trustor shall deliver to Beneficiary a true copy of each such notice.

(e) If any action, proceeding, motion or notice shall be commenced or filed in respect of the Association in
connection with any case (including a case commenced or filed under the Bankruptcy Code), Beneficiary shall have the
option, to the exclusion of Trustor, exercisable upon notice from Beneficiary to Trustor, to conduct and control any such
litigation with counsel of Beneficiary's choice. Beneficiary may proceed in its own name or in the name of Trustor in
connection with any such litigation, and Trustor agrees to execute any and all powers, authorizations, consents or other
documents required by Beneficiary in connection therewith. Trustor shall, upon demand, pay to Beneficiary all costs and
expenses (including attorneys' fees) paid or incurred by Beneficiary in connection with the prosecution or conduct of any
such proceedings. Any such costs or expenses not paid by Trustor as aforesaid shall be secured by the lien of this Deed of
Trust and shall be added to the principal amount of the indebtedness secured hereby. Trustor shall not commence any
action, suit, proceeding or case, or file any application or make any motion, in respect of the Declaration in any such case
without the prior written consent of Beneficiary.

(f) Trustor will use its best efforts to obtain and deliver to Beneficiary within twenty (20) days after written
request by Beneficiary, an estoppel certificate from the Association setting forth (i) the name of the unit owner, (ii) that the
Declaration has not been modified or, if it has been modified, the date of each modification (together with copies of each
such modification), (iii) the amount of common expenses and other assessments payable by Trustor as unit owner
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under the Declaration, (iv) the date to which all common expenses and other assessments have been paid by Trustor as
unit owner under the Declaration, (v) whether there are any alleged defaults by Trustor or a Unit Occupant under the
Declaration and, if so, setting forth the nature thereof in reasonable detail, and (vi) as to such other matters as Beneficiary
may reasonably request.

(g) Trustor represents and warrants to Beneficiary that as of the date hereof, no default under the
Declaration has occurred and is continuing.

(h) Trustor shall take such actions as may be reasonable to insure that the Association maintains a public
liability insurance policy acceptable in form, amount, and extent of coverage to Beneficiary.

(i) Trustor shall not, except after notice to Beneficiary and with Beneficiary's prior
written consent, either partition or subdivide the Property or consent to:

(i) the abandonment or termination of the condominium(s) encumbered by this Deed of Trust,
except for abandonment or termination required by law in the case of substantial destruction by fire or other
casualty or in the case of a taking by condemnation or eminent domain;

(ii) any amendment to any provision of the Declaration, the Association's
bylaws or articles or any rules and regulations promulgated by the Association;

(iii) termination of professional management and assumption of self- management of the
Association; or

(iv) any action which would have the effect of rendering the public liability insurance coverage
maintained by the Association unacceptable to Beneficiary.

6. ACCELERATING TRANSFERS, DEFAULT AND REMEDIES.

6.1  Accelerating Transfers

(a) "Accelerating Transfer" means any sale, contract to sell, conveyance, encumbrance, or other transfer,
whether voluntary, involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, of all or any material part of the Property or any interest in
it, including any transfer or exercise of any right to drill for or to extract any water (other than for Trustor's own use), oil,
gas or other hydrocarbon substances or any mineral of any kind on or under the surface of the Property. If Trustor is a
corporation, "Accelerating Transfer" also means any transfer or transfers of shares possessing, in the aggregate, more
than fifty percent (50%) of the voting power. If Trustor is a partnership, "Accelerating Transfer" also means withdrawal or
removal of any general partner, dissolution of the partnership under applicable law, or any transfer or transfers of, in the
aggregate, more than fifty percent (50%) of the partnership interests. If Trustor is a limited liability company, "Accelerating
Transfer" also means withdrawal or removal of any managing member, termination of the limited liability company or any
transfer or transfers of, in the aggregate, more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting power or in the aggregate more than
fifty percent of the ownership of the economic interest in the Trustor.

(b) Trustor agrees that Trustor shall not make any Accelerating Transfer, unless the transfer is preceded by
Beneficiary's express written consent to the particular transaction and transferee. Beneficiary may withhold such consent in
its sole discretion. If any Accelerating Transfer occurs, Beneficiary in its sole discretion may declare all of the Secured
Obligations to be immediately due and payable, and Beneficiary and Trustee may invoke any rights and remedies provided
by Paragraph 6.3 of this Deed of Trust.
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6.2  Events of Default. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events, at the option of Beneficiary, shall
constitute an event of default ("Event of Default") under this Deed of Trust:

(a) Obligor fails to make any payment, when due, under the Debt Instrument (after giving effect to any
applicable grace period), or any other default occurs under and as defined in the Debt Instrument or in any other
instrument or agreement evidencing any of the Secured Obligations and such default continues beyond any applicable
cure period;

(b) Trustor fails to make any payment or perform any obligation which arises under this Deed of Trust;

(c) Trustor makes or permits the occurrence of an Accelerating Transfer in violation of Paragraph 6.1;

(d) Any representation or warranty made in connection with this Deed of Trust or the Secured Obligations
proves to have been false or misleading in any material respect when made;

(e) Any default occurs under any other deed of trust on all or any part of the Property, or under any
obligation secured by such deed of trust, whether such deed of trust is prior to or subordinate to this Deed of Trust; or

(f) An event occurs which gives Beneficiary the right or option to terminate any
Swap Contract secured by this Deed of Trust.

6.3 Remedies. At any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default, Beneficiary and Trustee shall be entitled to
invoke any and all of the rights and remedies described below, as well as any other rights and remedies authorized by law. All of
such rights and remedies shall be cumulative, and the exercise of any one or more of them shall not constitute an election of
remedies.

(a) Beneficiary may declare any or all of the Secured Obligations to be due and payable immediately, and
may terminate any Swap Contract secured by this Deed of Trust in accordance with its terms.

(b) Beneficiary may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for, and obtain appointment of, a receiver
for the Property, ex parte, without notice, and without regard to the solvency of Trustor or Obligor or any impairment to the
Property.

(c) Beneficiary, in person, by agent or by court-appointed receiver, may enter, take possession of, manage
and operate all or any part of the Property, and in its own name or in the name of Trustor sue for or otherwise collect any
and all Rents, including those that are past due, and may also do any and all other things in connection with those actions
that Beneficiary may in its sole discretion consider necessary and appropriate to protect the security of this Deed of Trust.
Such other things may include: entering into, enforcing, modifying, or canceling leases on such terms and conditions as
Beneficiary may consider proper; obtaining and evicting tenants; fixing or modifying Rents; completing any unfinished
construction; contracting for and making repairs and alterations; performing such acts of cultivation or irrigation as
necessary to conserve the value of the Property; and preparing for harvest, harvesting and selling any crops that may be
growing on the property. Trustor hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints Beneficiary as its attorney-in-fact to perform
such acts and execute such documents as Beneficiary in its sole discretion may consider to be appropriate in connection
with taking these measures, including endorsement of Trustor's name on any instruments. Trustor agrees to deliver to
Beneficiary all books and records pertaining to the Property, including computer-readable memory and any computer
hardware or software necessary to access or process such memory, as may
reasonably be requested by Beneficiary in order to enable Beneficiary to exercise its rights under this Paragraph.
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(d) Either Beneficiary or Trustee may cure any breach or default of Trustor, and if it chooses to do so in
connection with any such cure, Beneficiary or Trustee may also enter the Property and/or do any and all other things which
it may in its sole discretion consider necessary and appropriate to protect the security of this Deed of Trust. Such other
things may include: appearing in and/or defending any action or proceeding which purports to affect the security of, or the
rights or powers of Beneficiary or Trustee under, this Deed of Trust; paying, purchasing, contesting or compromising any
encumbrance, charge, lien or claim of lien which in Beneficiary's or Trustee's sole judgment is or may be senior in priority to
this Deed of Trust, such judgment of Beneficiary or Trustee to be conclusive as among the parties to this Deed of Trust;
obtaining insurance and/or paying any premiums or charges for insurance required to be carried under this Deed of Trust;
otherwise caring for and protecting any and all of the Property; and/or employing counsel, accountants, contractors and
other appropriate persons to assist Beneficiary or Trustee. Beneficiary and Trustee may take any of the actions permitted
hereunder either with or without giving notice to any person.

(e) Beneficiary may bring an action in any court of competent jurisdiction to foreclose this instrument or to
obtain specific enforcement of any of the covenants or agreements of this Deed of Trust.

(f) Beneficiary may foreclose this Deed of Trust either by judicial action or through Trustee. Foreclosure
through Trustee will be initiated by Beneficiary's filing of its notice of election and demand for sale with Trustee. Upon the
filing of such notice of election and
demand for sale, Trustee shall promptly comply with all notice and other requirements of the laws of Colorado then in force
with respect to such sales. The proceeds of any sale under this section shall be applied first to the fees and expenses of the
officer conducting the sale, and then to the reduction or discharge of the Secured Obligations in such order as Beneficiary
may elect; any surplus remaining shall be paid over to such person or persons as may be lawfully entitled to
such surplus. At the conclusion of any foreclosure sale, the officer conducting the sale shall execute and deliver to the
purchaser at the sale such certificates of purchase or deeds or other instruments of conveyance as are permitted in
accordance with Colorado law. Nothing in this section dealing with foreclosure procedures or specifying particular actions
to be taken by Beneficiary or by Trustee or any similar officer shall be deemed to contradict or add to the requirements
and procedures now or hereafter specified by Colorado law, and any such inconsistency shall be resolved in favor of
Colorado law applicable at the time of foreclosure.

(g) Beneficiary may proceed under the Uniform Commercial Code as to all or any part of the Personalty,
and in conjunction therewith may exercise all of the rights, remedies and powers of a secured creditor under the Uniform
Commercial Code. When all time periods then legally mandated have expired, and after such notice of sale as may then be
legally required has been given, Trustee may sell the Personalty at a public sale to be held at the time and place specified
in the notice of sale. It shall be deemed commercially reasonable for the Trustee to dispose of the Personalty without giving
any warranties as to the Personalty and specifically disclaiming all disposition warranties.

(h) Notwithstanding the availability of legal remedies, Beneficiary will be entitled to obtain specific
performance, mandatory and prohibitory injunctive relief or other equitable relief requiring Trustor to cure or refrain from
repeating any default.

6.4 Application of Sale Proceeds and Rents.

(a) Beneficiary and Trustee shall apply the proceeds of any sale of the Property in the following manner:
first, to pay the portion of the Secured Obligations attributable to the costs, fees and expenses of the sale, including costs
of evidence of title in connection with the sale; and, second, to pay all other Secured Obligations in any order and
proportions as Beneficiary in its sole discretion may choose. The remainder, if any, shall be remitted to the person or
persons entitled thereto.
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(b) Beneficiary shall apply any and all Rents collected by it, and any and all sums other than proceeds of
any sale of the Property which Beneficiary may receive or collect under Paragraph 6.3, in the following manner: first, to pay
the portion of the Secured Obligations attributable to the costs and expenses of operation and collection that may be
incurred by Trustee, Beneficiary or any receiver; and, second, to pay all other Secured Obligations in any order and
proportions as Beneficiary in its sole discretion may choose. The remainder, if any, shall be remitted to the person or
persons entitled thereto. Beneficiary shall have no liability for any funds which it does not actually receive.

7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

7.1 No Waiver or Cure.

(a) Each waiver by Beneficiary or Trustee must be in writing, and no waiver shall be construed as a
continuing waiver. No waiver shall be implied from any delay or failure by Beneficiary or Trustee to take action on account
of any default of Trustor. Consent by Beneficiary or Trustee to any act or omission by Trustor shall not be construed as a
consent to any other or subsequent act or omission or to waive the requirement for Beneficiary's or Trustee's consent to be
obtained in any future or other instance.

(b) If any of the events described below occurs, that event alone shall not cure or waive any breach, Event
of Default or notice of default under this Deed of Trust or invalidate any act performed pursuant to any such default or
notice; or nullify the effect of any notice of default or sale (unless all Secured Obligations then due have been paid and
performed); or impair the security of this Deed of Trust; or prejudice Beneficiary, Trustee or any receiver in the exercise of
any right or remedy afforded any of them under this Deed of Trust; or be construed as an affirmation by Beneficiary of any
tenancy, lease or option, or a subordination of the lien of this Deed of Trust:

(i) Beneficiary, its agent or a receiver takes possession of all or any part of  the Pr❑perty;

(ii) Beneficiary collects and applies Rents, either with or without taking possession of all or any
part of the Property;

(iii) Beneficiary receives and applies to any Secured Obligation proceeds of any Property,
including any proceeds of insurance policies, condemnation awards, or other claims, property or rights assigned
to Beneficiary under this Deed of Trust;

(iv) Beneficiary makes a site visit, observes the Property and/or conducts tests thereon;

(v) Beneficiary receives any sums under this Deed of Trust or any proceeds of any collateral
held for any of the Secured Obligations, and applies them to one or more Secured Obligations;

(vi) Beneficiary, Trustee or any receiver performs any act which it is empowered or authorized
to perform under this Deed of Trust or invokes any right or remedy provided under this Deed of Trust; or

 
(vii) Any notice of default and election to sell under this Deed of Trust is cancelled.
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7.2 Powers of Beneficiary and Trustee.

(a) Trustee shall have no obligation to perform any act which it is empowered to perform under this Deed
of Trust unless it is requested to do so in writing and is reasonably indemnified against loss, cost, liability and expense.

(b) Beneficiary may take any of the actions permitted under Paragraphs 6.3(b) and/or 6.3(c) regardless of
the adequacy of the security for the Secured Obligations, or whether any or all of the Secured Obligations have been
declared to be immediately due and payable, or whether notice of default and election to sell has been given under this
Deed of Trust.

(c) From time to time, Beneficiary or Trustee may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for aid and
direction in executing the trust and enforcing the rights and remedies created under this Deed of Trust. Beneficiary or
Trustee may from time to time obtain orders or decrees directing, confirming or approving acts in executing this trust and
enforcing these rights and remedies.

7.3 Nonborrower Trustor.

(a) If any Trustor ("Nonborrower Trustor") is not the Obligor under the Debt Instrument described in
Paragraph 2.1(a), such Nonborrower Trustor authorizes Beneficiary to perform any of the following acts at any time, all
without notice to Nonborrower Trustor and without affecting Beneficiary's rights or Nonborrower Trustor's obligations
under this Deed of Trust:

(i) Beneficiary may alter any terms of the Debt Instrument or any part of it, including renewing,
compromising, extending or accelerating, or otherwise changing the time for payment of, or increasing or
decreasing the rate of interest on, the Debt Instrument or any part of it;

(ii) Beneficiary may take and hold security for the Debt Instrument, accept additional or substituted
security for the Debt Instrument, and subordinate, exchange, enforce, waive, release, compromise, fail to perfect,
sell or otherwise dispose of any such security;

(iii) Beneficiary may apply any security now or later held for the Debt Instrument in any order that
Beneficiary in its sole discretion may choose, and may direct the order and manner of any sale of all or any part of it
and bid at any such sale;

 
(iv) Beneficiary may release Obligor of its liability for the Debt Instrument or any part of it;

(v) Beneficiary may substitute, add or release any one or more guarantors or endorsers
of the Debt Instrument; and

(vi) Beneficiary may extend other credit to Obligor, and may take and hold security for the credit
so extended, whether or not such security also secures the Debt Instrument.

(b) Nonborrower Trustor waives:

(i) Any right it may have to require Beneficiary to proceed against Obligor, proceed against or
exhaust any security held from Obligor, or pursue any other remedy in Beneficiary's power to pursue;
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(ii) Any defense based on any legal disability of Obligor, any discharge or limitation of the liability
of Obligor to Beneficiary, whether consensual or arising by operation of law or any bankruptcy, reorganization,
receivership, insolvency, or
debtor-relief proceeding, or from any other cause, or any claim that Nonborrower
Trustor's obligations exceed or are more burdensome than those of Obligor;

(iii) All presentments, demands for performance, notices of nonperformance, protests, notices of
protest, notices of dishonor, notices of acceptance of this Deed of Trust and of the existence, creation, or incurring
of new or additional indebtedness of Obligor, and demands and notices of every kind;

(iv) Any defense based on or arising out of any defense that Obligor may have to the payment
or performance of the Debt Instrument or any part of it; and

(v) Until the Secured Obligations have been paid and performed in full, all rights of subrogation,
reimbursement, indemnification and contribution (contractual, statutory or otherwise), including any claim or right
of subrogation under the Bankruptcy Code (Title 11 of the U.S. Code) or any successor statute, all rights to
enforce any remedy that the Beneficiary may have against Obligor, and all rights to participate in any security now
or later to be held by Beneficiary for the Debt Instrument.

(c) Nonborrower Trustor assumes full responsibility for keeping informed of Obligor's financial condition and
business operations and all other circumstances affecting Obligor's ability to pay and perform its obligations to Beneficiary,
and agrees that Beneficiary shall have no duty to disclose to Nonborrower Trustor any information which Beneficiary may
receive about Obligor's financial condition, business operations, or any other circumstances bearing on
its ability to perform.

(d) No provision or waiver in this Deed of Trust shall be construed as limiting the generality of any other
provision or waiver contained in this Deed of Trust.

(e) For purposes of this Paragraph 7.3, all references to the Debt Instrument shall also include any
instrument or agreement executed by Obligor subsequent to the date of this Deed of Trust which is secured by this
Deed of Trust in accordance with the provisions of Paragraphs 2.1(c) and 2.1(d).

7.4 Merger. No merger shall occur as a result of Beneficiary's acquiring any other estate in or any other lien on the
Property unless Beneficiary consents to a merger in writing.

7.5 Joint and Several Liability. If Trustor consists of more than one person, each shall be jointly and severally
liable for the faithful performance of all of Trustor's obligations under this Deed of Trust.

 
7.6 Applicable Law. This Deed of Trust shall be governed by the laws of the State of Col❑rado.

7.7 Successors in Interest. The terms, covenants and conditions of this Deed of Trust shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and assigns of the parties. However, this Paragraph does not waive the provisions of
Paragraph 6.1.

7.8 Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL
PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS DEED OF TRUST OR ANY OTHER
DOCUMENT EXECUTED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY
(WHETHER
BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR ANY OTHER THEORY). EACH PARTY HERETO (a) CERTIFIES
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THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PERSON HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR
OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PERSON WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE
FOREGOING WAIVER, (b) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO
ENTER INTO THIS DEED OF TRUST AND THE OTHER DOCUMENTS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY BY, AMONG OTHER
THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION AND (c) CERTIFIES THAT THIS WAIVER IS
KNOWINGLY, WILLINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY MADE.

7.9 Interpretation. Whenever the context requires, all words used in the singular will be construed to have been
used in the plural, and vice versa, and each gender will include any other gender. The captions of the sections of this Deed of Trust
are for convenience only and do not define or limit any terms or provisions. The word "include(s)" means "include(s), without
limitation," and the word "including" means "including, but not limited to." The word "obligations" is used in its broadest and most
comprehensive sense, and includes all primary, secondary, direct, indirect, fixed and contingent obligations. It further includes all
principal, interest, prepayment charges, late charges, loan fees and any other fees and charges accruing or assessed at any time,
as well as all obligations to perform acts or satisfy conditions. No listing of specific instances, items or matters in any way limits the
scope or generality of any language of this Deed of Trust. The Exhibits to this Deed of Trust are hereby incorporated in this Deed of
Trust.

7.10 In-House Counsel Fees. Whenever Trustor is obligated to pay or reimburse Beneficiary or Trustee for any
attorneys' fees, those fees shall include the allocated costs for services of in-house counsel to the extent permitted by applicable
law.

7.11 Waiver of Marshaling. Trustor waives all rights, legal and equitable, it may now or hereafter have to require
marshaling of assets or to direct the order in which any of the Property will be sold in the event of any sale under this Deed of
Trust. Each successor and assign of Trustor, including any holder of a lien subordinate to this Deed of Trust, by acceptance of its
interest or lien agrees that it shall be bound by the above waiver, as if it had given the waiver itself.

7.12 Waiver of Homestead. Trustor hereby abandons and waives all claims of homestead on the Property and
does hereby forever release and discharge the Property from any and all claims of homestead.

7.12 Severability. If any provision of this Deed of Trust should be held unenforceable or void, that provision shall
be deemed severable from the remaining provisions and in no way affect the validity of this Deed of Trust except that if such
provision relates to the payment of any monetary sum, then Beneficiary may, at its option, declare all Secured Obligations
immediately due and payable.

7.13 Notices. Trustor hereby requests that a copy of notice of default and notice of sale be mailed to it at the
address set forth below. That address is also the mailing address of Trustor as debtor under the Uniform Commercial Code.
Beneficiary's address given below is the address for Beneficiary as secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code.

Addresses for Notices to Trustor:
 
LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
12441 West 49th Ave Unit 4
Wheat Ridge, CO 80033
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Address for Notices to Beneficiary:

Bank of America, N.A.
Doc Retention Center
CT2-515-BB-03
70 Batterson Park Road
Farmingt❑n, CT 06032

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Trustor has executed this Deed of Trust as of the date first a b❑ve written.
 

 

TRUSTOR:
 
LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Barry Knott                      (Seal)
Barry Knott, President/CEO
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF COLORADO                    )
) ss.

COUNTY OF                                        )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of _______, 2014 by Barry Knott as President and
CEO of LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Colorado corporation.

Witness my hand and official seal.

My c❑mmission expires: ___________________
 

___________________________
Notary Public
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EXHIBIT A TO DEED OF TRUST

Exhibit A to DEED OF TRUST executed as of October 29, 2014, by LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC. as "Trustor" to the
Public Trustee of Jefferson County, as "Trustee," for the benefit of Bank of America, N.A., a national banking association, as
"Beneficiary."

Legal Description

 

Street Address
 

12441 West 49th Street, Units 11 - 18 , Wheat Ridge , CO 80234
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Exhibit 10.13
 
 

 
SECURITY AGREEMENT

(Multiple Use)

1. THE SECURITY. The undersigned LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC. ( the "Pledgor") hereby assigns and grants
to Bank of America, N.A., its successors and assigns ("BANA"), and to Bank of America Corporation and its subsidiaries and
affiliates (BANA and all such secured parties, collectively, the "Bank") a security interest in the following described property now
owned or hereafter acquired by the Pledgor (the "Collateral"):

(a) All accounts, and all chattel paper, instruments, deposit accounts, letter of credit rights, and general
intangibles related thereto; and all returned or repossessed goods which, on sale or lease, resulted in an account.

(b) All inventory.

(c) All equipment and fixtures now owned or hereafter acquired by the Pledgor, (including, but not limited
to, the equipment described in the attached Equipment Description, if any).

 
(d) All negotiable and nonnegotiable documents of title covering any Collateral. (e) All accessions,
attachments and other additions to the Collateral, and all tools, parts and equipment used in connection
with the Collateral.

(f) All substitutes or replacements for any Collateral, all cash or non-cash proceeds (including
insurance proceeds), products, rents and profits of the Collateral, and all income, benefits and property receivable on
account of the Collateral, and all supporting obligations covering any Collateral.

(g) All books, data and records pertaining to any Collateral, whether in the form of a writing, photograph,
microfilm or electronic media, including but not limited to any computer- readable memory and any computer software
necessary to process such memory ("Books and Records").

2. THE INDEBTEDNESS. The obligations secured by this Agreement are the payment and performance of (a) all
present and future Indebtedness of the Pledgor to the Bank; (b) all obligations of the Pledgor and rights of the Bank under this
Agreement; and (c) all present and future obligations of the Pledgor to the Bank of other kinds. Each party obligated under any
Indebtedness is referred to in this Agreement as a "Debtor." "Indebtedness" is used in its most comprehensive sense and includes
any and all advances, debts, obligations and liabilities of the Debtor, now or hereafter existing, absolute or contingent, liquidated or
unliquidated, determined or undetermined, voluntary or involuntary, including under any swap, derivative, foreign exchange, hedge,
or other arrangement ("Swap"), deposit, treasury management or other similar transaction or arrangement, and whether the Debtor
may be liable individually or jointly with others, or whether recovery upon such Indebtedness may be or hereafter becomes
unenforceable. "Indebtedness" secured by the Collateral of such Pledgor shall not include obligations arising under any Swap to
which it is not party if, and to the extent that, all or a portion of the guaranty by such Pledgor to the Bank of, or the grant by such
Pledgor of a security interest to the Bank to
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secure, such Swap, would violate the Commodity Exchange Act (7 U.S.C., Sec. 1. et. seq.) by virtue of such Pledgor's failure to
constitute an "eligible contract participant" as defined in the Commodity Exchange Act at the time such guaranty or grant of such
security interest becomes effective with respect to such Swap.

Except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Bank and the Pledgor, if the Indebtedness includes, now or hereafter, any Special
Flood Zone Loan, then the following shall apply: The Special Flood Zone Loan shall not be secured under this Agreement by any
Collateral which would constitute "contents" located within the Flood Zone Improvements.

3. PLEDGOR'S COVENANTS. The Pledgor represents, covenants and warrants that unless compliance is
waived by the Bank in writing:

(a) The Pledgor agrees: (i) to indemnify the Bank against all losses, claims, demands, liabilities and
expenses of every kind caused by any Collateral; (ii) to permit the Bank to exercise its rights under this Agreement; (iii) to
execute and deliver such documents as the Bank deems necessary to create, perfect and continue the security interests
contemplated by this Agreement; (iv) not to change its name (including, for an individual, the Pledgor's name on any
driver's license or special identification card issued by any state), and as applicable, its chief executive office, its principal
residence or the jurisdiction in which it is organized and/or registered or its business structure without giving the Bank at
least 30 days prior written notice; (v) not to change the places where the Pledgor keeps any Collateral or the Pledgor's
Books and Records concerning the Collateral without giving the Bank prior written notice of the address to which the
Pledgor is moving same; and (vi) to cooperate with the Bank in perfecting all security interests granted by this Agreement
and in obtaining such agreements from third parties as the Bank deems necessary, proper or convenient in connection
with the preservation, perfection or enforcement of any of its rights under this Agreement.

(b) The Pledgor agrees with regard to the Collateral, unless the Bank agrees otherwise in writing: (i) that
the Bank is authorized to file financing statements in the name of the Pledgor to perfect the Bank's security interest in the
Collateral; (ii) that the Bank is authorized to notify any account debtors, any buyers of the Collateral, or any other persons
of the Bank's interest in the Collateral, (iii) where applicable, to operate the Collateral in accordance with all applicable
statutes, rules and regulations relating to the use and control of the Collateral, and not to use any Collateral for any
unlawful purpose or in any way that would void any insurance required to be carried; (iv) not to remove the Collateral from
the Pledgor's premises except in the ordinary course of the Pledgor's business; (v) to pay when due all license fees,
registration fees and other charges in connection with any Collateral; (vi) not to permit any lien on the Collateral, including
without limitation, liens arising from repairs to or storage of the Collateral, except in favor of the Bank; (vii) not to sell,
hypothecate or dispose of, nor permit the transfer by operation of law of, any Collateral or any interest in the Collateral,
except sales of inventory to buyers in the ordinary course of the Pledgor's business; (viii) to permit the Bank to inspect the
Collateral at any time; (ix) to keep, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, complete and accurate
Books and Records regarding all the Collateral, and to permit the Bank to inspect the same and make copies at any
reasonable time; (x) if requested by the Bank, to receive and use reasonable diligence to collect the Collateral consisting of
accounts and other rights to payment and proceeds, in trust and as the property of the Bank, and to immediately endorse
as appropriate and deliver such Collateral to the Bank daily in the exact form in which they are received together with a
collection report in form satisfactory to the Bank; (xi) not to commingle the Collateral, or collections with respect to the
Collateral, with other property; (xii) to give only normal allowances and credits and to advise the Bank thereof immediately
in writing if they affect any rights to payment or proceeds in any material respect; (xiii) from time to time, when requested
by the Bank, to prepare and deliver a schedule of all the Collateral subject to this Agreement and to assign in writing and
deliver to the Bank all accounts, contracts, leases and other chattel paper, instruments, and documents; (xiv) in the event
the Bank elects to receive
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payments or rights to payment or proceeds hereunder, to pay all expenses incurred by the Bank, including expenses of
accounting, correspondence, collection efforts, reporting to account or contract debtors, filing, recording, record keeping and
other expenses; and (xv) to provide any service and do any other acts which may be necessary to maintain, preserve and
protect all the Collateral and, as appropriate and applicable, to keep all the Collateral in good and saleable condition, to deal
with the Collateral in accordance with the standards and practices adhered to generally by users and manufacturers of like
property, and to keep all the Collateral free and clear of all defenses, rights of offset and counterclaims.

.
(c) If any Collateral is or becomes the subject of any registration certificate, certificate of deposit or

negotiable document of title, including any warehouse receipt or bill of lading, the Pledgor shall immediately deliver
such document to the Bank, together with any necessary endorsements.

(d) The Pledgor will maintain and keep in force all risk insurance covering the Collateral against fire, theft,
liability and extended coverages (including without limitation flood, windstorm coverage and hurricane coverage as
applicable), to the extent that any Collateral is of a type which can be so insured. Such insurance shall be in form,
amounts, coverages and basis reasonably acceptable to the Bank, shall require losses to be paid on a replacement cost
basis, shall be issued by insurance companies acceptable to the Bank and include a lender loss payable endorsement and
additional insured endorsement in favor of the Bank in a form acceptable to the Bank. Upon the request of the Bank, the
Pledgor will deliver to the Bank a copy of each insurance policy, or, if permitted by the Bank, a certificate of insurance
listing all
insurance in force.

(e) The Pledgor will not attach any Collateral to any real property or fixture in a manner which might cause
such Collateral to become a part thereof unless the Pledgor first obtains the written consent of any owner, holder of any lien
on the real property or fixture, or other person having an interest in such property to the removal by the Bank of the
Collateral from such real property or fixture. Such written consent shall be in form and substance acceptable to the Bank
and shall provide that the Bank has no liability to such owner, holder of any lien, or any
other pers❑n.

4. BANK RIGHTS. The Pledgor appoints the Bank its attorney in fact to perform any of the following rights, which
are coupled with an interest, are irrevocable until termination of this Agreement and may be exercised from time to time by the
Bank's officers and employees, or any of them, whether or not the Pledgor is in default: (a) to perform any obligation of the Pledgor
hereunder in the Pledgor's name or otherwise; (b) to release persons liable on the Collateral and to give receipts and acquittances
and compromise disputes; (c) to release or substitute security; (d) to prepare, execute, file, record or deliver notes, assignments,
schedules, designation statements, financing statements, continuation statements, termination statements, statements of
assignment, applications for registration or like documents to perfect, preserve or release the Bank's interest in the Collateral; (e) to
take cash, instruments for the payment of money and other property to which the Bank is entitled; (f) to verify facts concerning the
Collateral by inquiry of obligors thereon, or otherwise, in its own name or a fictitious name; (g) to endorse, collect, deliver and
receive payment under instruments for the payment of money constituting or relating to the Collateral; (h) to prepare, adjust,
execute, deliver and receive payment under insurance claims, and to collect and receive payment of and endorse any instrument in
payment of loss or returned premiums or any other insurance refund or return, and to apply such amounts received by the Bank, at
the Bank's sole option, toward repayment of the Indebtedness or, where appropriate, replacement of the Collateral; (i) to enter onto
the Pledgor's premises in inspecting the Collateral; (j) to make withdrawals from and to close deposit accounts or other accounts
with any financial institution, wherever located, into which proceeds may have been deposited, and to apply funds so withdrawn to
payment of the Indebtedness; (k) to preserve or release the interest evidenced by chattel paper to which the Bank is entitled and to
endorse and deliver any evidence of title; and (l) to do all acts and things and execute all documents in the name of the Pledgor or
otherwise, deemed by the Bank as necessary, proper and convenient in connection with the preservation, perfection or
enforcement of its rights.
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5. DEFAULTS. Any one or more of the following shall be a default hereunder:

(a) The occurrence of any defined or described event of default under, or any default in the performance
of or compliance with any obligation, agreement, representation, warranty, or other provision contained in (i) this Agreement, but
only after Borrower has been provided a thirty (30) day opportunity to cure, or (ii) any other contract or instrument evidencing the
Indebtedness if such default is beyond any applicable cure period in such other contract or instrument evidencing the
Indebtedness.

(b) Any involuntary lien of any kind or character attaches to any Collateral, except for liens for taxes not
yet due, and such lien is not removed within sixty (60) days of the day such lien attaches.

6. BANK'S REMEDIES AFTER DEFAULT. In the event of any default, the Bank may do any one or more of the
following, to the extent permitted by law:

  (a) Declare any Indebtedness immediately due and payable, without notice or demand.
 
  (b) Enforce the security interest given hereunder pursuant to the Uniform Commercial Code and

any other applicable law.

(c) Enforce the security interest of the Bank in any deposit account of the Pledgor maintained with the Bank
by applying such account to the Indebtedness.

(d) Require the Pledgor to obtain the Bank's prior written consent to any sale, lease, agreement to sell
or lease, or other disposition of any Collateral consisting of inventory.

(e) Require the Pledgor to segregate all collections and proceeds of the Collateral so that they are
capable of identification and deliver daily such collections and proceeds to the Bank in kind.

(f) Require the Pledgor to direct all account debtors to forward all payments and proceeds of the Collateral
to a post office box under the Bank's exclusive control.

(g) Give notice to others of the Bank's rights in the Collateral, to enforce or forebear from enforcing
the same and make extension and modification agreements.

(h) Require the Pledgor to assemble the Collateral, including the Books and Records, and make them
available to the Bank at a place designated by the Bank.

(i) Enter upon the property where any Collateral, including any Books and Records, are located and take
possession of such Collateral and such Books and Records, and use such property (including any buildings and facilities)
and any of the Pledgor's equipment, if the Bank deems such use necessary or advisable in order to take possession of,
hold, preserve, process, assemble, prepare for sale or lease, market for sale or lease, sell or lease, or otherwise dispose
of, any Collateral.

(j) Demand and collect any payments on and proceeds of the Collateral. In connection therewith the
Pledgor irrevocably authorizes the Bank to endorse or sign the Pledgor's name on all checks, drafts, collections, receipts
and other documents, and to take possession of
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and open the mail addressed to the Pledgor and remove therefrom any payments and proceeds of the Collateral.

(k) Grant extensions and compromise or settle claims with respect to the Collateral for less than face value,
all without prior notice to the Pledgor.

(l) Use or transfer any of the Pledgor's rights and interests in any Intellectual Property now owned or
hereafter acquired by the Pledgor, if the Bank deems such use or transfer necessary or advisable in order to take
possession of, hold, preserve, process, assemble, prepare for sale or lease, market for sale or lease, sell or lease, or
otherwise dispose of, any Collateral. The Pledgor agrees that any such use or transfer shall be without any additional
consideration to the Pledgor. As used in this paragraph, "Intellectual Property" includes, but is not limited to, all trade
secrets, computer software, service marks, trademarks, trade names, trade styles, copyrights, patents, applications for any
of the foregoing, customer lists, working drawings, instructional manuals, and rights in processes for technical
manufacturing, packaging and labeling, in which the Pledgor has any right or interest, whether by ownership, license,
contract or otherwise.

(m) Have a receiver appointed by any court of competent jurisdiction to take possession of the Collateral.
The Pledgor hereby consents to the appointment of such a receiver and agrees not to oppose any such appointment.

(n) Take such measures as the Bank may deem necessary or advisable to take possession of, hold,
preserve, process, assemble, insure, prepare for sale or lease, market for sale or lease, sell or lease, or otherwise dispose
of, any Collateral, and the Pledgor hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Bank as the Pledgor's attorney-in-fact to
perform all acts and execute all documents in connection therewith.

(o) Without notice or demand to the Pledgor, set off and apply against any and all of the Indebtedness any
and all deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final) and any other indebtedness, at any time held or
owing by the Bank or any of the Bank's agents or affiliates to or for the credit of the account of the Pledgor or any
guarantor or endorser of the Pledgor's Indebtedness.

(p) Exercise all rights, powers and remedies which the Pledgor would have, but for this Agreement, with
respect to all Collateral.

(q) Receive, open and read mail addressed to the Pledgor.

(r) Resort to the Collateral under this Agreement, and any other collateral related to the Indebtedness, in
any order.

(s) Exercise any other remedies available to the Bank at law or in equity.

7. MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) Any waiver, express or implied, of any provision hereunder and any delay or failure by the Bank to
enforce any provision shall not preclude the Bank from enforcing any such provision thereafter.

(b) The Pledgor shall, at the request of the Bank, execute such other agreements, documents,
instruments, or financing statements in connection with this Agreement as the Bank may reasonably deem necessary.
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(c) All notes, security agreements, subordination agreements and other documents executed by the
Pledgor or furnished to the Bank in connection with this Agreement must be in form and substance satisfactory to the
Bank.

(d) Governing Law. Except to the extent that any law of the United States may apply, this Agreement shall
be governed and interpreted according to the laws of Colorado (the "Governing Law State"), without regard to any choice
of law, rules or principles to the contrary. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to limit or otherwise affect any
rights or remedies of the Bank under federal law.

(e) All rights and remedies herein provided are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies
otherwise provided by law. Any single or partial exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the further exercise
thereof or the exercise of any other right or remedy.

 
(f) All terms not defined herein are used as set forth in the Uniform Commercial Code.

(g) The Pledgor shall pay to the Bank immediately upon demand the full amount of all payments, advances,
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, expended or incurred by the Bank in connection with (a) the perfection
and preservation of the Collateral or the Bank's interest therein, and (b) the realization, enforcement and exercise of any
right, power, privilege or remedy conferred by this Agreement, relating to the Pledgor, or in any way affecting any of the
Collateral or the Bank's ability to exercise any of its rights or remedies with respect to the Collateral.

(h) In the event the Bank seeks to take possession of any or all of the Collateral by judicial process, the
Pledgor irrevocably waives any bonds and any surety or security relating thereto that may be required by applicable law as
an incident to such possession, and waives any demand for possession prior to the commencement of any such suit or
action.

(i) This Agreement shall constitute a continuing agreement, applying to all future as well as existing
transactions.

(j) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators,
legal representatives, successors and assigns of the parties, and may be amended or modified only in writing signed by
the Bank and the Pledgor.

(k) The secured parties covered by this Agreement include BANA as well as Bank of America
Corporation and its subsidiaries and affiliates. Such secured parties are collectively referred to as the "Bank." If, from
time to time, any of the Indebtedness covered by this Agreement includes obligations to entities other than BANA, then
BANA shall act as collateral agent for itself and all such other secured parties. BANA shall have the right to apply
proceeds of the Collateral against debts, obligations or liabilities constituting all or part of the Indebtedness in such
order as BANA may determine in its sole discretion, unless otherwise agreed by BANA and one or more of the other
secured parties.
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8. FINAL AGREEMENT. BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT EACH PARTY REPRESENTS AND AGREES THAT:
(A) THIS DOCUMENT REPRESENTS THE FINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE SUBJECT
MATTER HEREOF, (B) THIS DOCUMENT SUPERSEDES ANY COMMITMENT LETTER, TERM SHEET, OR OTHER WRITTEN
OUTLINE OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF, UNLESS SUCH COMMITMENT
LETTER, TERM SHEET, OR OTHER WRITTEN OUTLINE OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS EXPRESSLY PROVIDES TO THE
CONTRARY, (C) THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES, AND (D) THIS DOCUMENT
MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF ANY PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS, OR SUBSEQUENT ORAL
AGREEMENTS OR UNDERSTANDINGS OF THE PARTIES.

 
 
 

Dated: October 29, 2014.
 
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.
 
By: /s/ Kirk R. Fronckiewicz
Kirk R. Fronckiewicz, Senior Vice President

Address for Notices:
Bank of America, N.A.
Doc Retention Center
CT2-515-BB-03
70 Batterson Park Road
Farmington, CT 06032

LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
 
By: /s/ Barry Knott 
Barry Knott, President/CEO

Pledgor's Location (principal residence, if the Pledgor is an
individual; chief executive office, if the Pledgor is not an
individual):

12441 West 49th Ave Unit 4
Wheat Ridge, CO 80033

Pledgor's state of incorporation or organization (if the Pledgor is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other
registered entity):
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Exhibit 10.14
 
 

 

Loan Agreement

  
 Date of Agreement: October 29, 2014
 

Principal Amount: $250,000.00 Account Number: 25-0001103705

 
Introducti❑n. This Agreement dated and effective as of October 29, 2014, is entered into between LIFELOC
TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (the "Borrower") and Bank of America, N.A. (the "Bank"). The Borrower agrees to the following terms
and conditions:

  
1.      LINE OF CREDIT

1.1     Line of Credit Amount.

(a) During the availability period described below, the Bank will provide a line of credit to the Borrower (the "Line of Credit").
The amount of the Line of Credit (the "Commitment") is Two Hundred Fifty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($250,000.00).

(b) This is a revolving line of credit. During the availability period, the Borrower may repay principal amounts and reborrow
them.

(c) The Borrower agrees not to permit the principal balance outstanding to exceed the Commitment. If the Borrower exceeds
this limit, the Borrower will immediately pay the excess to the Bank upon the Bank's demand.

1.2     Availability Period. The Line of Credit is available between the date of this Agreement and October 29, 2015, or
such earlier date as the availability may terminate as provided in this Agreement (the "Expiration Date").

The availability period for this Line of Credit will be considered renewed if and only if the Bank has sent to the Borrower a written
notice of renewal for the Line of Credit (the "Renewal Notice"). If this Line of Credit is renewed, it will continue to be subject to all
the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement except as modified by the Renewal Notice. If this Line of Credit is renewed,
the term "Expiration Date" shall mean the date set forth in the Renewal Notice as the Expiration Date, and all outstanding
principal plus all accrued interest shall be paid on the Expiration Date. The same process for renewal will apply to any
subsequent renewal of this Line of Credit. A renewal fee may be charged at the Bank's option.  The amount of the renewal fee
will be specified in the Renewal Notice. If this Line of Credit is not renewed, the Bank in its sole discretion may allow the
outstanding balance to be repaid in installments over a term specified by the Bank at the time. The Borrower specifically
understands that the interest rate applicable to the Line of Credit may be increased upon term-out and that the new interest rate
will apply to the entire outstanding principal balance due hereunder. A transaction fee may be charged at the Bank's option. If so,
the amount will be specified in the term-out notice.

1.3     Repayment Terms.

(a) The Borrower will pay interest on November 29, 2014, and then on the last day of each month thereafter until payment in
full of any principal outstanding under this Agreement.

(b) The Borrower will repay in full any principal, interest or other charges outstanding under this Agreement no later than the
Expiration Date.

1.4     Prepayments. The Borrower may prepay principal in full or in part at any time without the payment of a
prepayment fee or premium. The prepayment will be applied to the most remote payment of principal due under this
Agreement.
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1.5     Interest Rate.

(1) The interest rate is a rate per year equal to the LIBOR Daily Floating Rate plus 2.5 percentage point(s).

(b) The LIBOR Daily Floating Rate is a fluctuating rate of interest which can change on each banking day. The rate will be
adjusted on each banking day to equal the London Interbank Offered Rate (or a comparable or successor rate which is
approved by the Bank) for U.S. Dollar deposits for delivery on the date in question for a one month term beginning on that
date. The Bank will use the London Interbank Offered Rate as published by Bloomberg (or other commercially available
source providing quotations of such rate as selected by the Bank from time to time) as determined at approximately 11:00
a.m. London time two (2) London Banking Days prior to the date in question, as adjusted from time to time in the Bank's sole
discretion for reserve requirements, deposit insurance assessment rates and other regulatory costs. If such rate is not
available at such time for any reason, then the rate will be determined by such alternate method as reasonably selected by
the Bank. A "London Banking Day" is a day on which banks in London are open for business and dealing in offshore dollars.

 
2.      COLLATERAL

2.1     Personal Property. The personal property listed below now owned or owned in the future by the parties listed below will
secure Borrower's obligations to the Bank under this Agreement. The collateral is further defined in security agreement(s) executed
by the owners of the collateral. In addition, all personal property collateral owned by the Borrower securing this Agreement shall also
secure all other present and future obligations of the Borrower to the Bank and to any affiliate of the Bank (excluding any consumer
credit covered by the federal Truth in Lending law, unless the Borrower has otherwise agreed in writing or received written notice
thereof). All personal property collateral securing any other present or future obligations of the Borrower to the Bank shall also
secure this Agreement.

(a)     Equipment and fixtures owned by the Borrower.
 
(b)     Inventory owned by the Borrower.
 
(c)    Receivables owned by the Borrower.

3.    LOAN ADMINISTRATION AND FEES

3.1    Fees.

(a)     The Borrower will pay to the Bank the fees set forth on Schedule A.

3.2     Collection of Payments.

(a) Payments will be made by debit to a deposit account, if direct debit is provided for in this Agreement or is otherwise
authorized by the Borrower. For payments not made by direct debit, payments will be made by mail to the address shown on
the Borrower's statement, or by such other method as may be permitted by the Bank.

(b) Each disbursement by the Bank and each payment by the Borrower will be evidenced by records kept by the Bank which
will, absent manifest error, be conclusively presumed to be correct and accurate and constitute an account stated between
the Borrower and the Bank.

3.3     Borrower's Instructions.

(a) Subject to the terms, conditions and procedures stated elsewhere in this Agreement, the Bank may honor instructions for
advances or repayments and any other instructions under this Agreement given by the Borrower (if an individual), or by any
one of the individuals the Bank reasonably believes is authorized to sign loan agreements on behalf of the Borrower, or any
other individual(s) designated by any one of such authorized signers (each an "Authorized Individual"). The Bank may honor
any such instructions made by any one of the Authorized Individuals, whether such instructions are given in writing or by
telephone, telefax or Internet and intranet websites designated by the Bank with respect to separate products or services
offered by the Bank.
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3.4     Direct Debit.

(a) The Borrower agrees that on the due date of any amount due under this Agreement, the Bank will debit the amount due from
deposit account number CO 457023873333 owned by the Borrower, or such other of the Borrower's accounts with the Bank
as designated in writing by the Borrower (the "Designated Account"). Should there be insufficient funds in the Designated
Account to pay all such sums when due, the full amount of such deficiency shall be immediately due and payable by the
Borrower.

(b) The Borrower may terminate this direct debit arrangement at any time by sending written notice to the Bank. If the Borrower
terminates this arrangement, then the principal amount outstanding under this Agreement will at the option of the Bank bear
interest at a rate per annum which is one (1.0) percentage point higher than the rate of interest otherwise provided under
this Agreement and the amount of each payment will be increased accordingly.

3.5     Banking Days. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, a banking day is a day other than a Saturday, Sunday
or other day on which commercial banks are authorized to close, or are in fact closed, in the state where the Bank's lending
office is located, and, if such day relates to amounts bearing interest at an offshore rate (if any), means any such day on
which dealings in dollar deposits are conducted among banks in the offshore dollar interbank market. All payments
and disbursements which would be due or which are received on a day which is not a banking day will be due or
applied, as applicable, to the credit on the next banking day .

3.6     Interest Calculati❑n. Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, all interest and fees, if any, will be computed on
the basis of a 360-day year and the actual number of days elapsed. This results in more interest or a higher fee than if a 365-day
year is used. Installments of principal which are not paid when due under this Agreement shall continue to bear interest
until paid.

3.7     Default Rate. Upon the occurrence of any default or after maturity or after judgment has been rendered on any
obligation under this Agreement, all amounts outstanding under this Agreement, including any unpaid interest, fees, or costs, will at
the option of the Bank bear interest at a rate which is 6.0 percentage point(s) higher than the rate of interest otherwise provided
under this Agreement. This may result in compounding of interest. This will not constitute a waiver of any default.

4.      CONDITIONS

Before the Bank is required to extend any credit to the Borrower under this Agreement, it must receive any documents and
other items it may reasonably require, in form and content acceptable to the Bank, including any items specifically listed below.

4.1     Authorizati❑ns. If the Borrower or any guarantor is anything other than a natural person, evidence that the
execution, delivery and performance by the Borrower and/or such guarantor of this Agreement and any instrument or
agreement required under this Agreement have been duly authorized.

4.2     G❑verning Documents. If required by the Bank, a copy of the Borrower's organizational documents.

4.3     Security Agreements. Signed original security agreements covering the personal property collateral which the Bank
requires.

4.4     Perfecti❑n and Evidence of Priority. Evidence that the security interests and liens in favor of the Bank are valid,
enforceable, properly perfected in a manner acceptable to the Bank and prior to all others' rights and interests, except those the
Bank consents to in writing. All title documents for motor vehicles which are part of the collateral must show the Bank's interest.

4.5     Payment of Fees. Payment of all fees, expenses and other amounts due and owing to the Bank. If any fee is not paid
in cash, the Bank may, in its discretion, treat the fee as a principal advance under this Agreement or deduct the fee from the loan
proceeds.

5.    REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

When the Borrower signs this Agreement, and until the Bank is repaid in full, the Borrower makes the following representations
and warranties. Each request for an extension of credit constitutes a renewal of these representations and warranties as of the
date of the request:
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5.1     Formation. If the Borrower is anything other than a natural person, it is duly formed and existing under the laws of the
state or other jurisdiction where organized.

5.2     Authorizati❑n. This Agreement, and any instrument or agreement required under this Agreement, are within the
Borrower's powers, have been duly authorized, and do not conflict with any of its organizational papers.

5.3     Good Standing. In each state in which the Borrower does business, it is properly licensed, in good standing, and,
where required, in compliance with fictitious name statutes.

5.4     Financial Inf❑rmation. All financial and other information that has been or will be supplied to the Bank is sufficiently
complete to give the Bank accurate knowledge of the Borrower's (and any guarantor's) financial condition, including all material
contingent liabilities. Since the date of the most recent financial statement provided to the Bank, there has been no material
adverse change in the business condition (financial or otherwise), operations, properties or prospects of the Borrower (or any
guarantor). If the Borrower is comprised of the trustees of a trust, the above representations shall also pertain to the trustor(s) of
the trust.

5.5     Lawsuits. There is no lawsuit, tax claim or other dispute pending or threatened against the Borrower which, if
lost, would impair the Borrower's financial condition or ability to repay the loan, except as have been disclosed in writing to the Bank.

5.6        Other Obligations. The Borrower is not in default on any obligation for borrowed money, any purchase money obligation
or any other material lease, commitment, contract, instrument or obligation, except as have been disclosed in writing to the Bank.

5.7     Tax Matters. The Borrower has no knowledge of any pending assessments or adjustments of its income tax for any
year and all taxes due have been paid, except as have been disclosed in writing to the Bank.

5.8     No Event of Default. There is no event which is, or with notice or lapse of time or both would be, a default under this
Agreement.

5.9     C❑llateral. All collateral required in this Agreement is owned by the grantor of the security interest free of any title
defects or any liens or interests of others, except those which have been approved by the Bank in writing.

5.10     ERISA Plans.

(a) Each Plan (other than a multiemployer plan) is in compliance in all material respects with ERISA, the Code and other federal
or state law, including all applicable minimum funding standards and there have been no prohibited transactions with
respect to any Plan (other than a multiemployer plan), which has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a
material adverse effect.

(b) With respect to any Plan subject to Title IV of ERISA:

(i) No reportable event has occurred under Section 4043(c) of ERISA which requires notice.
 

(ii) No action by the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate to terminate or withdraw from any Plan has been taken and no
notice of intent to terminate a Plan has been filed under Section 4041 or 4042 of ERISA.

(c) The following terms have the meanings indicated for purposes of this Agreement: (i)"Code" means the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended.

 
(ii) "ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

 
(iii) "ERISA Affiliate" means any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) under common control with the

Borrower within the meaning of Section 414(b) or (c) of the Code.
 

(iv) "Plan" means a plan within the meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA maintained or contributed to by the Borrower or
any ERISA Affiliate, including any multiemployer plan within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA.
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6.    COVENANTS

The Borrower agrees, so long as credit is available under this Agreement and until the Bank is repaid in full:

6.1     Use of Proceeds. To use the proceeds of the credit only for business purposes.

6.2     Financial Inf❑rmation. To provide the following financial information and statements in form and content acceptable to
the Bank, and such additional information as requested by the Bank from time to time. The Bank reserves the right, upon written
notice to the Borrower, to require the Borrower to deliver financial information and statements to the Bank more frequently than
otherwise provided below, and to use such additional information and statements to measure any applicable financial covenants in
this Agreement.

(a)     Within 120 days of Borrower's fiscal year end:

(i)        The annual financial statements of the Borrower, certified and dated by an authorized financial officer. These
financial statements must be audited (with an opinion satisfactory to the Bank) by a Certified Public Accountant acceptable to
the Bank. The statements shall be prepared on a consolidated basis.

(ii)        Each financial statement of the Borrower required above must be accompanied by a certificate substantially in the
form of the Compliance Certificate required by the Bank, signed by the party submitting the information or, if such party is a
business entity, an authorized financial officer of the party. The Compliance Certificate shall state whether there existed as of the
date of such financial statements, and whether there exists as of the date of the certificate, any event of default under this
Agreement and, if any such default exists, specifying the nature thereof and the action the party is taking and proposes to take with
respect thereto.

6.3   Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Rati❑. To maintain on a consolidated basis a Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of at
least 1.25:1.0.

"Basic Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio" means the ratio of (a) the sum of EBITDA plus lease expense and rent expense, minus
income tax, minus dividends, withdrawals, and other distributions, to (b) the sum of interest expense, lease expense, rent
expense, the current portion of long term debt and the current portion of capitalized lease obligations.

"EBITDA" means net income, less income or plus loss from discontinued operations and extraordinary items, plus income taxes,
plus interest expense, plus depreciation, depletion, and amortization.

This ratio will be calculated at the end of each reporting period for which the Bank requires financial statements, using the results of
the twelve-month period ending with that reporting period. The current portion of long-term liabilities will be measured as of the last
day of the calculation period.

6.4   Other Debts. Not to have outstanding or incur any direct or contingent liabilities or lease obligations (other than those to
the Bank or to any affiliate of the Bank), or become liable for the liabilities of others, without the Bank's written consent. This does
not prohibit:

(a)   Acquiring goods, supplies, or merchandise on normal trade credit.

(b)   Liabilities, lines of credit and leases in existence on the date of this Agreement disclosed in writing to the Bank. (c)If the
Borrower is a natural person, additional debts of the Borrower as an individual for consumer purposes.
 
6.5   Other Liens. Not to create, assume, or allow any security interest or lien (including judicial liens) on property the Borrower
now or later owns, except:

(a)   Liens and security interests in favor of the Bank or any affiliate of the Bank.

(b)   Liens outstanding on the date of this Agreement disclosed in writing to the Bank.

6.6   Maintenance of Assets.
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(a) Not to sell, assign, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of any part of the Borrower's business or the Borrower's assets

except inventory sold in the ordinary course of the Borrower's business.

(b) Not to sell, assign, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of any assets for less than fair market value, or enter into any
agreement to do so.

(c) Not to enter into any sale and leaseback agreement covering any of its fixed assets. (d)To maintain and preserve all rights,
privileges, and franchises the Borrower now has.

 
(d) To make any repairs, renewals, or replacements to keep the Borrower's properties in good working condition.

 
6.7     Loans. Not to make any loans, advances or other extensions of credit to any individual or entity except for extensions
of credit in the nature of accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from the sale or lease of goods or services in the
ordinary course of business to non-affiliated entities.

6.8      Change of Management. Not to make any substantial change in the present executive or management
personnel of the Borrower.

6.9      Change of Ownership. If the Borrower is anything other than a natural person, not to cause, permit, or suffer any
change in capital ownership such that there is a material change, as determined by the Bank in its sole discretion, in the direct or
indirect capital ownership of the Borrower.

6.10  Additional Negative Covenants. Not to, without the Bank's written consent:

(a) Enter into any consolidation, merger, or other combination, or become a partner in a partnership, a member of a joint
venture, or a member of a limited liability company.

(b) Acquire or purchase a business or its assets, if the purchase price is over One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), in aggregate,
from the date of this agreement until the "Repayment Period".

 
(c) Engage in any business activities substantially different from the Borrower's present business. (d)Liquidate or dissolve the

Borrower's business
 
6.11  Notices to Bank. To promptly notify the Bank in writing of:

(a) Any event of default under this Agreement, or any event which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute an
event of default.

(b) Any change in the Borrower's name, legal structure, principal residence, or name on any driver's license or special
identification card issued by any state (for an individual), state of registration (for a registered entity), place of business, or
chief executive office if the Borrower has more than one place of business.

 
6.12  Insurance

 
(a) General Business Insurance. To maintain insurance as is usual for the business it is in

 
(b) Insurance Covering Collateral. To maintain all risk property damage insurance policies (including without limitation

windstorm coverage, and hurricane coverage as applicable) covering the tangible property comprising the collateral. Each
insurance policy must be for the full replacement cost of the collateral and include a replacement cost endorsement. The
insurance must be issued by an insurance company acceptable to the Bank and must include a lender's loss payable
endorsement in favor of the Bank in a form acceptable to the Bank.

(c) Evidence of Insurance. Upon the request of the Bank, to deliver to the Bank a copy of each insurance policy, or, if permitted
by the Bank, a certificate of insurance listing all insurance in force.

6.13  C❑mpliance with Laws. To comply with the laws (including any fictitious or trade name statute), regulations, and orders of
any government body with authority over the Borrower's business. The Bank shall have no obligation to make any advance to the
Borrower except in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and the Borrower shall fully cooperate with the
Bank in complying with all such applicable laws and regulations.
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6.14    B❑oks and Rec❑rds. To maintain adequate books and records.

6.15    Audits. To allow the Bank and its agents to inspect the Borrower's properties and examine, audit, and make copies
of books and records at any reasonable time. If any of the Borrower's properties, books or records are in the possession of a
third party, the Borrower authorizes that third party to permit the Bank or its agents to have access to perform inspections or
audits and to respond to the Bank's requests for information concerning such properties, books and records.

6.16    Perfecti❑n of Liens. To help the Bank perfect and protect its security interests and liens, and reimburse it for
related costs it incurs to protect its security interests and liens.

6.17    C❑operati❑n. To take any action reasonably requested by the Bank to carry out the intent of this Agreement.

6.18    Bank as Principal Dep❑sit❑ry. To maintain the Bank or one of its affiliates as its principal depository bank,
including for the maintenance of business, cash management, operating and administrative deposit accounts.

7.        DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

If an event of default under Section 7 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure period, without limiting any of the
Bank's rights and remedies in this Agreement, if any of the following events of default occurs, the Bank may do one or more of the
following without prior notice: declare the Borrower in default, stop making any additional credit available to the Borrower, and
require the Borrower to repay its entire debt immediately. If an event which, with notice or the passage of time, will constitute an
event of default has occurred and is continuing, the Bank has no obligation to make advances or extend additional credit under this
Agreement. In addition, if any event of default occurs, the Bank shall have all rights, powers and remedies available under any
instruments and agreements required by or executed in connection with this Agreement, as well as all rights and remedies available
at law or in equity. If an event of default occurs under the paragraph entitled "Bankruptcy/Receivers," below, with respect to the
Borrower, then the entire debt outstanding under this Agreement will automatically be due immediately. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, it shall not be an event of default, and Bank shall have no additional remedies unless and until Borrower has been
provided a thirty (30) day opportunity to cure any of 7.2, 7.3, 7.4, 7.9, 7.11 and 7.13 below.

7.1     Failure to Pay. If an event of default under Section 7 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure period,
the Borrower fails to make a payment under the Agreement within ten (10) days of when due

7.2     C❑venants.  If an event of default under Section 7 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure period,
any default in the performance of or compliance with any obligation, agreement or other provision contained in this Agreement
(other than those specifically described as an event of default in this Article).

7.3     Other Bank Agreements.  If an event of default under Section 7 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable
cure period, any default occurs under any guaranty, subordination agreement, security agreement, deed of trust, mortgage, or other
document required by or delivered in connection with this Agreement or any such document is no longer in effect, or any guarantor
purports to revoke or disavow the guaranty; or any representation or warranty made by any guarantor is false when made or
deemed to be made; or any default occurs under any other agreement the Borrower (or any Obligor) has with the Bank or any
affiliate of the Bank. For purposes of this Agreement, "Obligor" shall mean any guarantor, any party pledging collateral to the Bank,
or, if the Borrower is comprised of the trustees of a trust, any trustor.

7.4     Cross-default. If an event of default under Section 8 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure
period, any default occurs under any agreement in connection with any credit the Borrower (or any Obligor) has obtained from
anyone else or which the Borrower (or any Obligor) or any of the Borrower's related entities or affiliates has guaranteed.

7.5     False Inf❑rmation. The Borrower or any Obligor has given the Bank false or misleading information or
representations.

7.6     Bankruptcy/Receivers. The Borrower, any Obligor, or any general partner of the Borrower or of any Obligor files a
bankruptcy petition, a bankruptcy petition is filed against any of the foregoing parties and such petition is not dismissed within a
period of forty-five (45) days after the filing, or the Borrower, any Obligor, or any general partner of the Borrower or of any Obligor
makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or a receiver or similar official is appointed for a substantial
portion of Borrower's or any Obligor's business; or the business is terminated, or such Obligor is liquidated or dissolved .
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7.7     Revocation or Terminati❑n. If the Borrower is comprised of the trustee(s) of a trust, the trust is revoked or
otherwise terminated or all or a substantial part of the Borrower's assets are distributed or otherwise disposed of.

7.8     Lien Priority. The Bank fails to have an enforceable first lien (except for any prior liens to which the Bank has
consented in writing) on or security interest in any property given as security for this Agreement (or any guaranty).

7.9     Judgments.  If an event of default under Section 8 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure
period, any judgments or arbitration awards are entered against the Borrower or any Obligor.

7.10       Death. If the Borrower or any Obligor is a natural person, the Borrower or such Obligor dies or becomes legally
incompetent; if the Borrower or any Obligor is a trust, a trustor dies or becomes legally incompetent; if the Borrower or any Obligor
is a partnership, any general partner dies or becomes legally incompetent.

7 . 1 1       Material Adverse Change. If an event of default under Section 7 has occurred and is continuing beyond any
applicable cure period, any material adverse change occurs, or is reasonably likely to occur, in the Borrower's (or any Obligor's)
business condition (financial or otherwise), operations, or properties, or ability to repay the credit.

7.12   G❑vernment Acti❑n. Any government authority takes action that the Bank believes materially adversely affects the
Borrower's or any Obligor's financial condition or ability to repay.

7.13   ERISA Plans. If an event of default under Section 7 has occurred and is continuing beyond any applicable cure period, a
reportable event occurs under Section 4043(c) of ERISA, or any Plan termination (or commencement of proceedings to terminate a
Plan) or the full or partial withdrawal from a Plan under Section 4041 or 4042 of ERISA occurs; provided such event or events could
reasonably be expected, in the judgment of the Bank, to have a material adverse effect.

8.    ENFORCING THIS AGREEMENT; MISCELLANEOUS

8.1    GAAP. Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, all financial information provided to the Bank and all financial
covenants will be made under generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied or another basis acceptable to the
Bank.

8.2     G❑verning Law. Except to the extent that any law of the United States may apply, this Agreement shall be governed and
interpreted according to the laws of Colorado (the "Governing Law State"), without regard to any choice of law, rules or principles
to the contrary. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to limit or otherwise affect any rights or remedies of the Bank under
federal law.

8.3     Venue and Jurisdiction. The Borrower agrees that any action or suit against the Bank arising out of or relating to this
Agreement shall be filed in federal court or state court located in the Governing Law State. The Borrower agrees that the Bank
shall not be deemed to have waived its rights to enforce this section by filing an action or suit against the Borrower in a venue
outside of the Governing Law State. If the Bank does commence an action or suit arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the
Borrower agrees that the case may be filed in federal court or state court in the Governing Law State. The Bank reserves the right
to commence an action or suit in any other jurisdiction where the Borrower, any Guarantor, or any collateral has any presence or
is located. The Borrower consents to personal jurisdiction and venue in such forum selected by the Bank and waives any right to
contest jurisdiction and venue and the convenience of any such forum. The provisions of this section are material inducements to
the Bank's acceptance of this Agreement.

8.4     Success❑rs and Assigns. This Agreement is binding on the Borrower's and the Bank's successors and
assignees. The Borrower agrees that it may not assign this Agreement without the Bank's prior consent.

8.5    Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT
EXECUTED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY
(WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR ANY OTHER THEORY). EACH PARTY HERETO (a) CERTIFIES THAT NO
REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PERSON HAS
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REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PERSON WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF
LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER, (b) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES
HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER DOCUMENTS CONTEMPLATED
HEREBY BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION AND (c)
CERTIFIES THAT THIS WAIVER IS KNOWINGLY, WILLINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY MADE.

8.6     Severability; Waivers. If any part of this Agreement is not enforceable, the rest of the Agreement may be enforced.
The Bank retains all rights, even if it makes a loan after default. If the Bank waives a default, it may enforce a later default. Any
consent or waiver under this Agreement must be in writing.

8.7     Expenses.

(a) The Borrower shall pay to the Bank immediately upon demand the full amount of all payments, advances, charges, costs
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, expended or incurred by the Bank in connection with (i) the negotiation
and preparation of this Agreement and any related agreements, the Bank's continued administration of this Agreement and
such related agreements, and the preparation of any amendments and waivers related to this Agreement or such related
agreements, (ii) filing, recording and search fees, appraisal fees, field examination fees, title report fees, and documentation
fees with respect to any collateral and books and records of the Borrower or any Obligor, (iii) the Bank's costs or losses
arising from any changes in law which are allocated to this Agreement or any credit outstanding under this Agreement, and
(iv) costs or expenses required to be paid by the Borrower or any Obligor that are paid, incurred or advanced by the Bank.

(b) The Borrower will indemnify and hold the Bank harmless from any loss, liability, damages, judgments, and costs of any kind
relating to or arising directly or indirectly out of (i) this Agreement or any document required hereunder, (ii) any credit
extended or committed by the Bank to the Borrower hereunder, and (iii) any litigation or proceeding related to or arising out
of this Agreement, any such document, or any such credit, including, without limitation, any act resulting from the Bank
complying with instructions the Bank reasonably believes are made by any Authorized Individual. This paragraph will survive
this Agreement's termination, and will benefit the Bank and its officers, employees, and agents.
 

(c) The Borrower shall reimburse the Bank for any reasonable costs and attorneys' fees incurred by the Bank in connection
with (i) the enforcement or preservation of the Bank's rights and remedies and/or the collection of any obligations of the
Borrower which become due to the Bank and in connection with any "workout" or restructuring, and (ii) the prosecution or
defense of any action in any way related to this Agreement, the credit provided hereunder or any related agreements,
including without limitation, any action for declaratory relief, whether incurred at the trial or appellate level, in an arbitration
proceeding or otherwise, and including any of the foregoing incurred in connection with any bankruptcy proceeding
(including without limitation, any adversary proceeding, contested matter or motion brought by the Bank or any other person)
relating to the Borrower or any other person or entity.

8.8     Individual Liability. If the Borrower is a natural person, the Bank may proceed against the Borrower's business and
non-business property in enforcing this and other agreements relating to this loan. If the Borrower is a partnership, the Bank may
proceed against the business and non-business property of each general partner of the Borrower in enforcing this and other
agreements relating to this loan.

8.9     Joint and Several Liability. If two or more Borrowers sign this Agreement, each Borrower agrees that it is jointly and
severally liable to the Bank for the payment of all obligations arising under this Agreement, and that such liability is independent of
the obligations of the other Borrowers.

8.10    Set-Off. Upon and after the occurrence of an event of default under this Agreement, (a) the Borrower hereby authorizes
the Bank, at any time and from time to time, without notice, which is hereby expressly waived by the Borrower, and whether or not
the Bank shall have declared any credit subject hereto to be due and payable in accordance with the terms hereof, to set off
against, and to appropriate and apply to the payment of, the Borrower's Obligations (whether matured or unmatured, fixed or
contingent, liquidated or unliquidated), any and all amounts owing by the Bank to the Borrower (whether payable in U.S. dollars or
any other currency, whether matured or unmatured, and in the case of deposits, whether general or special (except trust and
escrow accounts), time or demand and however evidenced), and (b) pending any such action, to the extent necessary , to hold
such amounts as collateral to secure such Obligations and to return as unpaid for insufficient funds any and all checks
and other items drawn against any deposits so held as the Bank, in its sole discretion, may elect. The Borrower hereby
grants to the Bank a security interest in all deposits and accounts maintained with the Bank to secure the payment of all
Obligations of the Borrower to the Bank under this Agreement and all agreements, instruments and documents related to
this Agreement. "Obligations" means all obligations, now or hereafter existing , of the Borrower to the Bank under this
Agreement and under any other agreement or instrument executed in connection with this Agreement.
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8.11    One Agreement. This Agreement and any related security or other agreements required by this Agreement constitute
the entire agreement between the Borrower and the Bank with respect to each credit subject hereto and supersede all prior
negotiations, communications, discussions and correspondence concerning the subject matter hereof.

In the event of any conflict between this Agreement and any other agreements required by this Agreement, this Agreement will
prevail.

8.12    Notices. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement or in another agreement between the Bank and the Borrower,
all notices required under this Agreement shall be personally delivered or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, or by overnight
courier to the addresses on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses as the Bank and the Borrower may
specify from time to time in writing. Notices and other communications shall be effective (i) if mailed, upon the earlier of receipt or
five (5) days after deposit in the U.S. mail, first class, postage prepaid, or (ii) if hand-delivered, by courier or otherwise (including
telegram, lettergram or mailgram), when delivered.

8.13    Headings. Article and paragraph headings are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation or
meaning of any provisions of this Agreement.

8.14    C❑unterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so executed,
shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. Delivery of
an executed counterpart of this Agreement (or of any agreement or document required by this Agreement and any amendment to
this Agreement) by telecopy or other electronic imaging means shall be as effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart
of this Agreement; provided, however, that the telecopy or other electronic image shall be promptly followed by an original if
required by the Bank.

8.15    B❑rr❑wer Inf❑rmation; Reporting to Credit Bureaus. The Borrower authorizes the Bank at any time to verify or
check any information given by the Borrower to the Bank, check the Borrower's credit references, verify employment, and obtain
credit reports. The Borrower agrees that the Bank shall have the right at all times to disclose and report to credit reporting agencies
and credit rating agencies such information pertaining to the Borrower and/or all guarantors as is consistent with the Bank's policies
and practices from time to time in effect.

8.16    Cust❑mary Advertising Material. The Borrower and each Obligor consent to the publication by the Bank of
customary advertising material relating to the transactions contemplated hereby using the name, product photographs, logo or
trademark of the Borrower or such Obligor.

8.17    Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or modified only in writing signed by each party hereto. This
Agreement is executed as of the date stated at the top of the first page.
 
Bank:

Bank of America, N.A.

By: /s/ Kirk R. Fronckiewics
Kirk R. Fronckiewicz, Senior Vice President

Borrower:

LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
 
By: /s/ Barry Knott

Barry Knott, President/CEO
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Address where notices to LIFELOC TECHNOLOGIES, INC. are to
be sent:

Address where notices to the Bank are to be sent:

  
12441 West 49th Ave Unit 4
Wheat Ridge, CO 80033
US
 
Telephone:303-431-9500

Bank of America, N.A.
Doc Retention Center
CT2-515-BB-03
70 Batterson Park Road
Farmingt❑n, CT 06032
 
Facsimile: 
866-255-9922

Federal law requires Bank of America, N.A. (the "Bank") to provide the following notice. The notice is not part of the
foregoing agreement or instrument and may not be altered. Please read the notice carefully.

(1) USA PATRIOT ACT NOTICE

Federal law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify and record information that identifies each person who opens an
account or obtains a loan. The Bank will ask for the Borrower's legal name, address, tax ID number or social security number and
other identifying information. The Bank may also ask for additional information or documentation or take other actions reasonably
necessary to verify the identity of the Borrower, guarantors or other related persons.
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SCHEDULE A

FEES

 
(a) Waiver Fee. If the Bank, at its discretion, agrees to waive or amend any terms of this Agreement, the Borrower will, at the

Bank's option, pay the Bank a fee for each waiver or amendment in an amount advised by the Bank at the time the
Borrower requests the waiver or amendment. Nothing in this paragraph shall imply that the Bank is obligated to agree to any
waiver or amendment requested by the Borrower. The Bank may impose additional requirements as a condition to any
waiver or amendment.

(b) Late Fee. To the extent permitted by law, the Borrower agrees to pay a late fee in an amount not to exceed four percent
(4%) of any payment that is more than fifteen (15) days late. The imposition and payment of a late fee shall not constitute a
waiver of the Bank's rights with respect to the default.
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Exhibit 31.1
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Barry R. Knott, certify that:
 
 1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Lifeloc Technologies, Inc.;
  
 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

  
 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 

 b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and
 

 d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

  
 a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

 b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: March 20, 2015

  /s/ Barry R. Knott
  Barry R. Knott
 

 
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Vern D. Kornelsen, certify that:

 1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Lifeloc Technologies, Inc.;
  
 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

  
 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 

 b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 

 c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and
 

 d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

  
 a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

 b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.
 

Dated: March 20, 2015

  /s/ Vern D. Kornelsen
  Vern D. Kornelsen
 

 
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Barry R. Knott, Chief Executive Officer of Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. (the "Company"), hereby certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

  • the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 (the "Report") fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or
78o(d)); and
 

  • the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company for the period covered by the Report.
 

  
Dated: March 20, 2015

  /s/ Barry R. Knott
  Barry R. Knott
 

 
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



Exhibit 32.2
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Vern D. Kornelsen, Chief Financial Officer of Lifeloc Technologies, Inc. (the "Company"), hereby certify, pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

  • the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 (the "Report") fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or
78o(d)); and
 

  • the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company for the period covered by the Report.
 

 
Dated: March 20, 2015

  /s/ Vern D. Kornelsen
  Vern D. Kornelsen
 

 
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.


